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Customer service

Value 
for money

Positive contribution

High quality water

Reliable supply



Welcome

2017 highlights

• Launched our new brand, 
SES Water

• Joined the five per cent of 
accredited companies in achieving 
Gold Investors in People

• Ready for the market opening for 
over 1.2 million business customers

• Strong performance against most 
customer aims

• Healthy financial performance

• Talented people recruited into key 
senior roles

We clean

To make sure we 
maintain high 

quality drinking 
water for our 

customers, our 
water quality 

is continuously 
monitored at all 
our treatment 

works

We store

We have 31  
operational 

service 
reservoirs and  
water towers

We distribute

24 pumping  
stations pump 
water to our 
customers 

through 
3,500km  
of pipes

We collect

85% of our raw 
water comes  

from 
underground 

sources 
(groundwater)  
and 15% from  
river sources

See our Glossary on page 01 
for more information

£1.5m
Since 1993 our customers have raised 
more than £1.5 million for WaterAid – 
that's enough to help 104,000 people 
gain access to safe water.

10,000
Our education team talked to over 
10,000 children and adults during the 
year by hosting school visits, giving 
assemblies, organising open days and 
attending local events.

Who we are

SES Water supplies 160 million litres of clean water 
each day to 688,000 people in east Surrey and parts 
of West Sussex, west Kent and south London

£12.9m

£14.3m

Profit before tax

£12.9m
2017

2016

Capital investment

£23.4m
2017 £23.4m

2016 £18.1m

Fixed assets

£280.7 m
2017 £280.7m

2016 £267.4m

Turnover

£64.7m
2017

2016

£64.7m

£63.0m

We don’t only supply water...

Read more about what we 

do at: www.seswater.co.uk

Read more on page 02
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Our vision

To be an outstanding water company that delivers 
service excellence

What we do



Keeping our promises to customers
Our aims

AIM 2OVERALL AIM AIM 1

People served, 
160 million litres of 
water supplied per 
day. Equivalent to 

64 Olympic 
swimming pools

Committed 
employees 

Measures

Offer good value for money and keep 
bills at a fair and reasonable level

See page 12

5,809

Target: 5,000

Performance in 2016 / 2017

0.67%

Target: Less than 1% 
of turnover

Customers 
on our 
Water 
Support 
tariff

Bad debt 
as a 
percentage 
of turnover

280 688,000

Customers received 
a 50% discount thanks 

to the Water 
Support tariff

Overall drinking 
water quality

Donated to 
good causes

5,809 99.98% £9,799

This year

Measures

Continue to be a well-run, respected 
and successful business

See page 9

£9,799

Target: £8,750

3

Target: No more than 

4 incidents

Achieved

Target: Achieve budget

73%

Target: >70%

Performance in 2016 / 2017

Employee 
satisfaction

Community 
engagement

Health 
and safety 
incidents

Financial 
health

SES Water Annual Report 2017

Measures

To provide a reliable and sufficient 
supply of safe, high quality 
drinking water

See page 10

234 bursts

Target: 290 bursts

4.4 minutes

Target: 13.8 minutes

Performance in 2016 / 2017

99.98%

Target: 100% within  
regulatory 
tolerance

375 contacts

Target: 350 contacts

On track

Target: Deliver 

programme

100%

Target: 100%

Supply 
interruptions  
over 3 hours

Number  
of bursts

Overall  
water 
quality

Taste,  
odour and 
discolouration 
contacts

Water 
softening

Security of 
supply index

6.3%

Target: Less than 15% of 
customers dissatisfied

Perception 
of value for 
money



5p
Energy

4p
Tax, rates 
and licences

8p
Employees

17p
Investment10p

Other operating  
costs

6p
Financing

AIM 3 AIM 4 AIM 5

The average household in our supply area spends 50p a day on their water supply

Measures

Reduce our impact on the 
environment while seeking to make a 
positive contribution to its quality

See page 18

10,703 people

Target: 8,500 people

24.3 Ml/day

Target: 24.3 Ml/day

Performance in 2016 / 2017

160 litres per 
person per day

Target: 160 litres per 

person per day

420

Target: 525

1 incident

Target: 0 incidents

Leakage

Environmental 
education 
programme

Customer 
usage 
reductions 
through 
metering

Greenhouse  
gas 
emissions
(kgCO2eq/
Ml)

Pollution 
incidents

Measures

Increase the resilience of our network 
to drought, flooding and 
equipment failure

See page 14

36%

Target: 36% properties 

supplied by more than 

one water treatment 

works

0

Target: 0 

Performance in 2016 / 2017

Water  
restrictions

Building 
a more 
resilient 
network

Measures

Deliver consistently high levels 
of service

See page 16

79.6 points

Target: 86.2 points

92.3%

Target: 89.5%

Performance in 2016 / 2017

11.3

Target: 7.2 per 1,000 

properties

Customer 
satisfaction 
with the 
water 
service

Service 
Incentive 
Mechanism  
(SIM) score

Number of 
complaints 
(per 1,000 
properties)
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Chairman Jeremy Pelczer provides a 
summary of performance in 2016/17.

An overview of the industry and 
how it is changing.

Managing Director Anthony Ferrar 
provides a detailed look at how we 
have delivered against our aims. 

Glossary

Aims – the six promises that we aim to 
deliver for our customers as stated in 
our five-year business plan.

Bad debt – the cost of water charges 
that we are unlikely to be able to collect.

Bursts – failures of water pipes usually 
resulting in large losses of water.

Leaks – water lost from fittings to mains 
like stop taps, meters and customers’ 
pipes. Leakage is a measure of the water 
lost between our treatment works and 
customers’ taps.

Megalitre (Ml) – equal to a million litres.

Ofwat – the economic regulator of the 
water sector in England and Wales that 
was established in 1989 when the water 
and sewerage industry was privatised.

PR19 – the next price control review by 
Ofwat. This will conclude in December 
2019 and set the revenue that companies 
will be allowed to recover, through 
charges to their customers, for the 
five years starting on 1 April 2020.

SIM – ‘Service Incentive Mechanism’ is 
an industry-wide measure, set by Ofwat, 
of the quality of each water company’s 
customer service.

Security of supply index – a way of 
monitoring the resilience of our water 
resources so that they are able to 
meet demand.

SES Water – the trading name of Sutton 
and East Surrey Water plc.

Supply interruption – where the supply 
of water to customers is interrupted 
due to planned (e.g. replacing old pipes) 
or unplanned (e.g. a burst) activity. 
Our target is calculated by measuring 
the length of time that a customer has 
lost supply (where this has been for 
more than three hours) and dividing 
by the total number of properties in 
our supply area.

Values – define who we are, guide our 
behaviours and underpin everything 
we do.

Vision – a brief statement of what we 
want to be.

SES Water Annual Report 201701
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is an important aspect of our stewardship 
duties to ensure all our assets are 
maintained and improved over time.

A significant challenge this year has been 
our performance against the Service 
Incentive Mechanism (SIM). SIM was 
introduced by Ofwat in 2011 to allow 
customer service comparisons across 
water companies, with good performers 
being rewarded and the poor performers 
receiving penalties. Despite more than 
meeting our other customer satisfaction 
targets, and improving on this compared 
to last year, this is the second year 
running where the SIM score is well 
below where we want it to be. A number 
of actions and initiatives have been put 
in place as we strive to better serve 
our customers and we anticipate these 
will yield improvements in the coming 
year. The Board remains committed 
to ensuring we deliver substantial 
improvements and will continue to 
monitor progress closely.

The scale and complexity of supplying 
160 million litres of water every day was 
emphasised in February when Elmer 
Treatment Works had to be temporarily 
shut down due to an operational 
incident inside the site. There was no 
consequential impact to the public or 
local residents and the skill and dedication 
of our employees enabled the works to be 
brought back into use before supplies to 
customers were affected. Actions taken 
subsequently have reduced the risk of any 
similar incident occurring again. Remedial 
works on site will take some months and 
only on their completion will the site be 
fully functioning again, including softening 
the water to the previous levels. 

In November Yoichi Sakai joined the 
Board as a shareholder nominated 
non-executive director, replacing 

After 20 years as Sutton and East 
Surrey Water, this year we took the 
big step of changing our trading name 
to SES Water. The process started 
back in 2015 at the same time as we 
started preparing for the opening of 
the retail market for businesses in April 
this year. This is a significant change 
for the industry and although we take 
pride in being a local company with 
a long heritage, at the same time we 
need to look forward to ensure we 
have long-term sustainable plans and 
relentlessly pursue our vision to be 
an outstanding water company. The 
name SES Water references our historic 
roots but the new brand is fresh, 
modern and a real milestone for the 
Company. Consultations with all of our 
stakeholders convinced us that there 
was a clear appetite for change but it 
hasn’t altered who we are, what we do 
nor our goal to achieve our vision. The 
cost of the re-brand has been entirely 
met by our shareholders and customer 
feedback has generally been really 
positive about our new look.

The market opening for over 1.2 million 
eligible businesses, public sector 
organisations and charities was a major 
priority for the whole year. This means 
those business customers can choose 
who they wish to do business with 
for their water and wastewater retail 
services. SES Water will continue to 
provide high quality water supplies to 
all domestic household customers in the 
existing supply area, but has decided to 
‘exit’ this retail market. On 1 April 2017 
the Company sold its right to trade 
with eligible business customers to an 
associated company, trading as SES 
Business Water. The Company will strive 
to serve all retailers to the best of our 
abilities within the new arrangements.

Achieving Investors in People Gold 
recognition in February 2017, within 
a year of being awarded Silver, was a 
superb achievement. Gold awards are 
not given out lightly - achieving this 
outstanding award on only our second 
assessment endorses how we invest in 
our employees and the enduring effort 
that goes into making the Company 
a better place to work. I would like 
to congratulate all involved and feel 
confident that the standard will be 
maintained in two years’ time when 
we are reassessed to ensure we have 
maintained the required standards to 
justify the Gold award. 

This financial year was the second in 
the current five-year regulatory period 
and we have remained focused on 
delivery of the promises we made to our 
customers in our 2015-2020 business 
plan. The plan was the culmination of 
the most extensive consultation process 
ever undertaken by the Company 
and commits to delivering on five key 
aims which are based on customer 
priorities. To achieve each aim, progress 
is measured against 23 performance 
measures and you can read more about 
our results in the Performance Report 
starting on page 10.

Between 2015 and 2020 we have 
committed to investing £117 million in 
reinforcing, extending and replacing our 
underground mains network, upgrading 
our treatment works and replacing 
essential equipment. One of the most 
visible projects, upgrading our water 
treatment works at Woodmansterne 
to increase output by 50 per cent and 
achieve consistent levels of softening, 
has continued apace and is due for 
completion next year. Investing in our 
supply network is key to being able to 
deliver our promises to customers and  

Another busy and challenging year 
with some notable milestones

Chairman’s Statement

Although we take pride in being a local 
company with a long heritage, at the same 
time we need to look forward to ensure 
we have long-term sustainable plans and 
relentlessly pursue our vision to be an 
outstanding water company.

Jeremy Pelczer
Chairman 
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Seiji Kitajima who, after three years 
as Director of Corporate Co-ordination 
and Planning, left in October to return 
to Tokyo. We welcome Yoichi who is the 
Unit General Manager, Infrastructure
Business Unit of Sumitomo Corporation 
Europe Group and thank Seiji for his 
invaluable contribution and, in particular, 
for building the mutually supportive 
relationship with Sumitomo.

Our financial performance remained 
healthy this year. Turnover increased 
to £64.7 million (2016: £63.0 million). 
Operating cost increases were restricted 
to 1.4% totalling £43.5 million (2016: 
£42.9 million). Operating profits 
therefore increased by £1.1 million to 
£21.2 million (2016: £20.1 million). Interest 
charges increased by 16% to £9.2 
million (2016: £7.9 million) largely as a 
result of higher inflation increasing the 
indexation charge on our £100 million 
index-linked bond. Interest receivable 
and similar charges generated £0.9 
million (2016: £0.7 million). As a result, 
profit before tax fell by £1.4 million to 
£12.9 million (2016: £14.3 million). Further 
reductions in future rates of corporation 
tax reduced the provisions we need to 
make for tax payable in future years, and 
restricted our accounting tax charge for 
the year to £0.4 million (2016: a credit 
of £0.4 million).

The water industry, like many others, is 
facing uncertainty as Britain prepares 
to leave the European Union. Questions 
around funding for infrastructure, 
investment in research and environmental 
regulation cannot yet be answered. Our 
business plan for 2020-2025 will need 
to take account of any changes and we 
will respond to issues and challenges as 
required to ensure the best outcome for 
our customers. 

My sincere thanks go to all of our 
employees for everything they have 
achieved this year. We regularly give 
awards to those who clearly live up to 
our vision and values and this year has 
been no different with many stories 
of people going the extra mile. Each 
year I have the privilege to attend a 
thank you lunch to all employees that 
celebrate at least 25 years service with 
the Company and with some celebrating 
as long as 40 years. Their dedication and 
professionalism inspire all of us at SES 
Water and the pride they show in a job 
well done lies at the heart of everything 
that is good about the Company. 

Jeremy Pelczer
Chairman 
6 July 2017

New branding

Another busy and challenging year 
with some notable milestones

SES Water Annual Report 201703
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Top in the Developer Services rankings! 

This impressive achievement, which is about the water supply 
connection service that we provide to property developers, 
was all the more credible given that just a few months earlier 
we were in 16th place out of 18 water companies. However, after 
a concerted team effort, we rose in the national league table 
to seventh place then took the coveted number one position.

Raising funds for local people affected 
by cancer

Smiles all round as we celebrated the first five months of the 
new online switch promotion with Macmillan Cancer Support. 
For every customer who switched to e-billing before August, 
£1 was given to the charity which helps local services such as 
the East Surrey Macmillan Cancer Support Centre. During the 
whole year, over 14,000 people made the switch and £10,000 
was donated, helping towards their vital support to local 
people affected by cancer. 

Customer Scrutiny Panel welcomes 
Graham Hanson as independent chair

The panel brings together household customer 
representatives, local community stakeholders and water 
regulators to scrutinise, challenge and advise the Company on 
how well we are delivering the customer promises set out in 
our business plan. A married father-of-three from Betchworth 
who is very active in the local community, you can hear more 
from Graham on his first year in the role on page 28.

April

June

May

New contractor deals for pipelines

The £8 million per year programme with Clancy Docwra will 
renew and replace over 100 kilometres of water mains in five 
years to improve the existing network of pipelines. Alongside 
this, the £6.7 million programme of work with J. Murphy & Sons 
Limited will design and build four new large pipelines to move 
water more easily across the network, improving our resilience 
to ensure water keeps flowing to customers' taps. 

July

A successful year
Year in Review

SES Water Annual Report 201704



New lagoon up and running 

The fine weather in August saw rapid progress made on the 
£22 million upgrade to Woodmansterne Treatment Works. 
The three year programme, which began in September 2015, 
will increase output at the works by 50 per cent by providing 
new rapid gravity filters, contact tank, pumping station, 
generator house and the new wastewater soakaway lagoon 
on nearby land.

A new name and a new look

After more than 20 years of the same brand, Sutton and East 
Surrey Water changed its trading name to SES Water. Our new 
logo started appearing on customer bills and letters, signage, 
the website, vans and uniforms. You can read more about this 
significant milestone on page 20.

Victorian main’s reign comes to an end

Work got underway to replace a water main that was laid 
in 1896 in Chipstead with a new, larger, tougher plastic pipe 
which is less prone to bursts and leaks. Victorian engineers 
built things to last and the pipe had been transporting 
thousands of litres of top quality water every day for over 
a hundred years. However, investigations indicated it was 
coming to the end of its working life and the £325,000 project 
will protect customers’ water supplies for years to come.

September

February

As good as gold!

February also saw the Company awarded the Investors in 
People Gold award! It is an outstanding achievement reflecting 
many great things we do to lead, manage, develop and 
support our people. Only five per cent of companies that have 
an IIP accreditation have achieved the Gold standard so this 
is an award we can be really proud of. 

February

December

A successful year
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17bn
Each day the UK water industry 
collects, treats and supplies close to 
17 billion litres of high quality water to 
domestic and commercial customers.

70%
Groundwater sources provide  
around 70% of the total water  
supply in London and the South 
East. 85% of our supplies are from 
groundwater sources.

160
In the South East, each person uses 
an average of 160 litres of water a day.

Source: Water UK

The single biggest change in 
the industry since privatisation 

The UK Marketplace
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The water industry in England and Wales 
is divided into ten regional Water and 
Sewerage Companies (WaSCs) and 
eight regional Water only Companies 
(WoCs), of which SES Water is one. 
In addition, there are a number of smaller 
appointed companies providing either 
water or sewerage services, or both, 
to small local areas. The industry was 
privatised in 1989 and the companies 
are now a mix of the publicly listed 
and privately owned. These regional 
companies are monopolies meaning that 
household customers have no choice in 
who provides the service. However, on 
1 April 2017, the water market opened in 
England meaning that most businesses 
can now choose which company they 
want to supply their retail water services.

The regulatory environment
The water industry in England and 
Wales is subject to a range of UK and 
European Laws. It is governed by, 
amongst others, the Water Industry Act 
1991 (as amended) (WIA), the Water 
Act 2014, the Water Resources Act 
1991 (WRA), the Water Act 2003 (WA) 
and related secondary legislation. Each 
regional water company holds a licence 
(or Instrument of Appointment) and is 
regulated through the conditions of that 
licence and the WIA. A water licence 
specifies the geographic areas served 
and imposes conditions on the licence 
holder which include limits on charges 
to customers. SES Water’s licence was 
granted in 1996 following the merger of 
The Sutton District Water plc and the 
East Surrey Water Company plc.

Economic regulation
Ofwat is the economic regulator of the 
water and sewerage sectors in England 
and Wales. It is responsible for ensuring 
that water companies provide a high-
quality, efficient service at a fair price. 
Its main duties, as laid down in the WIA, 
are to:
• Protect consumer interests wherever 

appropriate by promoting effective 
competition

• Ensure that the functions of water 
companies are properly carried out

• Ensure that water companies are able 
(in particular by securing reasonable 
return on their capital) to finance the 
proper carrying out of those functions

• Ensure that companies with supply 
licences (i.e. those selling to large 
business customers) properly carry 
out their functions

• Further the resilience objective to 
secure the long-term resilience of 
water companies’ supply systems and 
ensure they take steps to enable them 
to meet the need for water supplies. 

Its additional duties include promoting 
economy and efficiency on the part 
of water companies, contributing 
to the achievement of sustainable 
development and ensuring that no 
undue discrimination is shown by 
water companies when fixing charges 
and providing services.

The water industry operates in five-year 
cycles known as Asset Management Plan 
(AMP) periods. For each five-year period 
Ofwat fixes the amount that water 
companies are allowed to charge their 
customers and sets the standards of 
service that each company must deliver. 
The latest ‘package’ of price and services 
standards, known as Ofwat’s Final 
Determination, was formally accepted 
by the Company in February 2015.
This Annual Report reflects our 
performance in the second year of the 
2015-2020 AMP period. This period 
presents some important and welcome 
changes to the regulation of the industry 
with an increased focus on delivery of 
the promises companies have made 
to customers, more focus on longer-
term objectives and ownership of plans 
and performance by company Boards. 
Further information on how we have 
delivered against the promises we have 
made can be found in our Performance 
Report on pages 9 to 19.

The industry is also subject to a number 
of other regulations:
• The Drinking Water Inspectorate (DWI) 

is responsible for assessing the quality 
of drinking water, taking enforcement 
action if standards are not met and 
taking appropriate action when water 
is unfit for human consumption

• The Environment Agency (EA) 
regulates licences for water 
abstraction and preserves and 
improves the quality of rivers, 
estuaries, coastal waters and 
groundwater, through pollution 
control powers and the regulation 
of discharge consents

• The role of the Consumer Council 
for Water (CCWater) is to act as 
the independent voice for all water 
consumers in England and Wales 
and to promote the interest of all 
water customers.

Water is open for business
Since 1 April 2017, eligible businesses, 
charities and public sector customers 
in England are no longer restricted to 
buying retail water services from their 
regional water company. Much like 
the energy industry, these customers 
can choose who provides services like 
meter reading, billing and handling 
customer queries and complaints. 
Existing suppliers like SES Water will 
continue to provide ‘wholesale’ services 
to businesses in their area, as well as 
continuing to provide all services related 
to the supply of water to domestic 
customers. Wholesale functions 
include the abstraction, treatment and 
transportation of water from source to 
tap. Licensed retailers buy the wholesale 
services and package this with other 
services to compete for customers. 

This year has seen a concerted effort 
from all sections of the industry in 
preparing for competition, with a 
focus on getting the right systems, 
processes and governance in place. 
Market Operator Services Limited 
(MOSL), which operates the market 
and ensures it runs effectively on behalf 
of the water companies trading in it, 
has built the IT systems that allow for 
customer registration, switching and 
financial settlement. SES Water was one 
of the first wholesalers to upload non-
household data into the market system, 
against a tight deadline in September 
2016. As an ISO9001 accredited company 
we take the management of data very 
seriously and are working closely with 
MOSL to standardise data collection and 
reporting across the industry to deliver 
customer service excellence.

SES Water withdrew from the retail 
market for businesses and has sold 
its right to trade with existing eligible 
customers to an associated company, 
trading as SES Business Water. We are 
now providing wholesale services to SES 
Business Water and a number of other 
retailers in the market. 
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Human Resources

Sarah Brown
HR Manager 

Provides support on all employment issues across the Company.

Our structure allows us to focus on 
delivering our two frontline services 
– wholesale and retail – while keeping 
our core support functions together.

Anthony Ferrar
Managing Director

Daniel Lamb
Head of Retail Services 

Responsible for customer service – 
including billing, cash collection and 
answering customer queries.

Key functions
Household account management 
and billing.

John Chadwick
Finance and Regulation Director and 
Company Secretary

Custodian of the key functions 
which support the work of the 
other departments. 

Key functions
Finance, economic regulation, IT, 
communications, procurement, 
administration, property and facilities.

Tom Kelly
Wholesale Services Director

Responsible for the delivery of 
water from source to tap – including 
maintaining a sufficient water supply 
and reducing leakage.

Key functions
Water resource management and 
planning, treatment, networks and 
capital delivery, and liaison with 
retailers through the Wholesale 
Service Desk.

Nicola Houlahan
Quality and Compliance Director

Oversees water quality, the 
externally accredited quality and 
environment systems and provides 
independent internal assurance 
including on health and safety.

Key functions
Water quality, health and safety, 
quality assurance, environmental 
regulations, risk management and 
compliance.

Retail Services Wholesale Services

Business Support and Control Quality and Compliance

Service Commitment Innovation

Our ValuesOur Vision

To be an outstanding water company
that delivers service excellence

Business Overview

Integrity CompassionCollaboration
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Highlights

• Achieved Investors in People Gold recognition

• Increased charitable support

• Only three health and safety incidents

Measures

Employee 
satisfaction

Community 
engagement

Health and 
safety  
incidents

Financial health

Targets by 2020

Improve 
employee 
engagement 
scores 
each year

Increase 
support  
to local 
charities  
and 
community 
initiatives

No more 
than four 
incidents  
in a year

Achieve our 
budget

2016: £9,010

2016: 7

2016: 77%

Target: £8,750

Target: No more than four incidents

Target: >70%

Our measures

Performance in 2016 / 2017

73%

£9,799

3

Achieved

Overall Aim

Continue to be a well-run, respected and 
successful business 

Target: Achieve budget

2016: Achieved

SES Water Annual Report 201709
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I recently had a new electric shower 
fitted. Whilst the work was being carried 
out the plumber needed to isolate the 
water supply which meant turning the 
water off using the external stopcock. 
Unfortunately, the stopcock became 
inoperable and became stuck in the ‘off’ 
position, leaving us with no water supply.

I called SES Water and they were able 
to relocate their workforce from a job in 
Reigate to attend our emergency. When 
the workmen arrived, they were able to 
return the water supply immediately. 
I offered them both a drink and when 
I went back out they had already 
excavated a small trench. I was amazed 
at the speed they worked! 

The repair work to the stopcock and 
adjoining pipework was within my 
property boundary and under my garden 
plants. The plants had to be uprooted for 
the workmen to carry out their repair. 
However, any uncertainty I had was 
quickly gone as they assured me they 
would put all the plants back neatly, 
which they did. 

I am very grateful for SES Water’s quick 
response to our emergency and being 
able to return our water supply so 
quickly. I even got a phone call 36 hours 
after the work to ensure all went to plan, 
which I was glad to say it did. I would also 
like to thank the workmen for taking care 
of my plants as my garden is my pride 
and joy. 

Aim 1
To provide a reliable and 
sufficient supply of safe, 
high quality drinking water

10 SES Water Annual Report 2017

Mrs Gilham
who lives with her 
husband and three 
children in Horley



Highlights

• 30% improvement on last year’s 
supply interruptions

• Burst mains 10% lower than the 
long-term average

• Only two water quality breaches 
at customer taps

Measures

Supply 
interruptions 
over three hours

Number of 
bursts

Overall water 
quality

Security of 
supply index

Water 
softening

Taste, 
odour and 
discolouration 
contacts

Targets by 2020

No more 
than 12 
minutes 
per property 

Maintain 
100%
compliance

Less than 
290 in a year

100%

Deliver our 
softening 
programme

Less than 
350 contacts 
in a year

Our measures

Performance in 2016 / 2017

100%

4.4 minutes

234 

99.98%

On track

375

2016: 6.3

2016: 212

2016: 99.95%

2016: 419

2016: Delivery on schedule

2016: 100%

Target: 13.8

Target: 290

Target: 100%

Target: 350

Target: Deliver programme

Target: 100%
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As a pensioner living on my own, now 
more than ever, I have to carefully 
manage my finances. A few years ago, 
I read that if you have more bedrooms 
than people it would be beneficial to 
apply for a water meter, which I did. 
I found the application process very 
simple to understand and complete.
 
When SES Water came to fit the water 
meter not only did they fit it quickly and 
efficiently but they also took some time 
to show me where my external stopcock 
was and how to operate it in the event of 
an emergency. I found the workmen very 
pleasant and tidy.
 
Having the water meter fitted now means 
I only pay for the water I use, which has 
helped bring down the cost of my water 
bill. Compared to other bills I pay a very 
small amount for water which means I am 
able to better manage my finances and 
even buy my children and grandchildren 
the occasional treat. 

Aim 2
Offer good value for money 
and keep bills at a fair and 
reasonable level

SES Water Annual Report 201712

Mrs Kiely
a customer for many 
years from Sutton



Perception 
of value for 
money

6.3%
2016: 9.0%

Target: <15%

Highlights

• Debt Recovery team scored 
100% in Consumer Council for 
Water audit - never achieved by 
a water company before!

• 93.7% of customers considered 
their bill affordable

• More customers applied for the 
Water Support tariff

Measures

Customers  
on our Water 
Support tariff

Bad debt as  
a percentage  
of turnover

Targets by 2020

At least 
5,000

Less than 1%  
of turnover

Our measures

Performance in 2016 / 2017

5,809

0.67%

2016: 5,686

2016: 0.75%

Target: 5,000

Target: <1%

Less than 
15% of 
customers 
dissatisfied
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We have lived in our property for almost 
a year and with a new baby on the way, 
we have never been more reliant on 
water. We have been working hard to 
make the house child-friendly, which 
includes making the garden a fun haven 
for our daughter and little one due in 
September. We have replanted all the 
flowers, maintained the lawn and bought a 
water table so our children can play safely 
outside. We know that water is a valuable 
resource and do all we can to not waste it - 
the last thing we want are restrictions after 
all our hard work.
 
Our water consumption will inevitably 
increase in the autumn when the baby 
is born. We would struggle in the event 
of a major water outage as it would be 
really difficult not only to keep up with 
the endless washing and the general 
cleanliness of our little girl, but we would 
also not be able to sterilise bottles.
 
Fortunately, we have not experienced 
a situation where our water has been 
restricted and we know this is because of 
SES Water’s efforts in maintaining their 
large network of pipes. However, we 
believe the majority of customers do not 
know the work that goes into being able 
to have an instant, clean and reliable water 
supply straight from the tap and in all 
honesty, why would they? The phrase, ‘you 
don’t know what you’ve got until it’s gone’ 
springs to mind!

Aim 3
Increase the resilience of our 
network to drought, flooding 
and equipment failure

14 SES Water Annual Report 2017

Nathan and 
Sarah Rees
with their two-year old  
daughter Katie in Redhill



Highlights

• No supply restrictions

• 11 kilometres of mains replaced

• One of the lowest burst mains 
and leakage levels in the UK
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Measures

Water 
restrictions

Building a 
more resilient 
network

Targets by 2020

Less than 
one in ten 
years

At least 56% 
of properties 
supplied by 
more than 
one water 
treatment 
works

Our measures

Performance in 2016 / 2017

0

36%

2016: 0

2016: 36%

Target: 0

Target: 36%



SES Water Annual Report 201716

My family and I moved into our new 
home in March this year. We didn’t move 
far and the children were able to remain 
at the same school. However, as with any 
house move, there was lots to be done: 
heavy lifting, organising the furniture and 
of course changing our address details 
with the various utilities.

We contacted SES Water to inform them 
of our move. We were very pleased 
at how quickly the call was answered 
and the helpful nature of the lady we 
spoke to. She closed the account of our 
previous address and got us set up at our 
new property very quickly which left us 
with more time to organise the move. 

Moving home can be a very stressful 
time, especially with three children in 
tow. However, dealing with SES Water 
helped reduce this stress as our request 
was completed in no time at all. We are 
settling in well in our new home and 
we are grateful for SES Water’s continued 
high level of customer service. 

Aim 4
Deliver consistently high levels 
of service

16 SES Water Annual Report 2017

Mr Ahmed
and his family living 
in Carshalton



Highlights

• Satisfaction with overall water 
service higher than last year

• 14,259 more customers signed 
up to e-billing
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Measures

Customer 
satisfaction 
with the water 
service

Service 
Incentive 
Mechanism 
(SIM) score

Number of 
complaints  
(per 1,000 
properties)

Targets by 2020

At least 91%

88 or more 
points

6.6 or less

Our measures

Performance in 2016 / 2017

92.3% 

79.6 points

11.3

2016: 91.5%

2016: 80.8

2016: 10.0

Target: 89.5%

Target: 86.2

Target: 7.2



Teachers and pupils from Holland 
School have been visiting Bough Beech 
Reservoir as part of the education 
programme for the last ten years. Not 
only do the children find it fascinating to 
see the water treatment process and the 
equipment that is used, us teachers also 
take away lots from the visit too! 

We were all surprised to learn about 
how much water we waste each day in 
this country. It was a real eye-opener 
and something that will definitely 
influence my approach to saving water 
in the future. The children particularly 
enjoyed climbing the dam and seeing 
the huge reservoir; the sheer scale of it 
totally took their breath away. They also 
loved venturing under the reservoir and 
listening to the water in the pipes. 

The visit is a fantastic way to cover a 
number of objectives in the national 
curriculum, including developing the 
children's understanding of the water 
cycle and how water is processed and 
distributed. We also use the visit to build 
upon other geographical skills including 
map work.

As well as covering key elements of 
the curriculum, the visit highlights the 
importance of water efficiency. I am sure 
SES Water would be glad to hear that 
visit after visit the majority of the children 
retain a large proportion of the facts 
relating to water wastage really well. 
This goes to show how interested and 
engaged the children are and I am sure 
this kind of impact will stay with them 
into adulthood.

Aim 5
Reduce our impact on the 
environment while seeking to make 
a positive contribution to its quality

SES Water Annual Report 20171818 SES Water Annual Report 2017

Jacqui Lester
from Holland Junior School 
in Oxted with her pupils



Highlights

• Leakage target met for 
eighteenth successive year

• 6,542 water meters installed

• Greenhouse gas emissions 
significantly lower than last year

Measures

Leakage

Environmental 
education 
programme 

Customer 
usage 
reductions 
through 
metering 

Pollution 
incidents 

Greenhouse 
gas emissions 
(kgCO2eq/Ml) 

Targets by 2020

No more than 
24 Ml/day

Reach over 
10,000 
people 
in a year

No more 
than 156.9 
litres per 
person 
per day 

No incidents

No increase 
in emissions 
per litre 
of water 
supplied

Our measures

Performance in 2016 / 2017

24.3 MI/day

10,703 people

160 litres

1 incident

420

2016: 24.2

2016: 13,314

2016: 161

2016: 470

2016: 2

Target: 24.3

Target: 8,500

Target: 160

Target: 525

Target: 0
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A new name reflects a new era
February 2017 saw a significant change 
for the Company as we re-branded to 
SES Water. After more than 20 years 
as Sutton and East Surrey Water, this 
signalled an important new era with 
the trading name and logo aiming to 
reflect wider changes in the industry, 
namely the introduction of competition 
for business customers. Extensive 
consultation with employees, customers 
and other stakeholders fed directly into 
all decision-making and we are really 
excited about our new look. Employee 
roadshows were held to help explain the 
re-branding process and engage them 
in what it means for the Company going 
forward. We wrote to every customer 
and stakeholder ahead of the launch and 
offered dedicated contact methods for 
queries and comments. Feedback so far 
has been overwhelmingly positive and 
we look forward to further implementing 
the brand so that everything is consistent 
and underpins our vision of being an 
outstanding water company delivering 
service excellence.

Thanks to a lot of hard work by all 
involved, we were ready for the market 
opening on 1 April 2017, an historic 
event in the water industry. Just under 
two years ago, we started preparing for 
the change and will continue to supply 
water to all properties in our supply 
area. However, the Company is not 
operating in the new retail market and 
we sold our right to trade with existing 
business customers to an associated 
company trading as SES Business Water. 
In October 2016 ‘shadow’ operations 
successfully began when all the water 
companies and the new market operator, 
MOSL, practised the transactions that 
take place, ahead of the market opening 
for real. During this period we launched 
our new Wholesale Service Desk which 

We are not changing who we are, we just 
look more modern and prepared for the 
opportunities ahead.

Anthony Ferrar
Managing Director

Why?

We have a vision of being an 
outstanding water company 
delivering service excellence. 
We needed a brand to reflect this.

How?

We listened to feedback from 
our customers, employees and 
stakeholders.

What?

The shorter name and consistent 
visual identity makes us look more 
modern and ready for the future.

Moving forward under a renewed banner
Operating and Financial Review

SES Water Annual Report 201720



is our primary contact channel with SES 
Business Water and all the other retailers. 
They will be monitoring our performance 
against the required standards and 
ensuring we make any improvements 
needed. The team has also taken the lead 
in training employees on the changes 
to our ways of working and ensuring 
understanding of our Compliance Code 
which outlines how we will comply  
with the relevant regulatory and  
legal requirements. 

Our promises to customers (see pages 
9 to 19 for a full breakdown of our 
measures and performance)
Our last Business Plan made a number 
of promises to our customers focused 
around delivering six aims.

Overall Aim – Continue to be a well-run, 
respected and successful business:
We are a local company and are proud 
to have served the community for over 
150 years. This year we have donated 
over £9,000 to support local causes. 
As well as giving money to charities, 
including our long-standing support 
to WaterAid and also our ‘Give-a-Day’ 
scheme where we donate employees’ 
time, we seek ways to make a positive 
impact on the community. For instance, 
guides and brownies in Horley are 
enjoying safer access to their meetings 
thanks to us laying a new driveway 
outside their hall whilst we were also 
renewing water mains in the town. 
Further afield, we have donated thirty 
of our old computers to Sierra Leone 
for use by a charity supporting street 
children and orphans.

Our overall 2016 Employee Engagement 
Survey results were disappointing but 
a reminder that we must continuously 
look for ways to improve engagement 
across the business. While some scores 
had slipped from 2015, others showed 
an encouraging increase, particularly for 
customer focus and innovation. At the 
last quarterly Employee Engagement 
Forum of the year, discussion was very 
constructive with one of the topics being 
the need for employees to be more 
proactive in looking for ways to develop 
including ways they can learn about 
the business. 

Having a dedicated Innovation Manager 
is helping to achieve momentum in 
implementing many improvements 
across the business and progressing the 
way we work. Many timesheets have 
been moved to an electronic system and 
our inspectors now use mobile devices, 
drastically cutting down on paperwork 
and increasing efficiency.

Moving forward under a renewed banner

Overhauling our procurement processes 
to buy goods and services more 
efficiently took a major step forward 
with a new Procurement Forum focusing 
on centrally negotiating agreements, 
undertaking joint procurement with 
partners and reducing the number of 
suppliers we use. One success included 
a joint appointment of a specialist 
supplier providing reservoir and water 
tower maintenance in collaboration with 
Portsmouth Water and Dee Valley Water. 

Ensuring the health and safety of our 
employees, contractors and the public 
is extremely important and there were 
only two lost time accidents this year. 
There was one ‘dangerous occurrence’ 
reported to the Health & Safety 
Executive under the Reporting of Injuries, 
Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences 
Regulations 2013 (RIDDOR). This was 
due to the unintentional release of 
chlorine gas within the confines of a 
building at one of our treatment works. 

Aim 1 – To provide a reliable and 
sufficient supply of safe, high quality 
drinking water:
Some supply interruptions are 
unavoidable as we do work to improve 
the long-term resilience of our network. 
We continue to invest in ways to reduce 
the number of interruptions necessary 
due to planned activity. The number of 
customers whose supply was interrupted 
for over three hours was considerably 
fewer than last year, equating to a 30 per 
cent improvement and well within our 
target. As a result, we expect to earn a 
reward under Ofwat’s incentive schemes 
for our achievement in reducing the 
inconvenience to customers.

The number of bursts is a key measure of 
the general condition and performance 
of our network so it is encouraging to 
report only 234 bursts this year which is 
well below the target of 290 and 10 per 
cent lower than the long-term average. 

We have achieved 99.98 per cent for 
the Overall Drinking Water Quality 
Index in 2016. There were only two 
breaches of the water quality standards 
at customer properties that impacted 
our performance and one of those was 
completely outside of our control as it 
related to high concentrations of nickel 
in the water due to leaching from the 
customer’s tap. The other failure, for 
iron at a customer’s tap, followed a 
localised short-term increase in flow that 
may have been due to illegal hydrant 
use. We have continued to prosecute 
organisations which persist in using 
our hydrants illegally and thereby 

compromising the quality of supplies 
to customers. We achieved 100 per 
cent compliance for standards at our 
treatment works. 

There were 375 contacts from customers 
during the year about the taste, odour and 
discolouration of their water. This is above 
our challenging target but far fewer than 
in the previous year which shows that the 
measures we have put in place, such as 
improved communication and innovative 
ways of carrying out essential repairs and 
renewals, are working.

In September, we connected a 
communication pipe (the pipe from the 
mains supply to a property boundary) to 
an isolated main which resulted in one 
customer receiving unwholesome water, 
contravening water quality regulations. 
The Drinking Water Inspectorate (DWI) 
investigated and issued a warning 
letter but since the incident we have 
implemented a number of remedial 
measures to prevent it happening again.

Aim 2 – Offer good value for money and 
keep bills at a fair and reasonable level:
With just 6.3 per cent of customers 
considering that their water bill is not 
good value for money, this is fewer 
than last year and well within the 
target of 15 per cent. The average 
household bill was £186, less than a two 
per cent rise on the previous year. We 
communicate regularly on the range 
of options available for those suffering 
financial hardship, including the Water 
Support tariff which continues to attract 
customers who find it difficult to pay 
their bill.

Our Debt Recovery team scored 25 out 
of 25 following an audit in February by 
the Consumer Council for Water, the 
statutory consumer body for the water 
industry. The score is based on our debt 
recovery processes and we are the 
first company in the water industry to 
achieve top marks. This demonstrates 
our commitment to reducing bad 
debt and supporting customers facing 
financial hardship.

Aim 3 – Increase the resilience of our 
network to drought, flooding and 
equipment failure:
No restrictions were put in place this year 
but there was a prolonged period of dry 
weather in the last six months of 2016. 
Despite some wet weather returning in 
January, we kept a close eye on our water 
resources, especially our groundwater 
sources which were below average but 
provide 85 per cent of our supplies.
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Our continued commitment to investing 
in infrastructure means we have one 
of the lowest burst mains and leakage 
levels in the UK. As well as renewing over 
11 kilometres of mains this year, work 
has continued to significantly redevelop 
our Woodmansterne Water Treatment 
Works in Chipstead. £22 million is 
being spent in total and in July the new 
soakaway lagoon was completed and 
is now fully operational. The three year 
programme is due to be completed 
in 2018.

In July we signed new long-term 
contracts with both Clancy Docwra 
and J. Murphy & Sons Limited who 
both play a significant role in improving 
our network, including mains renewal 
and building pipelines. We have 
been working more consistently and 
efficiently together - including changing 
processes, office space and systems - to 
benefit customers and the ‘One Team’ 
programme is putting our vision for 
closer contractor working relationships 
into practice.

Aim 4 – Deliver consistently high levels 
of service:
Satisfaction with the overall water 
service we provide remains above target 
and higher than last year. However, 
our Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM) 
score places us second from bottom in 
the national league tables and we have 
also seen an increase in complaints. 
Huge efforts have been made to 
improve, including a new Customer 
Relations team, and customers are 
satisfied with their water but still say 
there is more we need to do when 
they have a need to contact us. This is 
clearly not a position we want to be in 
and improving our service and score 
remains a priority. In addition to the 
actions that are already being taken, 
such as streamlining processes and 
recruiting more employees into our call 
centre, we are also reviewing our key 
customer journeys to ensure the service 
we offer to customers is as good as it 
can possibly be. 

Aim 5 – Reduce our impact on the 
environment while seeking to make a 
positive contribution to its quality:
Managing leakage is one of our 
customers’ top priorities and therefore a 
key area of focus for us, ensuring that we 
continue to be one of the top performing 
companies for leakage management. 

This year we installed 6,542 water meters 
through both home moves and customer 
applications, which exceeds the internal 
target we set ourselves to help meet 

our commitment to reducing customer 
usage. This is especially important as 
we have one of the highest levels of 
usage in the country as well as a growing 
population. Promoting water efficiency 
to customers continued and received a 
boost with the launch of our new Water 
Savings Calculator in collaboration with 
Save Water Save Money.

Reaching over 10,000 children and adults 
through our education programme this 
year means we have continued to help 
them place more value on the water 
they use to make small changes that will 
benefit the environment. Our presence 
at summer events in 2017 will be even 
more impactful thanks to the work that 
has taken place this year to secure a new 
interactive, branded trailer.

We had one minor pollution incident 
which resulted in clean water entering 
a water course from a burst pipe.

Our 12 Environmental Representatives 
within our business promote the 
‘green agenda’ in all that we do which 
includes initiatives such as producing 
free electricity and reducing paper 
consumption by increasing e-billing, 
online payslips and secure printing.

Our dedicated employees
Following last year’s success in 
obtaining Investors in People (IIP) 
Silver recognition, undoubtedly one 
of our greatest accomplishments this 
year has been being awarded Gold, 
something that only five per cent of 
accredited companies achieve. The 
assessment in January saw us meet 
18 new evidence requirements, on 
top of the 154 already achieved for 
Silver. Some of the highlights included 
employees demonstrating a much 
greater awareness of our vision and 
values, managers having a consistent 
approach to our work-life balance whilst 
still meeting business needs and some 
really positive feedback on the trust and 
openness of the Company. We chose 
to be a part of IIP to show that we 
have what it takes to lead, support and 
manage our employees for sustainable 
results. It is rare for an organisation to 
progress so quickly from Silver to Gold 
and the scheme has added real value in 
helping us understand our capabilities 
and gain new insights into how we 
can improve. 

We have recruited new people from 
outside the Company into some key 
roles this year, which reflects our 
desire to bring in specific expertise 
to help move the business forward. 

Notably, Tom Kelly joined us in January 
as Wholesale Services Director and 
brings with him a wealth of operational 
experience from different sectors. He 
has been busy working closely with 
teams to understand the opportunities 
and challenges that exist and is keen to 
find ways for the Company to exceed 
our goals. Retail Services has the most 
contact with customers and is therefore 
a key part of the business. Our vision is 
to deliver service excellence so we have 
brought in Daniel Lamb who has held 
a number of senior customer service 
management positions to head up 
the department. 

We would not have been able to achieve 
all that we have this year without the 
commitment of our employees and their 
response to a significant operational 
incident this year was testament to this. 
In February we temporarily closed Elmer 
Treatment Works due to a chlorine 
release inside the site. There was no 
wider risk to the public or local residents 
but individuals across the business 
involved in the initial response went 
above and beyond to ensure that the 
closure did not impact on customers’ 
water supplies. Long hours, little sleep 
and disruption to personal lives was 
felt by many at all levels. Thanks to 
their invaluable dedication the site was 
re-opened quickly and it was really 
encouraging to see that lessons learned 
during the major flooding at Kenley 
Treatment Works in 2014 were put into 
practice at Elmer. 

Our regulator
One of Ofwat’s roles is to set the price, 
investment and service package that 
customers receive as households are not 
able to choose their water supplier. They 
must balance the interests of consumers 
with the need to ensure companies can 
finance the delivery of services. Price 
controls are set every five years and 
will next be set in December 2019 with 
effect on bills from 2020 – this process 
is known as ‘PR19’. We will produce a 
proposed business plan for 2020–25 
which sets out what we want to deliver 
during that period. Although this is not 
submitted to Ofwat until September 
2018, work has begun this year on our 
customer engagement programme 
to ensure that extensive consultation 
with all stakeholders is carried out 
to help shape our early thinking. 
The programme, in three phases, is a 
combination of detailed research, such 
as workshops, interviews and surveys 
to gather specific views, supplemented 
with what we already know from our 
customers through the day-to-day 

Operating and Financial Review
Continued
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running of the business. The role of the 
Customer Scrutiny Panel (CSP) in the 
business planning process is to ensure 
and provide validation to Ofwat, that 
thorough engagement with stakeholders 
is genuinely reflected in the final plan. 
Hear more from Graham Hanson, Chair 
of the CSP, on page 28.

It is important that we communicate 
regularly about how we are performing 
against our targets. As well as releasing 
information at the end of the year 
in the Annual Report, we also hold 
stakeholder briefing sessions, provide 
quarterly updates to the CSP and include 
information on our website and other 
channels such as newsletters and bills. 

Financial performance
Turnover increased to £64.7 million 
(2016: £63.0 million). Operating cost 
increases were restricted to 1.4%, 
totalling £43.5 million (2016: £42.9 
million). Operating profits therefore 
increased by £1.1 million to £21.2 million 
(2016: £20.1 million). Interest charges 
increased by 16% to £9.2 million (2016: 
£7.9 million) largely as a result of higher 
inflation increasing the indexation charge 
on our £100 million index-linked bond. 
Interest receivable and similar charges 
generated £0.9 million (2016: £0.7 
million). As a result, profit before tax 
fell by £1.4 million to £12.9 million (2016: 
£14.3 million). Further reductions in 
future rates of corporation tax reduced 
the provisions we need to make for tax 
payable in future years, and restricted 
our accounting tax charge for the 
year to £0.4 million (2016: a credit 
of £0.4 million).

Capital investment
The Company’s latest five year 
investment programme has made good 
progress in the year, with £23.4 million 
invested in new and replacement plant 
and equipment (2016: £18.1 million). Our 
biggest ever capital project – the £22 
million upgrade of Woodmansterne 
Treatment Works – moved into the 
major phase of construction, with £7.7 
million invested in civil structures and 
mechanical plant on site. The project 
remains on track for commissioning in 
summer 2018, well ahead of the March 
2019 deadline. Also included in this year’s 
investment programme was a further 
£5.2 million for the ongoing replacement 
of pipes within our distribution 
network - selected according to their 
age, condition and performance - as a 
contribution to our stewardship of these 
critical underground assets. A further 
£3 million was invested in our network, 
including £1 million in enhancements 

to improve resilience by enabling more 
water to be moved around our supply 
area and £900,000 in pipes to supply 
new developments. 
 
Of the remaining £7.5 million, £3.1 
million was for water resources and the 
replacement of equipment at treatment 
works, pumping stations, service 
reservoirs and other operational sites. 
£1.8 million was invested as part of our 
ongoing programme of meter installation 
and £2.6 million on IT, vehicles, the 
laboratory and office equipment 
and renewals.
 
The major competitive tendering 
exercise to renew our principal 
infrastructure services contracts was 
completed in the first quarter of the 
year and the new collaborative way 
of working, integrating suppliers and 
employees in to one team to deliver 
shared targets, has quickly been 
embedded. Similarly, our strategic 
review of the way in which we procure 
all our goods and services – and the 
collaboration with a neighbouring water 
company on joint procurement exercises 
– has already started to deliver benefits 
through keener prices and more efficient 
ways of working. We see scope for 
further benefits in the future.

Net debt
Net debt for the Company at 31 March 
2017 rose by £7.3 million to £178.1 million 
(2016: £170.8 million), including £2.2 
million additional utilisation of facilities 
provided by the Royal Bank of Scotland. 
The carrying value of our £100 million 
index-linked bond was increased by 
£2.8 million due to the link to RPI (2016: 
£1.5 million). Cash and liquid resources 
decreased by £1.9 million in the year 
(2016: £3 million increase).
 
The level of gearing is a key ratio under 
the covenants associated with our index-
linked bond and is measured by the 
ratio of net indebtedness to regulatory 
Capital Value (RCV). The RCV is indexed 
by movements in RPI and linking of our 
principal debt instrument to the same 
inflation index provides an effective 
hedge against the impact of inflation. 
The ratio as defined by our bond was 
77% at 31 March 2017 (2016: 78.0%) – 
comfortably within the 80% permitted 
by our covenants.

Pensions
The Company is a member of the 
Water Companies Pension Scheme 
(WCPS), details of which are disclosed 
in the Financial Statements under 
the requirements of IAS 19(R). A net 

pension scheme asset of £25.2 million 
(2016: £23.8 million) is included in the 
balance sheet.

The last funding valuation was carried 
out by the Pension Scheme Trustee at 
31 March 2014. Actuarial valuations are 
required to adopt more conservative 
assumptions than those used for 
accounting purposes, and the valuation 
indicated a small deficit in our element 
of the fund of £1.9 million. The Company 
agreed with the Pension Scheme 
Trustee’s proposal that contributions to 
the deficit would continue at the rate 
agreed under the previous actuarial 
valuation (at March 2011), which were 
sufficient to eliminate the current deficit 
by the end of April 2017. The next 
actuarial valuation (at 31 March 2017) 
is now underway and will be finalised 
before next year’s Annual Report.

Anthony Ferrar
Managing Director
6 July 2017
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Managing our Risks

Risk management is embedded in the culture of 
the business, and the Company views the careful 
management of risk as a key activity. It maintains a 
formal register in which risks are recorded, assessed 
and ranked in terms of likelihood of occurrence and 
magnitude of impact. Each risk is owned by a named 
senior executive.

Risk Effect Impact before 
mitigating actions

Mitigations Impact after 
mitigating actions

Operational 

Cyber attack Interference 
with operational 
controls

Loss of personal 
data

• Multiple layer security

• Controlled access to Company systems 

• Participation in expert forums

• Regular testing of security measures 

• Employee awareness training.

Water quality  
failure, including  
by deliberate acts

Poor quality  
water supplied to 
customers – failure  
of statutory duty

• Security measures on all sites

• Detailed control procedures for all treatment and 
network activities 

• Automated controls on treatment processes

• 24-hour manned Control Room 

• Extensive sampling regime

• In-house quality accredited laboratory.

Water supply shortage Customer demand  
not met

• Detailed water resource management planning

• Maintaining ability to treat peak demand at water 
treatment works 

• Improving resilience and flexibility of network

• Protection of assets from risk of flooding 

• Customer metering policies

• Water efficiency education and 
communication programmes 

• Customer consultation for long-term 
business planning

• Ability to isolate damaged network and  
re-route supplies 

• Experienced staff and contractors on 24-hour 
standby arrangements 

• Clean-up and remediation contractors engaged.

Regulatory  

Failure of economic  
regulation

Insufficient 
funding for 
Company to  
fulfil its duties

• Stable and transparent regulatory regime

• Detailed business planning process, including 
customer consultation 

• Strong regulatory focus for management

• Effective relationship with regulator

• External assurance for key regulatory submissions 

• Appeal mechanism available for key 
regulatory decisions 

• Contingency plans developed.

Compliance with 
legal obligations

Compliance failure 
leads to regulator 
action

• Employee awareness training

• Formal processes for compliance with 
market codes

• Dedicated resources

• Independent assurance

• Active participation in market development.

Regulatory compliance Compliance 
failure leads to 
reputational or 
financial damage

• Stable, experienced management team 

• Adequate resourcing accorded priority

• Well-established procedures for ensuring 
compliance 

• Internal governance hierarchy

• Independent external assurance.
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This register also acts as a means of monitoring the 
effectiveness of mitigating actions. The Audit Committee 
reviews the register twice a year and reports to the Board 
on its reviews.

Risks are grouped under four main headings – operational, 
regulatory, financial and people – and take into account 
financial and reputational impacts. The principal risks that 
the Board considers affect the Company at present are shown 
below. This is not intended to be a comprehensive analysis 
of all risks and may change over time. The way in which some 
of these risks have manifested themselves, and been mitigated, 
in the report year is described in other sections of this report.

Low 
likelihood

Medium 
likelihood

High 
impact

Medium 
impact

Low 
impact

High  
likelihood

Risk Effect Impact before 
mitigating actions

Mitigations Impact after 
mitigating actions

Financial  

Financing Increase in 
borrowing costs 
breaches financial 
covenants

• Debt exposure linked to increase in regulatory 
capital value of business

• Ring-fenced accounts funded to ensure 
compliance

• Governance arrangements for monitoring 
forecast covenant ratios 

• Detailed treasury controls at key 
measurement points 

• Independent audit of key covenant ratios

• Pension deficit monitoring in place.

Failure of billing system Temporary loss  
of revenue

• Stable billing system supported by experienced 
system provider 

• Detailed controls for any changes to system 
or environment

• Full disaster recovery arrangements in place and 
tested annually 

• Adequate liquidity for temporary loss of 
billing capability.

Cash collection rates Loss of revenue 
and increased 
collection costs

• Affordability testing of future prices 

• Variety of payment options offered

• Discounts available for genuine financial 
difficulties (including a Water Support tariff)

• Experienced collections staff with detailed 
local knowledge

• Mixture of field-based employees and external 
legal advisors to optimise collection performance.

People 

Loss of large numbers 
of staff

Failure of 
normal business 
operations

• Health benefits including flu injections offered 
to employees 

• Staff consultation and engagement to avoid 
industrial action 

• Health and safety given priority at highest level 
in the Company 

• Cross-training and flexible working practices 
across functions 

• Annual disaster recovery exercises

• Industry mutual aid arrangements.

Recruit, retain 
or develop high 
quality staff

Degradation 
of service to 
customers and 
business success

• Competitive employment conditions and 
employee benefits 

• Investors in People Gold recognition

• Regular appraisals and staff recognition schemes 

• Commitment to staff training and development

• Employee engagement surveys and forums.

Inappropriate action  
by employees

Damage to 
customer service, 
Company 
reputation or 
finances

• Code of Conduct and Business Ethics 
promulgated to all staff

• Effective internal controls over systems and 
processes, including segregation of duties

• Training and performance reviews for all staff. 

The UK’s planned exit from the European Union could impact any of the Company’s risks or generate new ones. The implications 
are considered as information becomes available and are captured as part of the risk management process.
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Our values define who we are, guide our behaviours 
and underpin everything we do.

Compassion

We care about the effects of our 
actions and seek to make a positive 
impact on the community

We regularly receive thank you letters from school 
children who have visited Bough Beech Reservoir. 
As future customers, we hope to have a positive impact 
on their water usage and ensure they understand and 
respect the environment we live in. This is what a year 
five student at Dormansland Primary School thought 
about a recent visit:

“I would like to thank you for our exciting trip to Bough 
Beech. I learnt many things including how the water gets 
from the reservoir to our taps. I really enjoyed everything 
and I now know so much about the treatment works. 
I also really enjoyed walking across and under the dam 
and reservoir. Because I have been to Bough Beech, I will 
try and save as much water as possible to help save the 
planet. Thank you for letting us come.”

Commitment

We are passionate about our 
work, act responsibly and care 
about quality

Mrs Day of Banstead wrote in thanking us for 
identifying and repairing a leak which highlights 
employees’ commitment to their work:

“This is just a short appreciation to thank you for the 
excellent work you did in finding a leak from my 
underground water pipe. I was not aware anything 
was wrong until one of your employees informed me 
I seemed to be using more water than usual. From that 
time, everything snowballed and within a short time the 
leak was found, a new pipe by-passed the faulty one and 
the surface of the land was returned to its previous state. 
Many thanks to the chaps who did all the hard work 
and also the girls on the phone who were so friendly 
and helpful.”

Service

We put our customers first and take 
pride in our service delivery

Laura Allen took a call from an irate customer who 
was unhappy with the leak adjustment he had received. 
She managed to calm the customer down and took 
him through the process step-by-step. The customer 
was very happy by the end of the call:

“I would like to take the time to acknowledge 
absolute customer satisfaction with Laura 
Allen. I was a difficult customer and very 
frustrated with bill after bill, having had a leak 

and just moved into a new property. 
Laura’s patience and more so expertise 
in such a complex field was fantastic. I am 
passionate about customer service and is the 
line of work I am in. I can count on one hand 
over 20 years those that genuinely are experts 
in their field, care and have the personality to 
bring a frustrated customer around.”

Making a difference in every  
aspect of our business

Our Values in Action
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Integrity

We are accountable, ethical and 
trustworthy

The staff in our garage workshop are known for being 
really helpful but the Foreman Allan Jones took that 
one step further by saving one customer over £2,000 
on the quote they were given for fixing their car at 
a main dealership.

After looking at the vehicle and the repair work that had 
been recommended by the other garage, Allan found the 
only work necessary was to replace the front brake pads 
at a cost of £126! He showed great integrity and levels of 
service and also gave the customer advice about how to 
lodge a complaint with the dealership concerned.

Collaboration

We are respectful, welcome 
diversity and are supportive 
of each other to achieve our goals

Mrs Kiely from Sutton was really grateful for SES Water 
and SES Home Services working together to repair her 
leaking toilet:

“I found a crack in the toilet which caused it to 
leak. With it being the only toilet in the house 
I called SES Water for advice. They arranged 
for their sister company, SES Home Services, 
to fix the leak straight away. I was very 
impressed with the water company’s ability 
to respond so quickly to our emergency - the 
customer advisor understood our situation 
and dealt with the matter as if it was their 
own problem. I could not thank them enough 
for their assistance and recommending the 
services of a reputable plumbing company.”

Innovation

We seek to improve our business 
to be forward thinking and to 
embrace change

Following a leaking hydrant at the Royal Marsden 
Hospital in Sutton, we worked closely with our 
partners, Clancy Docwra, to use an innovative piece 
of equipment to limit disruption to both hospital 
patients and staff. 

In 2016 we invested in a ‘hydrant wizard’ which enables 
the whole fire hydrant to be renewed without shutting 
off the water. It was two days of difficult digging but by 
day three the team had dug the hydrant up, replaced 
it and carried out a reinstatement. The Royal Marsden’s 
Fire Risk Manager, Paul Bishop, was on the scene and 
told the team how grateful he was that the water supply 
was not interrupted and was very impressed with their 
hard work and efficiency throughout. 

Gordon Wyatt, Engineering Section Manager said: 

“Many of our values were demonstrated 
during this job including collaboration with 
Clancy Docwra, the innovative hydrant 
wizard and compassion in handling our 
sensitive customer.”
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The UK Corporate Governance Code 
defines corporate governance as the 
system by which companies are directed 
and controlled. It is about what the 
Board of a company does and how 
it sets the values of the Company.

The Board of Directors, led by myself 
as chairman, takes its responsibility 
for the governance of this Company 
very seriously. Good governance is 
based on the underlying principles of 
accountability, transparency, probity 
and focus on the sustainable success 
of the business over the longer term. 

Strong and effective governance policies
Introduction to Governance

A message from Graham Hanson, 
Chairman of the Customer Scrutiny Panel

The Company’s Customer Scrutiny Panel (CSP) brings together 
stakeholders that reflect the interests and expectations of 
customers in the area. This includes water regulators and 
those that have a customer’s perspective to contribute.

I am the independent Chair and, alongside members of the 
Panel, we are asked to advise, scrutinise and challenge the 
Company in the development and implementation of the 
Company’s current five year business plan. We will also 
provide independent assurance to Ofwat on the quality 
of the Company’s customer engagement and the extent 
to which this is reflected in future business plans.

The Panel is grateful for the way the Company, at all levels, has 
shown openness and willingness to help. In addition I interact 
with a national network of similar independent Panel chairs 
from other water companies, which provides a further resource 
independent of the Company. 
 
During the year we have challenged and advised on a wide 
range of issues. We have and continue to explore with 
SES Water what its customers want and need; how it engages 
with its stakeholders; and how it meets the needs of those on 
low incomes or in vulnerable circumstances. Much progress 
has been made with most performance commitments met this 
year and a few proving more elusive. The CSP is assured that 
the Company has a clear operational focus and attention on 
enhancing its customer experience. 

In this section of the Annual Report we 
will explain our roles and how we have 
put the principles of good governance 
into practice.

I am pleased that Graham Hanson, 
Chairman of the Company’s independent 
Customer Scrutiny Panel, has agreed to 
contribute to this report by explaining 
how the Panel approaches its regular 
reviews of how successfully the 
Company is fulfilling the promises it has 
made to its customers. Having a strong, 
independent voice on how well we are 
performing is an invaluable contribution 
to our governance processes.

A message from Alison Thompson, Local 
Consumer Advocate for the Consumer 
Council for Water

My role is to speak up for the interests of SES Water’s 
customers on behalf of the Consumer Council for Water 
(CCWater), which is the independent voice for water 
consumers across England and Wales.

As a member of the CSP, I am delighted to have established 
productive, open relationships throughout the business. As 
a working mum of two boys, I understand the needs of busy 
families and the chance to help shape the water industry for 
the benefit of all customers, both now and in the future, is 
something I take very seriously.

Over the last year, I have been robust in challenging the 
Company on issues including; billing, customer engagement 
and satisfaction and promoting its social tariff. The Company 
has responded positively but there is scope for further 
improvement and they recognise this. 

Given challenges in the region of securing a resilient, long-
term water supply, demonstrating leadership in this area and 
working hard to increase the uptake of water meters to help 
meet the Company’s commitment of reducing customer usage, 
will continue to be vital.

I’d like to take this opportunity to thank 
all the members of the Board for their 
contributions and support over the last 
year and look forward to the future with 
confidence. 

Jeremy Pelczer
Chairman
6 July 2017
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Board structure

Governance dashboard

Board of Directors

Audit  
Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible 
for monitoring and reviewing 

the integrity of the financial and 
regulatory reporting process and the 
effectiveness of internal controls and 

risk management systems.

Murray Legg 
Chairman

Remuneration 
Committee

The Remuneration Committee 
is responsible for making 
recommendations on the 

remuneration policy and application 
of the policy in relation to executive 

directors’ remuneration and 
approving the design and targets 
for the Company’s performance-

related related pay schemes.

Dave Shemmans
Chairman

Nomination  
Committee

The Nomination Committee is 
responsible for reviewing the size, 
structure and composition of the 

Board, including contributing to the 
annual review of Board performance 
and planning for orderly succession 

of Board members.

Jeremy Pelczer
Chairman

How the Board spent its time

10% Governance 

34% Strategy 

8% Market reform

29% Performance 

9% Deep-dive 
discussions 

10% Finance 

Read more on page 53 Read more on page 46 Read more on page 44

Read more in the Corporate Governance Report on page 35
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Directors and Advisors

Jon Woods
Non-executive Director

Skills and experience  
Jon has 20 years’ experience in the food and 
drinks sector gained at Cadbury Schweppes, 
AB Inbev and now Coca-Cola. Jon joined the 
Board on 1 March 2016.

Current external appointments
Jon is the General Manager for Coca-Cola 
Great Britain & Ireland and a Director of  
a number of its associated companies.

Jeremy Pelczer 
Chairman, Non-executive

Skills and experience
Jeremy was elected Chairman in April 2013. 
He has a financial background and is a 
qualified accountant. He moved into the water 
industry in 1996 and was CEO and President 
of American Water from February 2004 until 
December 2005. He was the Chief Executive 
of Thames Water from November 2005 
until its sale was completed in December 
2006. From 2007 to 2013 Jeremy was Chair 
of Water UK and from 2010 to 2016 he was 
Chair of WaterAid International. Prior to his 
appointment as Chairman of the Company 
he held the position of Non-Executive Director 
at South Staffordshire Water plc since 2010.

Current external appointments
Jeremy is currently the Chairman of East 
Surrey Holdings Ltd, of Cylon Controls Ltd and 
of Agua Via Ltd and a Director of Landara Ltd 
and G2O Water Technologies Ltd.

Chairman Executive Directors

Anthony Ferrar 
Managing Director 

Skills and experience
Anthony joined the Company in 2008 after  
15 years as the Finance Director and Company 
Secretary of Bournemouth & West Hampshire 
Water plc. He has previously worked in UK 
and overseas contracting, manufacturing 
and service industries.

Current external appointments
Anthony is a Director of a number
of associated companies, a member  
of the Board of Water UK and a Trustee  
of Water Companies Pension Scheme.

John Chadwick 
Finance and Regulation Director  
and Company Secretary

Skills and experience
John joined the Company in 2009. His previous 
role was as a senior manager at Ofgem. Prior 
to that he worked for Thames Water for nearly 
20 years in finance and regulatory positions.

Current external appointments
John is a Director of a number
of associated companies.

Dave Shemmans
Non-executive Director

Skills and experience
Dave joined Ricardo, a global engineering, 
strategic and environmental engineering 
consultancy, in 1999. Prior to joining Ricardo 
he was Operations Director and co-founder 
of Wavedriver Limited (a subsidiary of 
PowerGen plc). He has also gained consulting 
and management experience in both listed 
and private companies. Dave holds a degree 
in electronics and is a graduate of the Harvard 
Business School. 

Current external appointments
Dave is the Chief Executive Officer of  
Ricardo plc and a Director of a number  
of its associated companies.

Murray Legg
Non-executive Director

Skills and experience 
Murray is a chartered accountant who spent 35 
years with PricewaterhouseCoopers in the UK 
where he held a variety of senior management, 
governance and client roles. As a partner, 
he spent 15 years auditing and advising 
major UK utilities and a variety of listed and 
unlisted companies in other sectors. From 
2005 to 2013 he was a member of the PwC 
international network’s Global Governance 
Board, and he also served on the PwC UK 
firm’s governance body. 

Current external appointments  
Murray is also a Non-executive Director 
of GlobalData plc. He joined the Board 
on 1 October 2015.

Independent Non-executive Directors

A R

N

A AR R

N

N NN

R
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Yoichi Sakai
Non-executive Director

Mr Sakai joined the Board on 1 November 2016.

Current external appointments
He is the Unit General Manager, Infrastructure 
Business Unit of Sumitomo Corporation 
Europe Group. 

Auditor
KPMG LLP
15 Canada Square 
London E14 5GL

Solicitors
Blake Morgan
New Kings Court
Tollgate
Chandlers Ford
Hampshire SO53 3LG

Shareholder Nominated Non-executive Directors Key to Committees

Board diversity

Advisors

Ryuichi Nishida
Non-executive Director

Ryuichi joined Osaka Gas in 1988 and has  
held various positions including in natural  
gas procurement and deregulation of the 
Japanese gas market. He joined the Board  
on 1 April 2015.

Current external appointments
Ryuichi is the Managing Director of Osaka 
Gas UK Ltd. Full details of the other external 
appointments are listed on page 45.

A Audit

R Remuneration

N Nomination

 Member

 Chairman

Bankers
Royal Bank of Scotland
280 Bishopsgate
London EC2M 4RB

Lloyds Bank
Horley
Surrey RH6 7BJ

Property Consultants
Jones Lang LaSalle
22 Hanover Square
London W1S 1JA

Registered Office
Sutton and East Surrey Water plc
London Road, Redhill
Surrey RH1 1LJ

Non-executive Director tenure

17% 0-1 year

33% 1-2 years

17% Over 3 years

33% 2-3 years
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The directors present their report and audited financial statements for the Company for the year ended  
31 March 2017.

Ownership and relationship with associated companies
The Company is jointly owned by the major Japanese businesses, Sumitomo Corporation and Osaka Gas.  
Each has a 50% stake in the UK-based holding company Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Ltd. The full corporate 
structure is shown below. Except where indicated, all companies within this corporate structure are domiciled  
in the UK for tax purposes.

Sumitomo Corporation 
Europe Ltd

Sumitomo Corporation 
(Japan)

Summit Water 
Limited

Osaka Gas  
UK Limited

Sumisho Osaka Gas  
Water UK Limited

East Surrey  
Holdings Limited

Sutton and East  
Surrey Water plc

Non-Regulated 
Companies

50%

100%

100%

100%

80%- 
100%

SESW Holding 
Company Limited

Osaka Gas 
(Japan)

50%

Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Ltd is entirely financed by shareholders’ equity.

The immediate parent of the Company is SESW Holding Company Limited, a company established at the time 
that the Company’s £100 million index-linked bond was issued in March 2001 to protect the interests of bond 
holders by exercising control over distributions. The Company is an associate of other trading and property 
businesses within the East Surrey Holdings Group, transactions with whom are disclosed in the Regulatory 
Accounts on page 104.

Principal activities
The Company is engaged principally in the supply of water across the London Boroughs of Croydon, Merton and 
Sutton, as well as east Surrey and parts of Kent and Sussex.

Directors’ Report
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Financial results and dividends
Financial performance for the year is described on page 20 in the Operating and Financial Review.

Turnover for the year ended 31 March 2017 was £64.7 million (2016: £63.0 million). Profit on ordinary activities 
before taxation was £12.9 million (2016: £14.3 million). A profit of £12.5 million (2016: £14.7 million) was transferred 
to reserves, out of which a dividend was paid to shareholders.

Details of ordinary dividends declared and paid during the year are given in note 8 of the Financial Statements. 
The total dividend declared and paid for the year ended 31 March 2017 was 11.5 pence (2016: 11.5 pence) per 
ordinary share and 7.8 pence (2016: 7.8 pence) per preference share.

In addition, a one-off dividend of £2.0 million was paid from non-appointed activities on 3 April 2017.

Dividend policy statement
The Board considers that a base level of ordinary dividend for the appointed business should reflect the return on 
regulatory equity (defined as Regulatory Capital Value less net debt) allowed in the regulator’s most recent price 
review, subject to the Company having adequate resources available to fulfil its overall service commitments and 
its other financial obligations. This includes compliance with the covenants associated with its index-linked bond 
(which are designed to protect the interests of the Company’s creditors).

The Board will consider variations from this base level of ordinary dividend reflecting:

• The overall level of service delivered to customers, compliance with statutory obligations and progress with the 
delivery of regulatory and other obligations

• Financial performance against regulatory assumptions and internal targets.

Performance for each year against these and a broader set of performance measures is described in detail in this 
Annual Report.

The dividend paid by the appointed business for the year ending 31 March 2017 was £2,800,000.

Dividends from non-appointed activities undertaken by the Company will be determined based on the financial 
performance and prospects of these activities and their anticipated need for future investment.

Greenhouse gas emissions
Greenhouse gas emissions are calculated using the UK Water Industry Research Carbon Accounting Workbook 
which is updated annually to reflect changes to emission factors and carbon reporting guidance from the 
Government. Operational greenhouse gas emissions in 2017 were 25,108 tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent 
(tCO2eq) (2016: 27,789 tCO2eq), a 9.6% reduction on the previous year. This equates to 420 kgCO2eq per million 
litres of treated water (2016: 470 kgCO2eq).

Operational greenhouse gas emissions for the regulated business include:

• Direct emissions from Company vehicles and fossil fuel use
• Indirect energy use emissions from the purchase of electricity
• Emissions from outsourced services, business travel and transportation and distribution of purchased electricity.

We have solar panels installed at four of our treatment works to help manage our emissions. In 2017 we generated 
202,339 kWh of electricity (2016: 217,150 kWh).
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Charitable and political donations
During the year the Company made charitable donations amounting to £9,799 (2016: £9,009). There were no 
political donations (2016: £nil). The largest donations to UK charities were £5,748 to Macmillan Cancer Support, 
£581 to the Defence Medical Rehabilitation Centre at Headley Court and £535 to WaterAid.

Payment to suppliers
Settlement terms are agreed with suppliers as part of the contract terms and it is the Company’s policy to pay 
in accordance with these terms. Other creditors are paid in accordance with invoice terms. Creditor days have 
increased marginally at approximately 29 days (2016: 26 days).

Going concern and long-term viability
The going concern and long-term viability statements required by the Disclosure and Transparency Rules are set 
out on page 41 of the Corporate Governance Report and are incorporated by reference in this report.

Compliance of the appointed business with condition K
At 31 March 2017 the Company was in compliance with paragraph 3.1 of Condition K of its Instrument of 
Appointment. This paragraph requires that the water supply assets are protected by a ‘ring-fence’.

Subsequent events
On 3 April 2017 the Company sold its right to trade with non-household customers in its supply area to an 
associated company trading as SES Business Water for a consideration of £2.0 million. All associated assets and 
liabilities, including revenue for water supplied but not yet billed or paid for, were transferred at the same date 
under a Statutory Transfer Scheme approved by Ofwat.

An ordinary dividend of £2.0 million declared prior to year end was paid on 3 April 2017.

Disclosure of information to the auditor
The directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each 
aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and each director has 
taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant 
audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Auditor
Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution, the Company is not obliged to reappoint its auditor annually and  
KPMG LLP will therefore continue in office.

By Order of the Board

John Chadwick
Company Secretary
Redhill, Surrey
6 July 2017

Company number 02447875

Directors’ Report
Continued

SES Water  Annual Report 201734



Corporate Governance Report

Code on principles of good governance 
The Board has a code on principles of good governance and assesses compliance with the code on an annual 
basis. The Board takes its obligations for good corporate governance extremely seriously and applies standards 
appropriate to the nature and ownership structure of the business. These standards are kept under continuous 
review and will be amended in line with business developments and to reflect best practice. The code is based 
on five principles which are detailed below alongside the annual assessment of compliance.

1. Acting as if it is a separate plc
The Board will govern the Company in accordance with the standards applicable to an independent company 
listed in the UK, focusing exclusively upon the long-term interests of the Company. Subsequent principles in this 
code define what this overall principle means in particular areas.

The Board considers that it complies fully with this principle. The Board has defined matters it reserves to itself 
and has full powers to make decisions on behalf of the Company. The Board has established committees to 
consider key aspects of corporate governance. Final decisions affecting the Company have continued to be made 
by the Board.

2. Transparency
The Board will comply with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules and seek to explain the way in which the 
Company is governed in an open, accessible and balanced manner. This will include the relationship of the 
Company with any associates, including holding companies.

The Company has made disclosures in this Annual Report which meet the requirements of the April 2016 edition 
of the UK Corporate Governance Code. The terms of reference of its committees are published on the Company’s 
website. The relationship of the Company with its associated companies is set out on page 32. The Board 
therefore considers that it has achieved full compliance with the Disclosure and Transparency Rules.

Statement by the chairman  
on corporate governance

In a changing external environment, maintaining 
strong and effective governance by the Board 
requires close control of how the Board spends 
its time and deploys its expertise. In the last year 
the Board has regularly focused on the Company’s 
preparations for the introduction of competition  
into retail functions for eligible businesses and 
has been pleased with the smooth transition to a 
competitive environment on 1 April 2017, vindicating 
the strong governance exercised over this 
fundamental change for the whole sector. 

The second year of progress with delivery of the 
commitments we made to customers in our last 
business plan has also received close attention 
from the Board, who have been content with 
progress on many fronts but remain disappointed 
by the Company’s performance on customer 
service, as measured by Ofwat’s Service Incentive 
Mechanism, and have considered regular updates 
on progress with improvement plans. The Board has 

also continued to look to the future and the plans 
being made for the next regulatory review, and has 
allocated non-executive directors to provide targeted 
support and challenge on some of the key themes 
for our next business plan – stakeholder participation, 
resilience, affordability, and innovation. The Board 
is only able to address such full and challenging 
agendas through the dedication, expert knowledge 
and wide experience that Board members bring to 
our discussions. I would like once again to thank my 
fellow directors for their continuing commitment to 
maintaining the highest standards required. 

The membership of the Board is regularly  
evaluated to make sure there is an appropriate 
breadth and depth of skills and experience and its 
composition remains consistent with principles for 
good governance and Ofwat’s guidance related to 
board leadership, transparency and governance. 
After significant changes in the composition and 
responsibilities of the independent non-executive 
directors in previous year, there has been only one 
change in the composition of the Board in 2016/17. 
Seiji Kitajima stood down from the Board as one  
of the two shareholder representatives and was 
replaced by Yoichi Sakai with effect from 1 November 
2016. The Board records its appreciation for Seiji’s 
contribution during the period of his appointment.

Jeremy Pelczer
Chairman
6 July 2017
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3. Board skills 
The Board will maintain an appropriate balance of skills, experience, independence and knowledge of the 
Company and will consider these factors in making appointments and in assessing Board performance.

The Board’s Nomination Committee considers the composition of the Board and the skill and experience  
required from new appointments. The current Board contains members with a mix of experience and expertise 
and significant experience of other plc Boards. All new directors receive appropriate induction. The Board carried 
out a formal review of its performance in November 2015 and will do so every two years. During the course of 
the year the performance of individual Board members was reviewed, the results of which are described on page 
38. The Board considers that it fully complies with the principle of maintaining an appropriate balance of skills, 
experience, independence and knowledge of the Company.

4. Independent representation 
The Board will ensure that directors independent of management and shareholders are the single largest group 
on the Board and any of its committees. A senior independent non-executive director is appointed to act inter alia 
as a channel for Board communication with regulators.

The Board has three non-executive directors who are independent of management and shareholders, one of 
whom has been appointed as the senior independent non-executive director. The Board also comprises two 
executive directors, two shareholder representatives and myself as chairman who had a connection with a 
shareholder prior to my appointment. Independent non-executive directors continue to form the largest single 
group on the Board.

5. Board committees 
The Board will maintain as a minimum Nomination, Audit and Remuneration Committees on which independent 
non-executive directors will form a majority.

The Board has Nomination, Audit and Remuneration Committees on which independent non-executive directors 
form a majority. 

The Company’s ultimate holding company in the UK also applies a code on governance which is published on 
page 42.

Corporate governance statement
The Board considers it has fully complied with the main principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code and its 
application. Any reasons for not applying specific provisions of the Code, is described in the following sections.

Role of the Board
The Company is controlled through its Board. The Board’s main role is to ensure that the business is run properly 
in accordance with its regulatory and other obligations for the benefit of its customers and to create long-term 
value for shareholders. In fulfilling this role the Board approves the Company’s strategic objectives and ensures 
that the necessary financial and other resources are made available to enable management to meet those 
objectives. The Board, which meets at least six times a year, has reviewed and agreed a schedule of matters 
reserved for its approval.

The matters reserved for Board approval are:

• Strategy and management – including approval of the Company’s long-term objectives, regulatory and 
commercial strategy and budgets

• Structure and capital – including share issues and borrowings
• Financial reporting and controls – including annual and interim accounts and dividends
• Maintenance of a sound system of internal controls and risk management
• Approval of significant contracts above agreed levels
• Board membership and other appointments
• Remuneration
• Delegation of authority, including Board committees and division of responsibilities between the chairman  

and the managing director
• Corporate governance matters
• Policies, including code of conduct, health and safety, environmental, corporate responsibility and  

charitable donations.

Corporate Governance Report
Continued
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The Board continues to dedicate a full day each year to consideration of strategic issues, including the Company’s 
options for responding to developments in the regulatory regime and market competition. This creates a shared  
understanding for subsequent more targeted strategic discussions at regular meetings. The Company’s 
preparations for the opening of a competitive market for eligible businesses, including the arrangements for the 
transfer of the Company’s retail activities in this sector to an associated company, continued to feature on every 
Board meeting agenda. The smooth transition to a competitive market on 1 April 2017 vindicated the strong 
governance the Board had exercised on this fundamental change for the industry.

Progress with the delivery of performance commitments the Company made to its customers in its last  
business plan has also remained a focus in the second of the 2015-2020 period, when performance relative to 
other companies started to be visible across a range of measures. The Board has been particularly focused on the 
Company’s disappointing performance against Ofwat’s Service Incentive Mechanism and has considered regular 
targeted reports on improvement plans and progress. 

Whilst dedicating appropriate time to governance matters (including receiving reports from the regular meetings 
of the Board’s committees), and finance matters (including approval of annual budgets, major capital projects 
and contracts, and ordinary dividend payments), the Board has continued to emphasise the importance placed 
on health and safety, high environmental standards, resilience and employee engagement by dedicating time to 
special focus sessions on these topics during the year.

Roles and responsibilities
The division of responsibilities between the chairman and managing director is clearly defined and has been 
approved by the Board. The table below details their individual roles and responsibilities and highlights the 
specific duties of the senior independent non-executive director and company secretary.

Chairman Managing Director

Jeremy Pelczer is responsible for:

• The effective operation, leadership and governance  
of the Board

• Ensuring the effectiveness of the Board
• Setting the agenda, style and tone of Board 

discussions, including ensuring a focus on strategic 
and business critical decisions

• Ensuring all directors make an effective 
contribution to the Board through debate and 
discussion, balancing the executive, independent 
non-executive and shareholder nominated  
non-executive contributions

• Ensuring directors receive accurate, timely  
and clear information.

Anthony Ferrar is responsible for:

• Development of strategic plans for consideration 
by the Board

• The performance of the Company in line with the 
strategy and objectives agreed with the Board  
and under powers delegated by the Board

• Ensuring the Board is supplied with information 
relevant to its role

• Leading executive directors and senior 
management in dealing with the operational 
requirements of the business

• Providing clear and visible leadership in  
business conduct.

Senior Independent Non-executive Director Company Secretary

Murray Legg is responsible for:

• Acting as a ‘sounding board’ for the chairman  
and as an intermediary for other directors

• Acting as lead contact for the independent non-
executive directors of Ofwat

• Leading the Board’s annual assessment of the 
chairman’s performance.

John Chadwick is responsible for:

• Under the direction of the chairman, ensuring 
effective information flows to the Board and its 
committees, and between senior management  
and non-executive directors

• Advising the Board, through the chairman and 
managing director, on all governance matters

• Securing, where appropriate, independent 
professional advice for directors at the  
Company’s expense

• Facilitating induction activities for new directors 
and assisting with their agreed development needs.
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Composition of the Board
Seiji Kitajima stood down as a shareholder nominated non-executive director on 1 November 2016 and was 
replaced by Yoichi Sakai.

The Board benefits from the varied skills and experience of its independent non-executive directors and chairman. 
Following significant changes in the composition and responsibilities of the independent non-executive directors 
in the previous year, this year has been one of stability, enabling the enhancement of shared experience of the 
business and forming a strong platform for informed constructive challenge on all issues. 

Independent non-executive directors
The independent non-executive directors constructively challenge and help develop proposals on strategy 
and bring strong, independent judgement, knowledge and experience to the Board’s deliberations. The Board 
considers that they have always been of sufficient calibre and number to ensure that their views carry significant 
weight in the Board’s decision making. The Company has found that the composition of the Board, with its mix of 
executive, independent non-executive and shareholder nominated non-executive directors, has proved effective 
in ensuring that all stakeholder interests can be addressed and decisions taken by the Board on all matters of 
strategy, policy and planning affecting the business.

Significant commitments of the directors held outside of the Company are disclosed prior to appointment and any 
changes are disclosed over the duration of the appointment. Current appointments are disclosed on pages 30, 
31 and 43. All directors are required to allocate sufficient time to the Company to discharge their responsibilities 
effectively and the position in practice is reviewed as part of the annual review of Board members’ effectiveness.

The chairman is not listed as independent, which is a departure from the UK Corporate Governance Code, as he 
was nominated by Sumitomo Corporation on its acquisition of the Company. The Board continues to find him 
independent of character.

The chairman meets with the independent non-executive directors at least annually without executive  
directors present.

The directors have a right of access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary and have the 
opportunity to take independent, professional advice in the course of their duties at the Company’s expense.  
Day-to-day conduct of the Company’s business is entrusted to the executive directors and their senior 
management colleagues.

The Board receives monthly management reports and operates a system of review against strategic objectives 
and targets. The non-executive directors are not employees of the Company.

Evaluation of Board performance
The chairman conducted the latest regular evaluation of the performance of non-executive directors in March 
2017, at the same time as the senior independent director undertook a parallel review of the way in which the 
chairman had fulfilled his duties in the last twelve months. These reviews concluded that non-executive directors 
continued to deploy their skills and experience diligently and effectively, ensuring that the chairman and the 
Board was able to continue fulfilling its responsibilities well. No changes were made to the terms of reference of 
the Board’s formal committees, which the Board considered were operating effectively. The latest versions of all 
committees’ Terms of Reference are available from the Corporate Governance section of the Company’s website.

Training and development
Directors are primarily responsible for their personal development and for compliance, where appropriate, with 
the continuing professional development requirements of their respective professions. The Board also receives 
regular updates on legislative, regulatory and other governance developments, including briefings from external 
specialists as appropriate. In addition, the Board periodically visits the Company’s water treatment works and 
enquires into operational policies, practices and procedures.

Corporate Governance Report
Continued
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Board effectiveness
The Board met seven times during 2016/17. Committees met as required and considered regular and ad hoc 
business. Attendance at meetings by directors is summarised below.

Directors Board
Audit  
Committee

Remuneration 
Committee

Nomination 
Committee

Jeremy Pelczer 7/7 – 2/2 2/2

Murray Legg 7/7 5/5 2/2 2/2

Dave Shemmans 7/7 5/5 2/2 2/2

Jon Woods 6/7 4/5 2/2 1/2

Ryuichi Nishida 7/7 – – –

Seiji Kitajima 3/3 – – –

Yoichi Sakai 4/4 – –  –

Anthony Ferrar 7/7 – – 2/2

John Chadwick 7/7 – – –

The Board has also established ad hoc committees to consider key risk items, including the strategy for power 
purchases (an Energy Risk Management Committee) and for managing the Company’s exposure to risks 
associated with the defined benefit pension scheme (a Pensions Risk Management Committee). Both are chaired 
by the senior independent non-executive director and comprise non-executive and executive directors with 
such other senior executives and external advisors as are appropriate for the matters to be considered. During 
the year the Pensions Risk Management Committee monitored the performance of the scheme, considered the 
implications for its future funding and options for changes to the investment strategy for parts of the scheme,  
and agreed appointed new advisors to support the Company through the forthcoming triennial valuation. 

System of internal control
The directors acknowledge that they are responsible for the Company’s system of internal control. Such a system 
is designed to manage rather than to eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only 
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement. 

The Board has reviewed the effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal control, including control of 
financial, operational, and compliance matters and risk management. It confirms that the Company has complied 
with its own system of internal controls, detailed below, and that this system meets the requirements of the UK 
Corporate Governance Code for the year ended 31 March 2017.

The Company’s system of internal control is founded upon the following key features:

1. Control environment
The directors have put in place an organisational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and 
delegation of authority. The Company has a clearly defined policy on whistle-blowing, which is detailed in the staff 
handbook, and includes access to independent and confidential advice. The Company’s Code of Conduct and 
Business Ethics policy, which has been approved by the Board, has been drawn to the attention of all employees 
and published on the Company’s intranet.

2. Risk management
Managing business risk to enable opportunities is a key element of all activities. This is done using a framework 
which provides a consistent and sustained way of implementing the Company’s values. Business risks, which may 
be strategic, operational, reputational, financial, regulatory or environmental, are reviewed regularly by the Audit 
Committee and discussed by the Board. An overview of key business risks and the mitigations the Company has 
established are presented on pages 24 and 25.

3. Information systems
There is a comprehensive budgeting system with an annual budget approved by the Board. At each Board 
meeting, monthly trading results, balance sheets and cashflow statements are reported against the corresponding 
figures for the budget and the forecast for the full year is reviewed.
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4. Control procedures
There are clearly defined policies for controlling expenditure including appropriate authorisation levels. Larger 
projects and major investments require Board approval. Arrangements for ensuring the Company complies with 
the ‘level playing field’ requirements of the new competitive market for eligible businesses have been defined and 
training provided to all employees.

5. Monitoring system
The Company’s internal financial, operational and compliance control systems have been reviewed in the 
context of evolving legal and regulatory requirements and additional assurance procedures have been agreed 
and implemented. The Company consulted on a draft targeted assurance plan for 2016/17 and has published 
its final assurance plan on its website. The Audit Committee has reviewed the application of this targeted 
assurance plan and has reported its conclusions to the Board. The Committee has also considered the need for 
a dedicated internal audit function in the light of the development of the Quality and Compliance function since 
its establishment in 2014. Having agreed a programme of internal audits to be undertaken by a combination of 
internal and external resources, the Committee has concluded that a separate internal audit function is not needed 
at the present time. The monitoring and control arrangements operated in the year are considered adequate, with 
only minor potential enhancements identified.

Taxation strategy 
SES Water regards full compliance and responsible conduct in all aspects of its obligations for taxation liabilities 
as a fundamental part of being a well-run and respected business.

This taxation strategy, which has been approved by the Board, is designed to ensure that the Company:

• Only undertakes tax planning activities that seek to comply with both the spirit and the letter of the law
• Avoids any action or behaviour that might be interpreted as aggressive tax avoidance
• Maintains an open, transparent and professional relationship with HMRC reflecting mutual respect and a 

collaborative working relationship
• Maintains an effective governance and risk management framework that ensures these objectives are 

implemented in practice.

We consider that these objectives will ensure full compliance with the HMRC framework for co-operative 
compliance.

The Company recognises that the majority of the benefit to be gained from reducing taxation liabilities will, under 
the regulatory process for controlling charges to our customers, ultimately benefit customers through reduced 
bills rather than benefit shareholders. The Company considers this an integral part of the incentive based regime 
for monopoly service providers in England and Wales.

The Company’s effective tax rate on reported profits will vary from year to year – and from the standard rate of 
UK corporation tax – due to the availability of tax deductions for capital investment and pension contributions. 
These deductions arise from the tax incentives for investment and employee retirement provisions that have been 
maintained by the Government explicitly to encourage such investment. The Company considers that utilising 
such incentives is entirely consistent with being a well-run and respected business.

Tax risks are encompassed within the Company’s general risk management framework (described on pages 
24 and 25). This framework considers the reputational and financial impact of potential risks, the likelihood of 
occurrence, and the impact of mitigating actions. In any particular year the principal tax risks arise from changes 
in legislation or the interpretation of taxation law in practice, leading to higher taxation liabilities than have been 
allowed for in prices charged to customers. 

The Company operates solely in England and its customers are all based here. All of the Company’s profits are 
taxable in the UK.

In addition to corporation tax, the Company makes further contributions to national finances in the form of 
business rates, employers’ national insurance contributions, environmental taxes and other regulatory levies, 
including charges for abstracting water from the natural environment.

Corporate Governance Report
Continued
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Fair, balanced and understandable assessment
The Board has given careful consideration to whether the Annual Report and accounts, taken as a whole, is fair, 
balanced and understandable in accordance with the requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code.

The preparation of this document is overseen by the executive directors with input from senior executives from 
across the business. The whole has been reviewed in detail by the Audit Committee, which has noted the close 
personal involvement of directors who are involved in the day-to-day operation of the business and therefore 
well-placed to ensure the accuracy of matters reported, and the thorough assurance processes which underpin 
the reliability of key performance information. The Board is therefore satisfied that the document meets the 
requirements of the UK Corporate Governance Code in this respect.

Going concern
The Company’s activities, together with the factors that are likely to affect its future development, performance 
and position are set out in the Strategic Report on pages 20 to 27. The financial position of the Company is set 
out on pages 62 to 79. Note 16 of the Financial Statements on pages 77 to 78 sets out the Company’s position in 
relation to risks associated with financial instruments, credit and interest rates and describes the Company’s risk 
mitigation measures.

After making appropriate enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate 
resources to continue its operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial statements 
continue to be prepared on a going concern basis.

Long-term viability statement
The directors have assessed the viability of the Company to the end of the current price control period in March 
2020, taking account of the Company’s current position, performance and the potential impact of the principal 
risks documented in the Strategic Report. 

The directors have considered the resilience of the Company’s financial position based on its medium-term 
business plan, the principal risks facing the business in severe but plausible scenarios, and the effectiveness of 
any mitigating actions. Particular consideration has been given to the ability of the Company to comply with 
the financial covenants associated with its £100 million index-linked bond under a range of scenarios, including 
different inflation and interest rates and costs unforeseen relative to the Company’s economic and operating 
environment. The Company’s strong liquidity position and committed borrowing facilities, its key potential 
mitigating action of restricting dividend payments and the protections exercised by the financial covenants and 
structural ring-fencing under the terms of the £100 million index-linked bond have also been taken into account.

Annual compliance with financial covenants is subject to external assurance and certificates of compliance with 
the broader covenants of the £100 million index-linked bond are issued annually to the independent Controlling 
Finance Party. The Company’s medium-term financial projections are considered annually at the Board strategy 
day and the results of stress-testing are reviewed by the Audit Committee. 

Based on this assessment, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company will be able to fulfil its 
obligations, including meeting its liabilities as they fall due, over the period to March 2020. 

Beyond March 2020 the directors draw comfort from the protections which exist under the regulatory regime 
which places a duty on Ofwat to ensure that efficient water supply companies are able to finance their functions. 
There are currently significant uncertainties about the approach that will be taken to funding allowances – 
particularly for existing long-dated debt – that will need to be resolved to ensure the financeability of the 
Company beyond 2020, but the directors are confident that a fair and reasonable settlement of longer-term 
financing requirements can be agreed as part of the forthcoming Price Review.
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SUMISHO OSAKA GAS WATER UK LIMITED (SOGWUK)
Code of corporate governance principles
As the ultimate holding company of Sutton and East Surrey Water plc (the ‘regulated company’), we recognise 
that the principles which govern our code of corporate governance (the ‘Code’) should: i) take into account the 
areas where our activities may have the greatest direct impact on the regulated company; and ii) complement the 
corporate governance principles of the regulated company.

Accordingly, we have established this Code to address these considerations as well as regulate and enhance our 
activities in terms of transparency, risk management and long-term decision making.

1. We shall ensure that our holding structure is transparent and explained in a clear way. This structure,  
together with any changes, shall be demonstrated and explained in the Annual Report of the regulated 
company each year.

2. We shall provide clear information on our debt and equity structures. This structure, together with any changes, 
shall be demonstrated and explained in the Annual Report of the regulated company each year.

3. We shall be transparent in declaring the interests of our directors. We shall demonstrate this transparency  
by having a clear internal process for disclosure and publishing a list of such interests in the Annual Report  
of the regulated company each year.

4. We shall disclose and explain any matters at the regulated company level which are reserved for our Board  
in the Annual Report of the regulated company each year.

5. In carrying out our activities we shall ensure that we fully understand and take into account, particularly at 
Board level, the duties and obligations of the regulated company contained within statute and its Licence.  
In particular, we shall refrain from any action which would cause the regulated company to be in breach  
of any of its obligations.

6. In order that the regulated company may assess any potential impact on its activities and its exposure to risk, 
we shall provide the regulated company with any information that it reasonably requests about the activities of 
our wider group. Further, we shall proactively disclose to the regulated company any issues or information that 
may have a material impact on its activities.

7. We recognise the importance of supporting the regulated company in a way that allows it to run its business  
as if such company were an independent public listed company.

8. We recognise the importance of supporting the regulated company in order that it can make strategic and 
sustainable decisions in the interests of the regulated business for the long-term.

9. We shall regularly review this Code to ensure that it meets the standards of current best practice. Any changes 
to this Code shall be reported in the succeeding Annual Report of the regulated company.

Approved by the Board in June 2014.

Corporate Governance Report
Continued
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The corporate structure disclosures required under the first two principles of the Code are shown on page 32. 
 
The interests of directors to be disclosed under the third principle of this Code are shown below.

Name Position at SOGWUK Description of interest

Shinichi Hasegawa Director Director of Summit Water Limited, Director of Aguas de Reuso del Tenorio, 
S.A. de C.V, Director of Concesionaria de Aguas Residuales de Juarez, S.A. 
de C.V., Director of Eastern Water Co. Limited, Director of Interchina Water 
investments Co., Ltd, Director of Soluciones Especializadas en Tratamiento 
de Agua, S.A. de C.V., Director of Summit Global Management V B.V., 
Director of Muscat City Desalination Company S.A.O.C.

Graham Holman Director and  
Company Secretary

Director and Company Secretary of Sumitomo Corporation Europe Ltd., 
Director of East Surrey Holdings Ltd., Director of Summit Water Limited, 
Director of Sutton and East Surrey Water Services Ltd. and Director of  
The Japan Society.

Masaya Kyo  
(to 31 March 2017)

Director Managing Director of OG Capital Co Ltd., Director of OG Sports Co Ltd.

Takayoshi Kubo 
(from 1 April 2017)

Director Managing Director of OG Capital Co Ltd., Director of OG Sports Co Ltd.

Ryuichi Nishida Director Managing Director of Osaka Gas UK, Ltd., Director of S2 Operation & 
Maintenance Company W.L.L., Director of Ruwais Power Company PJSC, 
Director of Shuweihat 2 Holding Company Limited, Director of S2 Japan 
Holding B.V., Director of Planta de Regasificación de Sagunto, S.A.,  
Director of Iniciativas de Gas S.L. and Erogasmet S.p.A.

There are no matters in relation to Sutton and East Surrey Water plc upon which decisions are reserved to 
Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Ltd.
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Membership Responsibilities

Jeremy Pelczer
Dave Shemmans
Murray Legg
Jon Woods 
Anthony Ferrar

• Ensuring the Board and its committees have the right balance 
of skills, knowledge and experience

• Planning for orderly succession to the Board and ensuring 
that an effective succession planning system is in place for 
other senior executive positions

• Making recommendations to the Board on the appointment 
of any director

• Identifying and nominating suitable candidates for executive 
and non-executive director vacancies, having regard to, 
amongst other factors, the benefits of diversity, including 
gender diversity

• Contributing to the annual review of Board members’ 
performance, particularly in relation to the ability of non-
executive directors to devote adequate time to the  
Company’s business.

Attendees: Terms of reference:

Senior employees or external advisors may attend specific 
meetings by invitation.

The Committee’s full terms of reference as approved by the 
Board can be found in the Corporate Governance section of 
the Company’s website.

Nomination Committee Report

Statement by the chairman  
of the Nomination Committee

Following considerable change in the previous 
year, Board membership remained relatively 
stable in 2016/17. The Committee considered and 
recommended for acceptance the appointment 
of Yoichi Sakai as a replacement shareholder 
nominated non-executive director.

The Committee has focused much of its attention 
on succession planning and the smooth flow of new 
talent at senior levels in the Company, to enhance 
the development of the existing strong senior 
management team. The Committee is pleased to 
note the recruitment of two new senior executives 
to fulfil the existing roles of Head of Household 
Retail Services and Wholesale Services Director. 

My thanks go to Lester Sonden for his many years 
of service for the Company and for his continued 
support as Technical Director allowing for a smooth 
transition of responsibility for the Wholesale 
Services division.

The annual review of the effectiveness of individual  
Board members concluded that the Nomination 
Committee continued to fulfil its objectives 
appropriately. 

Jeremy Pelczer
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
6 July 2017
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Activities of the Committee
The Nomination Committee met twice during the year, focusing upon succession planning arrangements within 
the Company, and the performance of the Committee and individual directors as part of the annual review of 
Board members’ effectiveness. Jeremy Pelczer does not chair the Committee when it discusses his performance 
as chairman.

The Committee considered shareholder nominations for a new appointment to the Board following the  
standing down of the Sumitomo Corporation nominated non-executive director. Having reviewed the skills  
and experience of the candidate, and noted the feedback from a pre-appointment discussion with Ofwat,  
the Committee was pleased to recommend to the Board the appointment of Yoichi Sakai.

The Committee has continued to devote considerable attention to succession planning at executive director  
and senior management levels within the Company, recognising the importance of a smooth flow of new  
talent alongside the continuous development of the Company’s existing employees to enable the Company  
to thrive in a challenging and changing business environment. We have been particularly pleased to recruit  
a new Wholesale Services Director and a Head of Household Retail Services with the skills and experience  
to enhance the Company’s strong senior management team. 

The annual evaluation of the effectiveness of Board members enabled the committee to review the contribution 
of all directors to the effectiveness of the Board. The Committee was pleased to confirm that it considered all 
directors were contributing appropriately to the maintenance of high standards of corporate governance. The 
effectiveness of the Committee was considered by the Board as part of the same annual evaluation. The Board 
concluded that it remained satisfied that the Committee continued to perform its duties in line with its terms 
of reference.
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Membership Responsibilities

Dave Shemmans
Jeremy Pelczer
Murray Legg 
Jon Woods

• Making recommendations to the Board on the framework 
for remuneration of the managing director, chairman and 
other members of the senior management team

• Approving the design of and determining targets for 
the Company’s performance-related pay schemes and 
approving total annual payments under such schemes

• Determining the total individual remuneration package 
of each executive director including, where appropriate, 
bonuses and incentive payments

• Determining policy for and scope of pension arrangements 
and service agreements for executive directors and 
designated senior executives

• Ensuring that disclosures of remuneration comply with  
the relevant regulations and obligations applicable to  
the Company.

Attendees: Terms of reference:

The managing director attends meetings for all business  
other than any business relating to his own remuneration.  
The company secretary or his nominee acts as secretary  
to the Committee.

The Committee’s full terms of reference as approved by the 
Board can be found in the Corporate Governance section of 
the Company’s website.

Remuneration Committee Report

Statement by the chairman  
of the Remuneration Committee

In the second year of delivering on the promises 
made to our customers in our business plan for 
2015-20, the Committee has been focused on 
the effectiveness of the incentive schemes for 
executives, senior management and all staff 
introduced prior to 1 April 2015. Full details of the 
achievements against the targets shared by all 
employees – and the consequent bonuses payable 
to executive directors – are set out in this report. 

The Committee also oversaw remuneration 
arrangements for senior executives and managers 
joining the Company and was pleased to see that 
the existing policy framework continues to prove 
effective in attracting talent that will be well suited 
to contributing to the success of the Company for 
many years to come.

Dave Shemmans
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
6 July 2017
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Remuneration Policy Report
The Company’s remuneration policy is designed to attract and retain good quality senior executives having 
regard to other UK-based businesses. It provides for a remuneration package, the variable element of which 
reflects the Company’s performance against customer service, operational and financial objectives. The Board 
considers that the performance element of the remuneration package is appropriate given the main activities 
of the Company. Full details of each component of executive directors’ remuneration applicable for the twelve 
months commencing 1 April 2016 are shown in tabular format below.

Base salary

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Opportunity

Performance metrics

Core element of fixed remuneration, reflecting the size and scope of the role. 
Purpose is to recruit and retain directors of the calibre required for the business.

Reviewed annually and normally fixed for 12 months commencing 1 April.
Whilst executive directors are contractually entitled to an annual review of their salary, there is 
no entitlement to an increase as a result of this review.
Salary levels are determined by the Committee taking into account a range of factors including:

• Role, experience and performance
• Prevailing market conditions
• External benchmarks for similar roles at comparable companies.

Increases in base salaries are reviewed in the context of salary increases across the Company 
as a whole. The Committee considers any reasons why increases should diverge from this 
benchmark, including:

• Increase in scope, complexity or responsibility of the role
• Increase on promotion to executive director
• A salary falling significantly below market positioning.

Not applicable, although contribution and overall performance in the role are taken into 
account in determining whether any increase in base salary should be awarded, and if so,  
at what level.

 

Benefits

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Opportunity

Performance metrics

Ensures the overall package is competitive.
Purpose is to recruit and retain directors of the calibre required for the business.

Executive directors receive benefits in line with market practice, which include a car allowance, 
private medical insurance and life assurance.
Other benefits may be provided based on the role and individual circumstances. These may 
include, for example, relocation and travel allowances.

Set at a level which the Committee considers appropriate against the market and provides  
a sufficient level of benefit based on individual circumstances.

Not applicable.

Retirement benefits

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Opportunity

Performance metrics

Purpose is to recruit and retain directors of the calibre required for the business. 
Provides market-competitive post-employment benefits.

Executive directors are eligible to participate in the Company’s defined contribution pension 
scheme (or such other pension plan as may be deemed appropriate) and, if a member before 
closure of the scheme, the Company’s defined benefit scheme.
The defined benefit scheme was closed to new entrants from 1 May 2002. Any executive 
director who is a member of the closed scheme can continue to receive benefits in accordance 
with the terms of the scheme. Neither executive director is a member of the defined  
benefit scheme.

The executive directors have personal pension plans.

Not applicable.
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Annual bonus

Purpose and link to strategy

Operation

Opportunity

Performance metrics

Rewards performance against annual targets which support the strategic direction  
of the Company.

Annual targets include shared corporate targets for the levels of service to customers and 
other aspects of operational performance, financial performance, and individual targets for the 
achievement of personal goals. 
Targets are set by the Board (advised by the Remuneration Committee) before the start of 
each financial year and are assessed following audit of the Company’s financial statements and 
independent assurance of the levels of service achieved, prior to publication of the Company’s 
Annual Performance Report and signature of the Risk and Compliance Statement (as published 
on page 105).
As with all bonuses, they remain discretionary and can be adjusted or removed at the Company’s 
discretion, which is exercised by the Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board.

Maximum bonus opportunities are:

• Managing director – 55%.
• Finance and regulation director – 35%.

The weighting of annual targets across the three main categories described above are:

  Finance and 
 Managing Director Regulation Director

Customer service and operational performance 10% 5%
Financial performance 20% 15%
Personal targets 25% 15%

Customer service and operational performance targets comprise a weighted basket of measures 
(shared with all employees), with awards for achievement of between 90% and 105% of annual 
targets for each measure.
Financial targets are based on the Company’s budget for the year. Outperformance of budget 
only attracts award if overall customer service and operational targets have also been achieved 
in full. Personal targets reflect a combination of project, developmental and behavioural 
measures designed to support delivery of the Company’s strategic objectives.

Long-term incentive plan

Purpose and link to strategy 

Operation

Opportunity

Performance metrics

Rewards performance against longer term financial targets which support the strategic direction 
and value of the Company and the Group of which it is a part.

Targets for financial performance over three years for the Company and the Group of which it 
is a part are set by the Board (as advised by the Remuneration Committee) annually before the 
start of the three year performance period.
Rewards only crystallise if the shared corporate targets for the levels of service to customers and 
other aspects of operational performance (as applicable under the annual bonus) are achieved.
Performance is assessed annually following audit of the Company’s financial statements and 
independent assurance of the levels of service achieved, prior to publication of the Company’s 
Annual Performance Report and signature of the Risk and Compliance Statement (as published 
on page 105).
Rewards only become payable at the end of the three year performance period, when 
performance over the three year period as a whole is assessed.
Payments under the Plan will be funded by shareholders from Group funds.
As with all bonuses, they remain discretionary and can be adjusted or removed at the Company’s 
discretion, which is exercised by the Remuneration Committee on behalf of the Board.

Incentive payments for the three year period vary from on-target performance to maximum  
opportunities as shown below:
 On target Maximum available

Managing Director 70% 140% 
Finance and Regulation Director 60% 120%

Performance targets are for profit before tax and take into account forecast revenues for the 
appointed business (reflecting allowed revenues under Ofwat’s PR14 Final Determination)  
and growth targets for the other businesses in the Group. The balance of targets between  
the Company and the other businesses in the Group will be determined by the Board on an 
annual basis. 

Remuneration Committee Report
Continued
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Explanation of performance metrics applicable to the annual bonus
Performance metrics are selected to align with the Company’s strategy. The targets set are designed to be 
stretching and require year-on-year improvements in overall business performance. In setting stretching 
performance targets, the Committee takes into account a range of factors, including the Company’s medium-
term business plans, commitments to customers, regulatory and other obligations, and shareholder expectations.

Customer service and operational performance targets reflect the high standards of customer service, drinking 
water quality, reliability of supply, asset stewardship and health and safety that our customers and other 
stakeholders tell us are important to them. Annual targets include the Outcome Delivery Incentives accepted by 
the Company as part of the PR14 Final Determination from Ofwat, and in certain cases exceed the regulatory 
commitment. Failure to achieve the overall operational and customer service target acts as a bar to any reward 
for financial performance above target.

Financial performance targets are based on achievement of the Company’s annual budget, which is designed 
to ensure that resources are in place to deliver operational and customer service priorities as well as regulatory 
and other obligations and provide returns to debt and equity investors consistent with reasonable expectations. 
Compliance with the financial covenants associated with the Company’s principal external borrowings is 
assumed.

Personal targets focus upon critical areas of business development, including process and service enhancements, 
demonstration of the Company’s values, and employee leadership and development.

Remuneration scenarios for executive directors
In the illustrations of potential remuneration for executive directors shown below, the following assumptions 
have been made:

Fixed pay Annual bonus Long-term incentive

Minimum performance

Median performance

Maximum performance

Fixed elements of remuneration 
are base salary, benefits and 
pension.

Base salary and the value of 
benefits are those included in 
the single figure calculation on  
page 51. 

No bonus.

50% of potential annual  
bonus achieved.

100% of potential annual  
bonus achieved for delivering 
at or above the highest 
performance against the 
respective bonus targets.

No reward earned.

On target reward earned.

Maximum reward earned.

The charts below show the relative split of remuneration between the fixed pay (base salary, benefits and 
pensions), annual bonus and long-term incentive elements for each executive director under the three scenarios 
described above.

John Chadwick Key

Fixed pay

Annual bonus

LTIP

£000s

Anthony Ferrar Key

Fixed pay

Annual bonus
£000s

Minimum Median Maximum
0

100

200

300

400

500

Minimum Median Maximum
0

100

200

300

400

500
LTIP
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Non-executive director fees
Non-executive directors receive only a fee, which is set at a level that reflects market conditions and is  
sufficient to attract individuals with appropriate knowledge, skills and experience. Fees are based on the  
level of fees paid to non-executive directors serving on the Boards of comparable companies and the time 
commitment and contribution expected for the role. Fees comprise a basic fee plus enhancements for  
additional responsibilities including chairing committees. Non-executive directors representing shareholders 
receive no fees from the Company.

Fees are reviewed every two years and amended to reflect market positioning and any change in 
responsibilities. The Committee and managing director recommend the remuneration of the chairman to the 
Board. The chairman, managing director and company secretary recommend the remuneration of other non-
executive directors to the Board. Non-executive directors do not receive annual bonuses nor do they receive 
any benefits or pension contributions.

Pay and conditions for other employees
The Company aims to provide an overall remuneration package for all its employees that not only complies 
with any statutory requirements but is competitive with remuneration for equivalent skills offered by other 
comparable employers. Remuneration is applied fairly and equitably across all employees. In particular, the 
Company applies the same core principles to all employees, whether executive directors or the most junior 
members of staff, namely:

• Employees will be remunerated in a manner that underpins the long-term stability of the business
• Each role will be remunerated fairly and consistently with due regard to market conditions, internal  

consistency and the Company’s ability to pay.

Many elements of fixed pay, benefits and pension arrangements are common to all employees. In particular, 
employees all have the same rights to participate in the Company’s defined contribution pension scheme  
(and for those employees joining before 1 May 2002, the Company’s defined benefit pension scheme), the  
cash health plan introduced in 2014 and the employee annual bonus scheme introduced in 2015.

Annual pay awards for most employees are negotiated with employee representatives taking into account 
the Company’s ability to pay, comparable awards in other businesses, and increases in the cost of living for 
employees. Agreed awards are effective from 1 April each year. In the early part of 2015, agreement was reached 
with employee representatives for pay awards for the five years commencing 1 April 2015 comprising:

• A 2.2% increase in basic pay and associated allowances for the year beginning 1 April 2015
• Increases in basic pay and associated allowances linked to the annual increase in the retail prices index (RPI)  

to the previous November (to which the majority of the Company’s income is linked) for 2016/17 to 2019/20
• A guaranteed increase of 1% per annum for 2016/17 and 2017/18, and 0.5% per annum for 2018/19 and 2019/20
• The opportunity to earn an employee bonus of £250 per annum upon achievement of Company customer 

service, health and safety, and financial targets.

The Remuneration Committee takes into account the annual pay award for employees – along with the factors 
outlined above – when considering any basic pay award for executive directors.

Senior employees who are eligible for an annual bonus award share the same customer service, operational, 
financial and behavioural targets as the executive directors and also have personal targets set in the same 
manner and consistent with those of the executive directors.

Remuneration Committee Report
Continued
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Recruitment remuneration policy
When hiring a new executive director, the Committee will seek to use the policy detailed in the tables above  
to determine an appropriate ongoing remuneration package. If necessary to facilitate the hiring of an executive 
of appropriate calibre, the Committee may exercise discretion to include any other remuneration component or 
award outside this policy agreed with the Board. Appropriate costs and support will be covered if the recruitment 
requires the individual to relocate.

Application of Policy
Service contracts
The service contracts for executive directors are subject to twelve months’ notice when terminated by the 
Company and six months’ notice when terminated by the employee. The executive directors’ contracts 
commenced on the following dates:

Anthony Ferrar 1 May 2008
John Chadwick 10 August 2009

The non-executive directors, including the chairman, do not have service contracts and their appointments, 
whilst for a term of three years, may be terminated without compensation at any time. The chairman and  
the independent non-executive directors have letters of appointment. The appointments of the current  
non-executive directors commenced on the following dates:

Jeremy Pelczer 1 April 2013
Dave Shemmans  1 September 2014
Murray Legg 1 October 2015
Jon Woods 1 March 2016
Ryuichi Nishida 1 April 2015
Yoichi Sakai 1 November 2016

Single total figure of remuneration
The table below shows the total remuneration earned by each director in 2016/17, including annual bonuses  
in respect of performance against the targets shown on page 52.

      Long Pension  
   Base salary Taxable Annual -term related 
£000   and fees benefits bonus incentive benefits Total

Anthony Ferrar    187   21   67   13   40  328 
John Chadwick    126   13   38   11   33  221 
Jeremy Pelczer    60  – – – –  60 
Murray Legg     37  – – – –  37 
Dave Shemmans    34  – – – – 34
Jon Woods     31  – – – – 31

Totals 2017   475 34 105 24 73 711

Totals 2016   482 33 107 – 60 682

Base salaries for executive directors increased in line with salary increases for other Company employees. Annual 
bonuses were determined in accordance with the policy described on page 48, reflecting performance against 
the targets shown on page 54. A restricted award was made under the long-term incentive plan reflecting the 
strong financial performance of the Company. 

Anthony Ferrar and John Chadwick have personal pension plans, to which the Company makes contributions. 
Pension contributions for these directors amounted to £73,000 (2016: £60,000).

Fees for the independent non-executive directors have been set in accordance with the policy disclosed  
on page 50.

The chairman also acts as chairman of East Surrey Holdings Ltd, which remunerates him accordingly.

None of the other non-executive directors received any remuneration from the Company.
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Percentage change in remuneration for the managing director
The table below shows the percentage change in remuneration between the years ended 31 March 2017 and 
31 March 2016 for the managing director and for all employees.

      Salaries and fees Taxable benefits Annual incentive

Managing director     1% 5% -7%
Average for all employees    -1% -4% -2%

Relevant details of the annual bonus scheme
The targets shown below are common to all employees, including executive directors and senior management:

Topic      Target Achievement

Overall drinking water quality (%)     99.96% 99.98%
Service Incentive Mechanism (score)     Top half of industry Lower quartile
Interruptions to supply >3 hours (hours per total number of properties)  0.230 0.073
Leakage (megalitres per day)     23.9 24.3
Health and safety – number of incidents    4 3
Financial      Achieve budget Achieved

Executive directors and senior management also share two additional targets

Topic      Target Achievement

Number of customer contacts on taste,  odour and discolouration of water  <350 375
Number of meters installed at properties for first time   6,400 6,542

The weightings applied to the combined set of targets for the executive directors are shown on page 48.

Relative importance of employment costs
The table below shows the total cost of all of the Company’s employees compared to dividends paid and other 
significant spend.

£000      2017 2016 % change

Employee costs      13,426 12,608 6%
Dividends      4,566 4,566 0%
Capital expenditure      23,350 18,107 29%

Remuneration Committee Report
Continued
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Audit Committee Report

Statement by the chairman  
of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee has continued to focus on 
safeguarding the highest standards of integrity, 
financial reporting, risk management and internal 
controls within the Company. In doing so the 
Committee has spent time considering a broad 
range of topics, some which are new and others 
which have required particular focus this year.  
A summary of our main activities during 2016/17 is 
provided in this report. It is worth highlighting a few.

First, the preparations the Company was making 
for the implementation of a competitive market for 
retail activities involved in the provision of water 
and sewerage service to eligible businesses. The 
Company’s decision to ‘exit’ this market meant the 
focus of the Committee’s work was on the measures 
needed to effect this change efficiently and in a 
transparently compliant manner.

And second, reviewing the risks faced by the 
Company – and the mitigations already in place –  
to the threat to assets, controls and personal data 
(of both employees and customers) posed by 
malicious activity over the internet. As part of its 
work in this area the Committee has sought detailed 

assurance on how resilient the Company would be to 
multiple incidents occurring in quick succession and 
reviewed plans for handling such multiple threats. 

In all of these new matters, as well as the ongoing 
regular activities, I have been impressed by the 
insight, diligence and seriousness the Company 
applies to all its assurance activities.

The Committee has reviewed this Annual Report 
and accounts. It is able to confirm to the Board 
that it meets the requirements of the UK Corporate 
Governance Code by being, when taken as a whole, 
fair, balanced and understandable. It provides 
the information necessary for a user to assess 
the Company’s performance, business model and 
strategy. I am satisfied moreover that, as a result of 
the work undertaken during the year, the Committee 
has acted in accordance with its terms of reference 
and ensured that good financial practices have 
continued to operate throughout the Company.

Murray Legg
Chairman of the Audit Committee
6 July 2017
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Membership Responsibilities

Murray Legg
Dave Shemmans
Jon Woods

• Reviewing the form and content of the Company’s interim 
and year end accounts and results announcements

• Reviewing submissions to Ofwat, including annual 
performance reports, price control compliance, risk and 
compliance statements and periodic business plans

• Reviewing the effectiveness of internal controls and risk 
management systems

• Consideration of the need for an internal audit function 
within the Company

• Overseeing the relationship with the external auditor, 
including approval of fees payable, audit plans and 
assessment of their objectivity and independence.

Attendees: Terms of reference:

The chairman, managing director and the finance and 
regulation director attend each meeting by invitation. 
The external auditor attends meetings at least twice each year, 
and meets with the Committee without management present 
at least once every year. Other members of the financial and 
general management team attend meetings periodically 
by invitation.

The Committee’s full terms of reference as approved by the 
Board can be found in the Corporate Governance section of 
the Company’s website.

Composition and training
Murray Legg is considered by the Board to have recent and relevant financial experience because he is a 
chartered accountant who has audited and advised major UK utilities and a variety of listed and unlisted 
companies in other sectors in a series of increasingly senior roles at PwC for over 35 years. He is also the 
chairman of the Audit Committee for a UK listed company.

The Committee receives regular accounting and corporate governance updates as part of the agenda of 
each meeting as well as specific or personal training as required. Members of the Committee periodically visit 
water treatment works, the Bough Beech reservoir, and other sites where operational practices and issues are 
explained. Advice on regulatory developments is made available to the Committee from specialist advisors on 
regulatory matters.

Main activities
The Audit Committee met five times during 2016/17, and in June 2017 to consider this Annual Report. At each 
meeting the Committee operates to a formal agenda of items including the minutes and action points of the 
last meeting. This ensures that an accurate record of its deliberations has been maintained and actions are 
progressed. The Committee chairman also has preparatory discussions with the external auditor and, where 
necessary, with senior management prior to Committee meetings. He also personally reviews data, processes 
and assurance measures involved in key regulatory submissions. 

A significant focus for the Committee during the year was the preparations the Company was making for the 
implementation of a competitive market for retail activities involved in the provision of water and sewerage 
service to eligible businesses. The Company made an early strategic decision to ‘exit’ the retail market and 
transfer these activities to an associated company better equipped to succeed in a new market, enabling the 
Committee to focus closely on the measures needed to implement this strategic intent efficiently and in a 
transparently compliant manner. In particular the Committee:

• Received detailed reports and presentations from the Company’s own Quality and Compliance function and 
from KPMG on the Company’s progress against its milestones for delivering its market readiness programme, 
enabling the Committee to advise the Board on signature of the assurance letters required by Ofwat and the 
Secretary of State

• Considered the approach to an arms-length valuation of the activities to be transferred, receiving valuation 
assessments independent of management and benchmarked against available market intelligence, and 
recommending a valuation at which the Company should be prepared to dispose of the activities

• Considered the accounting treatment and disclosures appropriate to the transaction (which would take place 
on 1 April 2017)

• Considered the scope and charging policy for services to be provided from the Company to the associate,  
and arrangements for monitoring the operation of these activities in the following year.

Audit Committee Report
Continued
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The Committee has been pleased that this detailed oversight has contributed to the smooth implementation of 
the Company’s strategic decision, securing in a timely manner the necessary approvals to ‘exit’ the retail market 
from the Secretary of State, to transfer customers under a Statutory Transfer Scheme from Ofwat, and to release 
the relevant activities from covenants and debentures associated with the Company’s £100 million index-linked 
bond from the relevant security trustee.

In reviewing the risks faced by the Company – and the mitigations already in place – the Committee has given 
particular attention to the threat to assets, controls and personal data (of both employees and customers) posed 
by malicious activity over the internet. Whilst noting the effectiveness of existing protective measures (including 
awareness training for all employees and directors) and good progress against the enhancements identified by 
the independent review sponsored by Government, the Committee has also sought detailed assurance on how 
resilient the Company would be to multiple incidents occurring in quick succession. Dedicated reviews of plans 
for handling such multiple threats to water quality and cyber security underlined the seriousness with which the 
Committee considers threats from such malicious activities.

In addition to the other matters covered under separate headings below, during the year the Committee has  
also considered:

• Documents required by Ofwat to be published by the Company, including the Annual Performance Report 
(incorporating regulatory accounts, performance against PR14 Final Determination performance measures, 
and financial resilience measures); targeted assurance plans; and the Company’s wholesale and retail 
charges schemes

• The Company’s risk register, including reviewing and challenging at six-monthly intervals the management’s 
assessments of the key risks faced by the business, the probability of their occurrence and the impact of 
mitigation measures in place. The key risks from the Company’s latest risk register are illustrated on pages 24 
and 25 of this report

• The Company’s long-term viability statement, going concern assumption, tax policy statement and certificates 
of compliance with its Instrument of Appointment

• The Company’s compliance with covenants associated with its £100 million index-linked bond, including the 
maintenance of appropriate financial ratios and the funding of ring-fenced reserve accounts

• The operation of internal controls within the business and progress with management responses on detailed 
control points identified by external audits

• The operation of the Company’s compliance and assurance function, established in October 2014, and the 
associated programme of internal audits

• The timetable and procedures to be followed to replace KPMG as the Company’s external auditor, as required 
under the audit reforms effective from June 2016

• The procurement exercise for the establishment of environmental and engineering services consultancy 
framework contracts, which included the independent non-financial assurance work undertaken for the 
Company and reported to the Committee.
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Significant accounting judgements
In recommending the Annual Report and accounts to the Board for approval, the Committee reviewed 
significant issues, judgements and estimates reflected in the financial statements to ensure that appropriate 
rigour had been applied as part of the year end process.

The Committee considers that the key estimates and judgements are:

• The appropriateness of the Company’s policy for capitalising expenditure as fixed assets under FRS 101  
and the consistent application of the policy in the year – the Committee noted that the policy and practice  
was consistent with that adopted under previous accounting standards, continued to be applied in detail  
and was subjected to significant management and audit scrutiny

• The appropriateness of the accounting estimates and disclosures for the benefits provided to employees 
through the Water Companies Pension Scheme – the Committee concluded that the estimates applied by the 
Company’s actuarial advisors in calculating the annual cost and valuing the assets and liabilities associated 
with the defined benefit obligation were within the range typically adopted for prudent provisions in the 
current economic environment

• The appropriateness of the estimates and provisions for doubtful debts – the Committee supported 
management’s approach to provisioning, which remained the same as in the prior year, noting that collection 
performance for debt over one year old remained consistent with the basis of the provision made

• The need for provisions for outstanding claims – the Committee agreed that the basis of provisions made  
was prudent and realistic

• The impact of the escape of chlorine gas at the Elmer water treatment works – the Committee agreed that the 
impairment of assets was not expected to be sufficiently material to merit reflection in the 2016/17 accounts 
and would be more than adequately covered by reserves for replacing damaged assets already set aside by 
the Company’s insurers. 

Having considered a paper from management on the Company’s liquidity and forecast obligations for the 
immediate future and for the period to 31 March 2020 and having made appropriate enquiries of management, 
the Committee supported the directors’ assessment that the Company should adopt a going concern 
assumption for the preparation of the annual financial statements and should provide a long-term viability 
statement as set out on page 41.

Fair, balanced and understandable report
The April 2016 edition of the UK Corporate Governance Code requires the Board to consider whether the  
Annual Report is, when taken as a whole, fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information 
necessary for users to assess the Company’s performance, business model and strategy. The Board has asked 
the Audit Committee to advise on compliance with this important requirement.

In considering the advice to be given to the Board, we have reviewed the Company’s processes for ensuring 
the accuracy of information within this Annual Report, noting the continuous updates to the well-established 
processes for assurance of key performance measures (including those required for regulatory purposes) and 
underpinning the Company’s Risk and Compliance Statement to the Water Services Regulatory Authority (which 
can be found on page 105), as well as the financial controls and audit procedures for ensuring the integrity of 
the accounts. We have drawn further assurance from the close personal involvement of executive directors 
and senior staff in the preparation and review of the Annual Report, reflecting the detailed involvement that 
senior employees can have in the day-to-day operations and control of a business of the size and nature of the 
Company. Having reviewed drafts of the Annual Report, had enquiries answered to our satisfaction, and noted 
enhancements made to initial drafts, we are pleased to confirm to the Board that we consider it meets the high 
standards required by the UK Corporate Governance Code.

Audit Committee Report
Continued

SES Water  Annual Report 201756



External auditor
The Committee approved KPMG’s proposed approach for the year end statutory audit at their meeting in 
November. Following completion of the audit, the external auditor confirmed that no additional matters had 
arisen during the audit which would have required them to alter their planned procedures. The Audit Committee 
approved the management representations to the external auditor and also requested feedback from both 
management and the external audit team about the effectiveness of the audit carried out.

The Committee noted that KPMG had conducted an annual review of its independence, identifying all services 
provided to the Company and its associates and assessing whether the content and scale of such work was 
a threat to their independence. Note 3 to the statutory accounts (page 69) shows that the fees due to KPMG 
all related to audit or other assurance procedures on the Company’s statutory and regulatory obligations. The 
Committee concurred with the external auditor’s assessment that there are no factors which would impair their 
objectivity and independence. The Committee is satisfied that there are adequate safeguards in place to protect 
the independence and objectivity of the service provided by the external auditor, including a requirement for all 
non-audit work likely to exceed £10,000 to be approved by the chairman of the Audit Committee. In particular, 
the appointment of KPMG to undertake external assurance on the Company’s preparations for operating in 
a competitive market for business customers from 1 April 2017 was approved by the Committee following a 
competitive tendering exercise conducted by the Company.

The Company will be tendering the external audit in accordance with the audit reform requirements effective 
from June 2016.
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The directors are responsible for preparing the strategic report, the directors’ report and the financial statements 
in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they 
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable 
law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), adopting the FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they 
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that 
period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

• Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently
• Make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
• State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures 

disclosed and explained in the financial statements
• Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the 

Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain 
the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the 
Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.  
They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets  
of the Company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information 
included on the Company’s website. Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and dissemination of 
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in Respect of the  
Strategic Report, Directors’ Report and the Financial Statements
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Opinions and conclusions arising from our audit
1. Our opinion on the financial statements is unmodified
We have audited the financial statements of Sutton and East Surrey Water plc for the year ended 31 March 2017 
set out on pages 62 to 79. In our opinion the financial statements:

• give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2017 and of its profit for the year 
then ended; 

• have been properly prepared in accordance with UK Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 Reduced 
Disclosure Framework; and

• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Overview

Materiality:
Financial statements as a whole

£0.6 million (2016: £1 million)

1.0% (2016: 1.6%) of revenue

Coverage 100% (2016: 100%) of profit before tax

Risks of material misstatement vs 2016

Recurring risks Provision for doubtful debtors ��

Classification of costs between operating  �� 
expenditure and capital expenditure

2. Our assessment of risks of material misstatement
In arriving at our audit opinion above on the financial statements, the risks of material misstatement that had the 
greatest effect on our audit, in decreasing order of audit significance, were as follows (unchanged from 2016): 

The risk Our response

Debtors 
(£2.2 million;  
2016: £2.2 million)

Refer to page 56 
(Audit Committee 
Report), pages 65 to 
68 (accounting policy) 
and pages 69 to 79 
(financial disclosures).

Subjective valuation:
The water industry has a unique 
debtor profile mainly due to its 
customer base and the service 
provided. In order to assess the 
recoverability of these debts a 
detailed analysis of the debtor 
ageing is required, as well as 
a complex calculation. This is 
considered a key audit risk because 
an error in just one stage of this 
calculation, either through an 
inappropriate judgement taken 
or human error, could result in a 
material misstatement to the level of 
provision required.

Our procedures included:

• Control reperformance: 
With the assistance of KPMG IT specialists 
assess the controls present in the billing system 
that underpin the provisions calculation.

• Our sector experience: 
Analysing economic and industry factors that 
might affect the recoverability of outstanding 
debtors and assessing whether these have 
been considered by the directors in setting the 
provision rates.

• Historical comparisons: 
Compare the movement in debtors between 
the aged buckets between 2016 and 2017 to 
determine whether a higher proportion of debt 
is becoming older, thus resulting in the need for 
a higher provision.

• Expectation vs outcome: 
Based on historical cash flow trends, we 
estimated the cash collection rate for 2017 to 
include as part of setting an expectation of 
recoverable debt which was then compared to 
the debt not provided for at the year end.

• Historical comparison: 
Critically assess the provision rates set in the 
accounting policy by challenging the directors 
regarding variances against prior year. 

• Assessing transparency: 
Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures made 
in relation to the Company’s provisioning policy 
applied and the level of provisions recorded.

Independent Auditor’s Report 
to the Members of Sutton and East Surrey Water plc only
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The risk Our response

Classification of 
expenditure
(£43.5 million 
operating expenditure 
and £23.4 million 
capital expenditure; 
2016: £41.6m and 
£18.1m respectively)

Refer to page 56 
(Audit Committee 
Report), pages 65 to 
68 (accounting policy) 
and pages 69 to 79 
(financial disclosures).

Accounting treatment:
Classification of costs between 
operating and capital is a key 
audit risk for the 2017 audit as 
the allocation affects both the 
Company’s profit and balance sheet. 
The detailed accounting policies 
in place are reviewed regularly 
by the directors however their 
implementation requires significant 
judgement to determine whether 
the costs meet the relevant criteria 
in those policies; an incorrect 
judgement at the beginning of one 
project could result in a material 
misstatement.

Our procedures included:

• Testing application: 
Select a sample of capital additions to agree 
to third party documentation, timesheets 
or capital recharges order to assess their 
classification on the balance sheet.

• Historical comparisons: 
Perform a comparison year on year of 
both operating and capital expenditure in 
order to identify unusual trends in each and 
challenge the directors with regards to these, 
as expenditure levels are expected to be 
consistent given the nature of the industry. 
We also compared expenditure to the 2017 
budget to corroborate the type of expenditure 
being undertaken in 2017 as these are planned 
five years in advance as part of the regulatory 
asset management period (AMP) submitted to 
the regulator. 

• Assessing transparency: 
Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures 
made in relation to the Company’s policy of 
capitalisation or expensing of costs and the 
judgements involved.

3. Our application of materiality and an overview of the scope of our audit
Materiality for the financial statements as a whole was set at £0.6 million (2015: £1.0 million).

This has been determined with reference to a benchmark of the Company’s gross revenue, of which it represents 
1.0% (2016: 1.6%). This represents 4.9% (2016: 6.9%) of profit before tax.

Our audit of the Company was undertaken to the materiality level specified above and was all performed at the 
Company’s head office in Redhill.

We reported to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected misstatements exceeding £32,000  
(2016: £50,000), in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Revenue Materiality

Materiality
£0.6m (2016: £1.0m)

Revenue
£64m (2016: £63m)

£0.6m
Whole financial 
statements materiality 
(2016: £1.0m)

£0.48m
Performance materiality
(2016: £0.75m)

£0.03m
Misstatements reported 
to the audit committee
(2016: £0.05m)

4. Our opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 and under the terms of our 
engagement is unmodified
In addition to our audit of the financial statements, the directors have engaged us to audit the information in 
the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited, which the directors have decided 
to prepare as if the Company were required to comply with the requirements of Schedule 8 to The Large and 
Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (SI 2008 No. 410) made under 
the Companies Act 2006.

Independent Auditor’s Report 
to the Members of Sutton and East Surrey Water plc only Continued
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In our opinion:

• the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report which we were engaged to audit has been properly prepared in 
accordance with Schedule 8 to The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports) 
Regulations 2008 made under the Companies Act 2006, as if those requirements were to apply to the Company; 
and

• the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year is consistent with the 
financial statements

Based solely on the work required to be undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and from 
reading the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report:

• we have not identified material misstatements in those reports; and 
• in our opinion, those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006. 

5. We have nothing to report on the disclosures of principal risks
Based on the knowledge we acquired during our audit, we have nothing material to add or draw attention to in 
relation to:

• the directors’ statement of long-term viability on page 41, concerning the principal risks, their management, and, 
based on that, the directors’ assessment and expectations of the group’s continuing in operation over the period to 
March 2020; or

• the disclosures in note 1 of the financial statements concerning the use of the going concern basis of accounting.

6. We have nothing to report in respect of the matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under ISAs (UK and Ireland) we are required to report to you if, based on the knowledge we acquired during our 
audit, we have identified other information in the Annual Report that contains a material inconsistency with either 
that knowledge or the financial statements, a material misstatement of fact, or that is otherwise misleading.

In particular, we are required to report to you if:

• we have identified material inconsistencies between the knowledge we acquired during our audit and the directors’ 
statement that they consider that the Annual Report and financial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced 
and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the group’s position and 
performance, business model and strategy; or

• the Audit Committee Report does not appropriately address matters communicated by us to the Audit Committee. 

Under the Companies Act 2006 and under the terms of our engagement we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not 
been received from branches not visited by us; 

• the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report which we were engaged 
to audit are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; 

• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

In addition to our audit of the financial statements, the directors have engaged us to review their Corporate 
Governance Statement as if the Company were required to comply with the Listing Rules and the Disclosure Rules 
and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority in relation to those matters. Under the terms of our 
engagement we are required to review: 

• the directors’ statements, set out on page 41, in relation to going concern and long-term viability; and 
• the part of the Corporate Governance Statement on pages 35 to 43 relating to the company’s compliance with 

the eleven provisions of the 2016 UK Corporate Governance Code specified for our review.

We have nothing to report in respect of the above responsibilities. 

Scope and responsibilities
As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 58, the directors are responsible for 
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. A description of the 
scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at  
www.frc.org.uk/auditscopeukprivate. This report is made solely to the Company’s members as a body and is subject 
to important explanations and disclaimers regarding our responsibilities, published on our website at  
www.kpmg.com/uk/auditscopeukco2014b, which are incorporated into this report as if set out in full and should be read 
to provide an understanding of the purpose of this report, the work we have undertaken and the basis of our opinions.

John Luke (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor Chartered Accountants KPMG LLP
15 Canada Square
London
E14 5GL
6 July 2017
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Profit and Loss Account and Other Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 March

       2017 2016
      Note £000 £000

Turnover      2 64,683 63,019
Operating costs      3 (43,471) (42,902)

Operating profit       21,212 20,117
Gain on disposal of land       – 1,325
Net interest payable and similar charges    5 (9,214) (7,858)
Other interest receivable and similar income    6 940 722

Profit before tax       12,938 14,306
Taxation on profit      7 (427) 395

Profit for the year       12,511 14,701

Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of deferred benefit asset    9 116 3,470

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax    116 3,470

Total comprehensive income for the year     12,627 18,171

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 March 2016

      Called up Profit
      Share and Loss Total
      Capital Account Equity
      £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2015      3,105 60,928 64,033

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year      – 14,701 14,701
Other comprehensive income     – 3,470 3,470

Total comprehensive income for the year    – 18,171 18,171

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity
Dividends      – (3,600) (3,600)

Total transactions with owners     – (3,600) (3,600)

Balance at 31 March 2016      3,105 75,499 78,604

for the year ended 31 March 2017

      Called up Profit
      Share and Loss Total
      Capital Account Equity
      £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 April 2016      3,105 75,499 78,604

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year      – 12,511 12,511
Other comprehensive income     – 116 116

Total comprehensive income for the year    – 12,627 12,627

Transactions with owners recorded directly in equity
Dividends      – (3,600) (3,600)

Total transactions with owners     – (3,600) (3,600)

Balance at 31 March 2017     3,105 84,526 87,631
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        Restated 
       2017 2016 
      Note £000 £000

Non-current assets 
Fixed assets      10 280,713 267,406
Intangible assets      11 4,336 3,886

       285,049 271,291

Current assets
Stocks      12 711 667 
Debtors      13 20,732 18,809 
Net pension scheme asset     9 25,163 23,766 
Cash at bank and in hand     20 14,812 16,715

       61,418 59,957
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year    14 (30,349) (28,358)

Net current assets       31,069 31,599

Total assets less current liabilities      316,118 302,890

Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year   15 (192,948) (187,535)

Provisions for liabilities
Deferred tax liability      17 (35,539) (36,751)

Net assets       87,631 78,604

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital      18 3,105 3,105
Profit and loss account       84,526 75,499

Shareholders’ funds        87,631 78,604

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 6 July 2017 and signed on its behalf by: 

Jeremy Pelczer Anthony Ferrar
Chairman Managing Director

Company registered number: 02447875

Balance Sheet
as at 31 March
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 March

        Restated 
       2017 2016
       £000 £000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year       12,511 14,701

Adjustments for
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets      9,130 8,949
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets     337 291
Interest receivable and similar income      (834) (640)
Interest payable and similar charges      9,108 7,776
Loss / (gains) on sale of assets      50 (1,098)
Taxation       427 (395)

       18,218 14,883

Decrease in trade and other debtors      (700) (804)
(Increase) / decrease in stocks      (44) 126
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other creditors     3,415 (753)
Decrease in provisions and employee benefits     (447) (470)
(Decrease) / increase in amounts due to fellow subsidiary companies   (1,363) 1,703

       861 (198)

Interest paid       (5,918) (5,987)
Tax paid       (2,956) (2,727)

Net cash from operating activities      22,716 20,672

Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from disposal of tangible fixed assets     75 1,486
Interest received       106 82
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets      (22,563) (17,709)
Acquisition of intangible fixed assets      (787) (398)

Net cash from investing activities      (23,169) (16,539)

Cash flows from financing activities
Net proceeds from loans       2,150 2,500
Dividends paid       (3,600) (3,600)

Net cash from financing activities      (1,450) (1,100)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents    (1,903) 3,033
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April      16,715 13,682

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March     14,812 16,715
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Basis of accounting
Sutton and East Surrey Water plc (the ‘Company’) is a private company incorporated and domiciled in Redhill 
in the UK and is limited by shares. 

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced 
Disclosure Framework (FRS 101). The amendments to FRS 101 (2014/15 Cycle) issued in July 2015 and effective 
immediately have been applied. In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, 
measurement and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU 
(Adopted IFRSs), but makes amendments where necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and  
has set out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions have been taken.

In these financial statements, the Company has applied the exemptions under FRS 101 in respect of the  
following disclosures:

• Comparative period reconciliations for share capital, tangible fixed assets and intangible assets
• Disclosures in respect of capital management
• The effects of new but not yet effective IFRS
• Disclosures in respect of compensation of Key Management Personnel.

The Company’s ultimate parent undertaking, Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Ltd (SOGWUK) includes the  
Company in its consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of SOGWUK are 
prepared in accordance with IFRS and are available to the public from SOGWUK offices at Vintners’ Place,  
68 Upper Thames Street, London EC4V 3BJ. 

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods 
presented in these financial statements.

Restatements
Fixed assets for the prior year have been separated into tangible and intangible assets, as shown in notes 10 and 11.

Note 3 has previously stated that wages and salaries disclosed were shown net of capitalised costs, when this was 
not the case. This error has now been corrected and the figures for the prior year have been restated.

The lines affected are:
      Published Restated
      2016 2016 Correction
      £000 £000 £000

Wages and salaries      8,980 8,517 (463)
Social security losses      1,006 869 (137)
Other pension costs      2,214 1,490 (724)
Other operating charges      18,687 20,011  1,324

Measurement convention
The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis.

Going concern
The going concern basis has been adopted for preparing the financial statements. The Directors have considered 
the financial position of the Company and have concluded that they will be able to meet their liabilities as they  
fall due for the foreseeable future. For these purposes the foreseeable future is taken to mean a period of at least 
12 months from the date of approval of these accounts.

Classification of financial instruments issued by the Company
Following the adoption of IAS 32, financial instruments issued by the Company are treated as equity only  
to the extent that they meet the following two conditions: 

• They include no contractual obligations upon the Company to deliver cash or other financial assets or to 
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another party under conditions that are potentially 
unfavourable to the Company 

• Where the instrument will or may be settled in the Company’s own equity instruments, it is either a non-
derivative that includes no obligation to deliver a variable number of the Company’s own equity instruments  
or is a derivative that will be settled by the Company exchanging a fixed amount of cash or other financial 
assets for a fixed number of its own equity instruments.
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1 Basis of accounting (continued)
Classification of financial instruments issued by the Company (continued)
To the extent that this definition is not met, the proceeds of issue are classified as a financial liability. Where the 
instrument so classified takes the legal form of the Company’s own shares, the amounts presented in these financial 
statements for called up share capital and share premium account exclude amounts in relation to those shares.

Non-derivative financial instruments
Non-derivative financial instruments comprise investments in equity and debt securities, trade and other debtors, 
cash and cash equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade and other creditors.

Trade and other debtors 
Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses for bad debts. A bad debt 
provision is established by applying expected recovery rates to debts outstanding at the end of the accounting 
period. The expected recovery rate takes into account the age of the debt and the payment history.

Cash 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. 

Interest-bearing borrowings
Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent  
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method 
less any impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any issue costs.

Trade and other creditors
Trade and other creditors are recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured  
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Turnover
Turnover represents the income receivable for services provided in the ordinary course of business excluding 
VAT. The revenue recognition policy is the same in the regulatory and statutory accounts. All water charges billed 
to customers, exclusive of VAT, are recognised as income at the time they are billed and apportioned over the 
period to which they relate. For consumption by measured customers which has not yet been billed, an accrual is 
estimated. The measured income accrual at 31 March 2017 was £6,782,871 (2016: £6,522,506). Additional charges 
added to a customer’s account as a result of debt recovery activity, such as court costs or solicitors fees, are 
recognised as turnover when billed.

Empty unmetered properties are not billed if the Company has been informed in writing that the supply is not 
required and the Company is able to attend and turn off the supply. Empty metered properties are billed standing 
charges only. Meter reading continues for the purpose of highlighting consumption so that volume charges can 
be billed when the occupier has been identified. Disconnected commercial properties are not billed. If a household 
property is unoccupied due to the customer being hospitalised or residing in care, and we are informed of this in 
writing, the property is not billed.

New properties are charged from the date a meter is installed, if consumption is being recorded on the meter. 
If the property is unoccupied but consumption is being registered, the developer will be billed. The developer 
remains responsible for a property until hand-over details have been provided.

If a property is recorded as empty in the billing system, an empty property process is followed. The purpose of 
this process is to verify whether the property is occupied or is genuinely empty and, if occupied, to identify the 
person or persons responsible for charges and raise a bill. The empty property process may involve electronic 
services using third party data as well as visits to properties. No bills are raised in the name of the ‘occupier’. 

Outstanding balances on customers’ accounts are normally only written-off as bad debts when the customer 
can no longer be located, all means of recovery have been exhausted or the cost of recovery is disproportionate 
to the value of the debt. There has been no change in this policy in the year. Provision is made for doubtful debt 
based on its age and the recovery processes already applied and historic recovery rates (from 2009 to 2015) 
for debt that had been subject to recovery action via the Courts. Provisioning rates for debt that had not been 
subject to Court action were set at 50% of the comparable age band of Court debt. These rates have been applied 
to debt 6-12 months old and over 12 months old. No provision is made for debt less than 6 months old that has not 
been subject to Court action. There has been no material impact on the bad debt charge from the application of 
this policy during the year.

Notes to the Financial Statements
Continued

SES Water  Annual Report 201766



Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets have been revalued to fair value on 1 April 2014, the date of transition to FRS 101, and this  
is considered the deemed cost.

Tangible fixed assets are stated at deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses. The cost includes the original purchase price of the asset and costs attributable to bringing the asset to its 
working condition for its intended use. The cost of assets includes directly attributable labour and overhead costs 
which are incremental to the Company. The Company considers a substantial period of time for the construction 
of an asset in the water industry to be five years.

Fixed assets are capitalised and depreciated when they are considered to be operationally complete, which 
means that the asset is in the condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by 
management. Where parts of an item of tangible fixed assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for  
as separate items of tangible fixed assets. 

Infrastructure assets – mains and fresh water reservoirs 
Infrastructure assets comprise a network of systems relating to water distribution.

Mains – repairs, maintenance and replacements 
The mains network is considered to consist of multiple assets. It consists of different areas and is capable of 
being separated and divided up. IAS 16 requires all repairs and maintenance to be charged to the profit and loss 
account. Repairs and maintenance include the day-to-day servicing of an item. The costs of day-to-day servicing 
are primarily the costs of labour and consumables, and may include the cost of small parts. The mending of a 
burst main is considered to be a repair as long as the subsequent work extends to the replacement of no more 
than one length of pipe. The relining of a main is considered to be maintenance which is the work needed to keep 
a main in good condition.

IAS 16 requires replacements to be capitalised. When more than one length of pipe is laid it is considered  
a replacement, and not a repair, and it is therefore capitalised.

Perished mains replaced during the period are disposed of from the fixed asset records.

Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives  
of each part of an item of tangible fixed assets. Freehold land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives  
are as follows:

        Years

Infrastructure assets
Fresh water reservoirs        150
Mains        100
Non infrastructure assets
Buildings, boreholes and service reservoirs      40-100
Plant and machinery        10-25
Motor vehicles and sundry plant       3-15

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residential values are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

Intangible assets
Goodwill
Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. It is not amortised but is tested annually  
for impairment. 

Research and development
Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the profit and loss account as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or process is technically and commercially 
feasible and the Company intends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to complete development, 
future economic benefits are probable and if the Company can measure reliably the expenditure attributable to 
the intangible asset during its development. Development activities involve a plan or design for the production of 
new or substantially improved products or processes. The expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, 
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads and capitalised borrowing costs. Other development 
expenditure is recognised in the profit and loss account as an expense as incurred.
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1 Basis of accounting (continued)
Stocks
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is based on the first-in first-out principle and 
includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the stocks and other costs in bringing them to their existing location 
and condition. 

Impairment of financial and non-financial assets
Financial assets (including trade and other debtors)
A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine 
whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence indicates 
that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a negative 
effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference 
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s 
original effective interest rate. For financial instruments measured at cost less impairment, an impairment is 
calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that the Company 
would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at the reporting date. Interest on the impaired asset continues 
to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. When a subsequent event causes the amount of 
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Non-financial assets
The carrying amount of the Company’s non-financial assets, which includes fixed assets and goodwill, are 
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.

If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. For goodwill, and intangible assets 
that have indefinite useful lives or that are not yet available for use, the recoverable amount is estimated each 
year at the same time. 

Employee benefits
The Company accounts for pensions and other post-employment benefits under IAS 19(R). The Group operates 
both defined benefit and defined contribution pension schemes. Defined benefits are provided using both funded 
and unfunded pension plans.

Defined contribution plans
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the profit  
and loss account in the period during which services are rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plans
The pension scheme asset or liability in the balance sheet represents the net present value of the defined benefit 
obligation and the fair value of scheme assets at the balance sheet date.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the cost of providing benefits under defined benefit plans 
is determined on a triennial basis, and updated to each year end by an independent qualified actuary using the 
Projected Unit Credit actuarial valuation method, discounted at an interest rate equivalent at measurement date 
to the rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the scheme liabilities.

The pension cost in the income statement includes current and past service cost and the effect of any settlements 
and curtailments. A net finance charge or credit is recognised within finance costs in the income statement and 
comprises the net of the expected return on pension scheme assets and the interest on pension scheme liabilities.

All actuarial gains and losses and the related current and deferred taxation are recognised in other  
comprehensive income.

Provisions
A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation  
as a result of a past event, that can be reliably measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows 
at a pre-tax rate that reflects risks specific to the liability.

Significant accounting judgements
The key estimates and areas of judgement required in the preparation of these accounts are detailed in the Audit 
Committee Report on page 56.
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Taxation
Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss 
account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, 
in which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of 
previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for 
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The initial recognition of goodwill is not 
provided for. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement 
of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance 
sheet date. 

Dividends
Dividends are only recognised as a liability at the date of the balance sheet to the extent that they are declared 
prior to year end. Unpaid dividends that do not meet these criteria are disclosed in the notes to the financial 
statements.

       2017 2016
       £000 £000

2 Turnover
Unmeasured water income      26,851 27,879
Measured water income       32,720 31,408
Other water income       1,091 709
Non-water income       1,142 1,347
Non-appointed income       2,879 1,676

       64,683 63,019

All the Company’s activities are derived from one class of business and one geographical location.

        Restated 
       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

3 Expenses and auditor’s remuneration
Wages and salaries       9,164 8,517 
Social security costs       1,006 869 
Other pension costs       1,430 1,490 
Raw materials and consumables      2,186 2,442 
Depreciation / amortisation of owned assets     9,467 9,240 
Loss on sale of fixed assets other than land     50 227 
Fees payable to Company’s auditor for the audit of annual accounts   56 47 
Fees payable to Company’s auditor and associates for other services 
– Audit of Regulatory Accounts      9 10 
– Other assurance services      78 49 
Other operating charges       20,025 20,011

       43,471 42,902

Wages and salaries disclosed above are shown net of capitalised costs. During the year £1,825,917  
(2016: £1,731,908) of employment costs were capitalised as fixed assets. 

Operating costs can be analysed between cost of sales of £30,854,414 (2016: £29,962,472), administration costs 
of £12,567,230 (2016: £12,711,796) and other operating costs of £49,999 (2016: £227,243).
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       2017 2016 
       Number Number

4 Employees
The average number of persons employed (including Directors)  
during the year was as follows: 
Water supply       278 264 
Other       2 2

       280 266

88 of the 280 employees were female (2016: 79 of 266). Directors’ remuneration is disclosed on page 51 in the 
Remuneration Committee Report.

       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

5 Interest payable and similar charges
Index-linked bond       4,415 4,352 
Indexation of bond       2,820 1,520 
Bond fees amortisation       442 444 
Other       571 576 
Preference dividend       966 966

Total other interest payable and similar expenses     9,214 7,858

       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

6 Other interest receivable and similar income
Expected return on pension scheme assets     3,751 3,548 
Interest on post retirement liabilities      (2,917) (2,908) 
Other interest receivable       106 82

Total interest receivable and similar income     940 722

       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

7 Taxation
UK corporation tax 
Current tax on income for the year      1,626 2,040 
Adjustments in respect of prior years      14 (7)

Total current tax       1,640 2,033

 
Deferred tax 
Origination and reversal of timing differences     566 637 
Pension scheme       238 824 
Changes in tax rate and laws      (2,016) (3,895) 
Adjustments in respect of previous years     (1) 6

Total deferred tax recoverable      (1,213) (2,428)

Tax on profit       427 (395)

A reduction in the UK corporation tax rate from 21% to 20% (effective from 1 April 2015) was substantively 
enacted on 2 July 2013. Further reductions to 19% (effective from 1 April 2017) and 18% (effective from 1 April 
2020) were substantively enacted on 26 October 2015, and an additional reduction to 17% (effective from 1 April 
2020) was substantively enacted on 6 September 2016. This will reduce the Company’s future current tax charge 
accordingly. The deferred tax liability at 31 March 2017 has been calculated based on these rates.
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Reconciliation of effective tax rate
The current tax charge for the year is lower (2016: lower) than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 
20% (2016: 20%). The differences are explained below.

       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

Profit for the year       12,511 14,701 
Total tax expense / (credit)       427 (395)
Profit before tax       12,938 14,306

Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 20% (2016: 20%)    2,588 2,861

Effects of: 
 
Non-deductible expenses      11 39 
Profit / (loss) on disposal of fixed assets     – (258) 
Preference dividends paid      193 193 
Pension adjustment       (302) (248) 
Other       (199) (5) 
Capital allowances for the year exceeding depreciation    (665) (542) 
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous years    14 (7) 
Reduction in tax rate on deferred tax balances     (1,213) (2,428)

Total tax expenses included in profit or loss     427 (395)

       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

8 Dividends
Ordinary shares – equity dividends paid 11.5 pence per share (2016: 11.5 pence per share)  3,600 3,600

Ordinary dividends of £1.8 million were paid on 28 June 2016 and 16 December 2016, totalling £3.6 million. 
An ordinary dividend of £2.0 million was declared prior to the year end but paid on 3 April 2017.

9 Employee benefits
The Company participates in a defined benefit pension scheme, the Water Companies Pension Scheme (WCPS). 
The scheme funds are administered by trustees and are independent of the Company’s finances. Contributions are 
paid to the scheme in accordance with the recommendations of an independent actuarial advisor. 

Following extensive consultations, changes were implemented to the Company’s section of WCPS on 1 April 2013,  
whereby retirement benefits for active members will be accrued on a career average basis rather than the final 
salary basis applicable previously.

The results of the actuarial valuation to WCPS as at 31 March 2014 were updated to the accounting date by an 
independent qualified actuary in accordance with IAS 19(R). Over the year to 31 March 2017, contributions of 
£1,516,000 (2016: £1,587,000) were made. 

The Company also made payments to defined contribution schemes amounting to £579,455 in the year (2016: 
£511,606). At the year end, contributions deducted but not yet paid over amounted to £92,690 (2016: £78,134).

The key IAS 19(R) assumptions used for the WCPS are set out below, along with the fair value of assets,  
a breakdown of the assets into the main asset classes, the present value of IAS 19(R) liabilities and the surplus  
of assets above IAS 19(R) liabilities (which equal the gross pension asset). 
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9 Employee benefits (continued)
Assumptions
       2017 2016

Retail prices index inflation      3.4% pa 3.1% pa 
Consumer prices index (CPI) inflation      2.4% pa 2.1% pa 
Discount rate       2.5% pa 3.4% pa 
Pension increases (CPI)       2.5% pa 2.2% pa 
Pension increases (CPI capped at 5%)      2.4% pa 2.2% pa 
Salary growth       2.9% pa 2.6% pa

On the basis of the assumptions used for life expectancy, a male pensioner currently 60 would be expected to live 
for a further 27.9 years (2016: 27.8 years). 

Plan assets
       2017 2016 
       Fair value Fair value 
       £000 £000

Equities       14,039 14,006 
Diversified growth funds       17,729 16,730 
Liability driven investment      86,497 70,286 
Emerging market multi-asset funds      5,558 5,076 
High yield bonds       5,616 5,035 
Bonds       – – 
Cash       169 218

Total       129,608 111,351

The majority of the Section assets are held within instruments with quoted market prices in an active market. The 
Section does not invest in property occupied by the Company or in financial securities issued by the Company. 

The investment strategy is set by the Trustee of the Section. The current strategy is to invest in a combination of 
lower risk assets (eg liability driven investments, which respond to factors such as changes in interest rates) and 
return seeking assets (eg equities and other diversified assets) with the allocation to lower risk assets gradually 
increased so that by March 2035, 100% of the Section assets are invested in lower risk assets. 
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Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows:
       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

Opening defined benefit obligation      86,680 91,782

Employer’s part of current service cost     871 989 
Interest cost       2,887 2,878 
Contributions from Section members      31 32 
Actuarial loss / (gain)       16,528 (5,277) 
Benefits paid       (3,591) (3,724)

Closing defined benefit obligation      103,406 86,680

Changes in the fair value of the Section assets are as follows:
       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

Opening fair value of the Section assets     111,351 111,924

Interest on Section assets      3,751 3,548 
Actual return less interest on plan assets     16,791 (1,848) 
Contributions by the employer      1,516 1,587 
Contributions by Section members      31 32 
Benefits paid       (3,591) (3,724) 
Expenses       (241) (168)

Closing fair value of Section assets      129,608 111,351

       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

Total fair value of assets       129,608 111,351 
Present value of liabilities      (103,406) (86,680)

Pension asset for the scheme      26,202 24,671

Unfunded former Director’s pension entitlement     (1,039) (905)

Pension scheme asset in balance sheet     25,163 23,766

The pension scheme net asset has not been reduced in the balance sheet as the Company believes that a refund 
of the surplus assets would be available to it following the final payment to the last beneficiary of the scheme.

Past service costs totalling £1,090,000 were recognised in prior years in respect of an unfunded portion  
of a former Director’s pension entitlement. This figure has been revalued using the same assumptions as above 
and is set against the net pension asset.
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9 Employee benefits (continued)
The net surplus recognised in the balance sheet has moved over the year as follows:
       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

Balance sheet asset for the scheme at start of year    24,671 20,142 
Amount recognised in profit and loss account     (248) (487) 
Amount recognised in other comprehensive income    263 3,429 
Contributions paid       1,516 1,587

Balance sheet asset for the scheme at end of year     26,202 24,671 
Unfunded pension liability at start of year     (905) (956) 
Past service cost       (134) 51

Net balance sheet asset at end of year     25,163 23,766

The following amounts have been recognised in profit and loss:
       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

Employer’s part of current service cost     871 989 
Section expenses       241 168 
Net interest credit       (864) (670)

Total profit and loss charge      248 487

The amounts recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:
       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

Net actuarial losses / (gains) on the scheme in the year due to: 
– Changes in financial assumptions      17,437 (3,374) 
– Changes in demographic assumptions     – – 
– Experience adjustments on benefit obligations     (909) (1,903) 
Actuarial (gain) / loss on Section assets relative to interest on Section assets  (16,791) 1,848

Gain to recognise in other comprehensive income for the scheme   (263) (3,429) 
Loss / (gain) on unfunded former Directors’ pension entitlement   147 (41)

Total remeasurement of deferred benefit asset recognised in other comprehensive income (116) (3,470)

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to some of the significant 
assumptions as at 31 March 2017:

     Effective on obligation (£000)

       -0.1% pa +0.1% pa 
Price inflation       (1,400) 1,400 
Discount rate       1,700 (1,600) 
 
       -1 year +1 year 
Life expectancy       (4,100) 4,200

These sensitivities have been calculated to show the movement in the defined benefit obligation in isolation, and 
assuming no other changes in market conditions at the accounting date. This is unlikely in practice – for example, 
a change in discount rate is unlikely to occur without any movement in the value of the assets held by the Section. 
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10 Tangible fixed assets
   Buildings   Motor Assets 
   boreholes   vehicles in the 
  Collection & service Plant &  & sundry course of 
 Land reservoir reservoirs machinery Mains plant construction Total 
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost         
1 April 2016 restated 5,088 2,533 111,750 108,691 211,180 9,218 5,643 454,103 
Additions 44 – 4,635 2,344 4,084 1,231 10,225 22,563 
Disposals – – (20) (6,228) (51) (1,084) – (7,383) 
Transfers (44) – 44 – – – – –

31 March 2017 5,088 2,533 116,409 104,807 215,213 9,365 15,868 469,283

Depreciation        
1 April 2016 restated – 337 27,959 63,467 88,101 6,833 – 186,697 
Charge for year – 23 2,189 4,584 1,423 911 – 9,130 
Disposals – – (5) (6,195) (16) (1,041) – (7,257)

31 March 2017 – 360 30,143 61,856 89,508 6,703 – 188,570

Net book value 
31 March 2017 5,088 2,173 86,266 42,951 125,705 2,662 15,868 280,713

31 March 2016 restated 5,088 2,196 83,791 45,224 123,079 2,385 5,643 267,406

Land comprises freehold land at £5,047,897 (2016: £5,047,897) and long leasehold land at £40,648  
(2016: £40,648).

Computer software, with a cost of £4.8 million and accumulated depreciation of £4.0 million at 31 March 2016, was 
included in tangible fixed assets under the motor vehicle and sundry plant heading in prior year accounts but has 
now been shown under intangible assets in note 11 below. The reduction in depreciation of tangible fixed assets of 
£291k, and the equivalent increase in amortisation of intangible assets, in the prior year is shown in the Cash Flow 
Statement on page 64.

11 Intangible assets
       Work in
     Software Goodwill progress Total 
     £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost 
1 April 2016 restated      4,807   19,454  –  24,261  
Additions      369  – 418  787  
Disposals     (73)  – – (73) 

31 March 2017      5,103   19,454  418  24,975 

Amortisation 
1 April 2016 restated     4,008 16,367 – 20,375 
Charge for the year     337 – – 337 
Disposals     (73) – – (73)

31 March 2017     4,272 16,367  – 20,639

Net book value  
31 March 2017     831 3,087 418 4,336

31 March 2016 restated     799 3,087 – 3,886

12 Stock
       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

Raw materials and consumables      711 667
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       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

13 Debtors
Trade debtors       16,556 16,318 
Amounts owed by fellow subsidiary undertakings     1,628 405 
Other debtors       1,441 970 
Prepayments and accrued income      1,107 1,116

       20,732 18,809

       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

14 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Trade creditors       4,133 3,668 
Amounts owed to fellow subsidiary undertakings     1,788 1,883 
Other creditors       15,492 15,465 
Group relief payable       679 2,040 
Other taxes and social security      458 427 
Accruals and deferred income      6,878 3,863 
Deposits from developers      921 1,012

Total creditors       30,349 28,358

       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

15 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
2.874% Secured index-linked bond 2027-2031     148,312 145,049 
3.25% Irredeemable debentures      50 50 
5% Irredeemable debentures      52 52 
7.8% Cumulative irredeemable preference shares of £1    12,384 12,384 
Long-term bank loan       32,150 30,000

       192,948 187,535
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16 Financial instruments and interest bearing loans and borrowings
The Company does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to credit and interest rate risks 
arising in the normal course of its business. The Company does not have any exposure to currency risk, since all 
activities are conducted in the UK and all borrowings are denominated in pound sterling. 

Credit risk
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. 
Investments are only permitted in liquid securities and only with counterparties that have a credit rating equal  
to or better than the Company. Given their high credit ratings, management does not expect any counterparty  
to fail to meet its obligations. At the balance sheet date there were no significant concentrations of credit risk. 

Interest risk
The Company adopts a policy of reducing its exposure to interest rate changes by having the majority of its 
borrowings on a fixed rate basis. 

The long-dated inflation-linked bond was issued at a rate of interest of 2.874%. The index-linked nature of the 
bond reflects the index-linked regulatory asset value and pricing structure. The bond issue carried an AAA rating. 
The bond is index-linked so that the capital sum and interest payment increase with RPI. The indexation charge 
is treated as an interest cost but does not have any immediate cash flow impact on the Company. The bond was 
issued on 21 March 2001 and is secured upon the shares of Sutton and East Surrey Water plc. In the event of 
default the interest and capital payments are insured by Assured Guaranty Ltd. The fees associated with the issue 
of the bond are recognised over the life of the bond using the effective interest rate method. Unamortised issue 
costs of £6,178,959 (2016: £6,621,352) are netted against the carrying value of the bond, and included within the 
effective interest charge.

The bond, debentures and preference shares are at fixed rates of interest. Borrowings made under the current 
overdraft facilities will be at a variable rate above base rate, and longer-term borrowings will be at a margin  
above LIBOR.

The effective interest rates of borrowings are disclosed in note 15 above and in Table 1E of the Regulatory 
Accounts on page 85. 

a) Loans and other borrowings
       2017 2016 
Maturities      Note £000 £000

Loans and other borrowings 
– Between one and two years      – – 
– Between two and five years      32,150 30,000 
– More than five years       160,798 157,535

– Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year   15 192,948 187,535 
– Creditors: amounts falling due within one year    14 – –

       192,948 187,535

 
b) Undrawn committed borrowing facilities
Undrawn borrowing facilities available to the Company are set out below. The facilities available at the balance 
sheet date are unsecured.
       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

Expiring in one year or less      1,000 1,000 
Expiring between one and two years      – – 
Expiring between two and five years      22,850 25,000

       23,850 26,000
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c) Fair values
The fair values together with the carrying amounts are shown in the balance sheet as follows:

     2017 2017 2016 2016 
     Carrying Fair Carrying Fair 
     amount value amount value 
     £000 £000 £000 £000

2.874% Secured index-linked bond 2027-2031   148,312 217,533 145,049 188,360

Fair value is determined using a quoted market bid price.

There is no material difference between fair values and carrying amounts within the balance sheet for all other 
financial assets and liabilities.
        Deferred 
        taxation 
        £000

17 Deferred tax liability
At 1 April 2016        36,751

Credit to the profit and loss for the year      1,212

At 31 March 2017        35,539

The elements of deferred tax (excluding amounts in respect of pension schemes) are as follows:

       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

Difference between accumulated depreciation, amortisation and capital allowances  35,539 36,751

The future tax rates reflected in the Company’s provision for deferred tax are set out in note 7.

       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

18 Share capital
Ordinary shares 
Allotted, called up and fully paid 
31,046,440 (2016: 31,046,440) ordinary shares of 10p each    3,105 3,105

Preference shares
Allotted, called up and fully paid 
12,384,593 (2016: 12,384,593) 7.8% Cumulative irredeemable preference shares of £1 each  12,384 12,384

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are entitled  
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

The holders of irredeemable preference shares are entitled to receive cumulative dividends but are not entitled  
to vote at meetings of the Company. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
Continued
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       2017  2016 
       £000 £000

19 Cash flow from management of liquid resources
Movement in short-term deposits      (1,683) 3,040 
Interest received on deposits      106 82

Movement in year       (1,577) 3,122 
At 31 March 2016       14,647 11,525

At 31 March 2017       13,070 14,647

       2017  2016 
       £000 £000

20 Cash and cash equivalents
Liquid resources – deposits exceeding 24 hours duration    13,070 14,647 
Cash       1,742 2,068

Cash and cash equivalents      14,812 16,715

       2017 2016 
       £000 £000

21 Commitments
Contracted capital commitments authorised by the directors     19,505 24,985

 
22 Related parties
The only material disclosable trading transactions between the Company and related parties, other than those 
disclosed in note 3 to the Regulatory Accounts on page 104, was a contribution of £55,095 to Water UK, with 
which the Company shares a mutual director.
 
23 Ultimate parent company and parent undertaking of larger group of which the Company is a member
The Company’s parent company is SESW Holding Company Limited, whose registered office is 66-74 London 
Road, Redhill, Surrey, RH1 1LJ. The ultimate parent company and the smallest and largest group in which the 
results of the Company are consolidated is Sumisho Osaka Gas Water UK Limited whose consolidated accounts 
are available at Vintners’ Place, 68 Upper Thames Street, London EC4V 3BJ.
 
24 Subsequent events
On 3 April 2017 the Company sold its right to trade with non-household customers in its supply area to an 
associated company trading as SES Business Water for a consideration of £2.0 million. All associated assets and 
liabilities, including revenue for water supplied but not yet billed or paid for, were transferred at the same date 
under a Statutory Transfer Scheme approved by Ofwat.

As disclosed in note 8 on page 71 an ordinary dividend of £2.0 million declared prior to year end was paid on 
3 April 2017.
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Regulatory Accounts 2017

These accounts and notes thereto are published to comply with the requirements of Condition F of the Instrument 
of Appointment (the ‘Licence’) of Sutton and East Surrey Water plc, trading as SES Water.

The regulatory accounts separate the results of Sutton and East Surrey Water plc into appointed and  
non-appointed activities. 

Appointed activities are defined in Condition A of the Licence to be the ‘functions of’ and the ‘duties imposed on’ 
a water undertaker by the Water Industry Act 1991. Appointed activities are consequently those activities that are 
necessary in order for the Company to fulfil its functions and duties as a water undertaker.

In general, non-appointed activities are activities for which either the water undertaker is not a monopoly supplier 
(for example, the provision of billing and collection services for another undertaker) or the activity involves the 
optional use of an asset owned by the appointed business (for example, the provision of vehicle maintenance 
services to the public).

These accounts have been prepared in accordance with guidelines issued by the Water Services Regulatory 
Authority, ‘Ofwat’.
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      Adjustments

    Differences 
    between 
    statutory   Total  
    and RAG Non- Total appointed  
   Statutory definitions appointed adjustments activities 
   £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue   64,683 (2,016) (2,394) (4,410) 60,273
Operating costs   (43,471) 269 839 1,108 (42,363)
Other operating income   – (50) – (50) (50)

Operating profit   21,212 (1,797) (1,555) (3,352) 17,860

     
Other income   834 1,797 – 1,797 2,631
Interest income   106 – (21) (21) 85
Interest expense   (9,214) – – – (9,214)
Other interest expense    – – – – –

Profit before tax and fair value movements  12,938 – (1,576) (1,576) 11,362

     
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial instruments – – – – –

Profit before tax   12,938 – (1,576) (1,576) 11,362

   
UK Corporation tax   (1,640) – 317 317 (1,323)
Deferred tax   1,213 – – – 1,213

Profit for the year   12,511 – (1,259) (1,259) 11,252

Dividends   (3,600) – 800 800 (2,800)

The difference between statutory and Regulatory Accounting Guidelines (RAGs) are detailed in note 2 on 
page 104. 

The current tax charge on appointed activities of £1,323k was £1,020k higher than the tax charge assumed for 
Ofwat’s PR14 Final Determination (even though profit before tax was £1,423k lower than the Final Determination 
assumption). This was largely attributable to the minimal taxable profits for wholesale activities included in the 
Final Determination, reflecting adjustments to accounting profits to arrive at taxable profit which have not in 
practice materialised.

Reconciliation of effective tax rate for appointed activities
The current tax charge for the year is lower than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 20%. The 
differences are explained below.

        2017 
        £000

Profit before tax        11,362

Tax using the UK corporation tax rate of 20%      2,272

Effects of: 
 
Non-deductible expenses       10 
Profit/(loss) on disposal of fixed assets      – 
Preference dividends paid       193 
Pension adjustment        (302) 
Other        (199) 
Capital allowances for the year exceeding depreciation     (665) 
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous years     14

Total current tax        1,323

1A – Income Statement
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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      Adjustments

    Differences 
    between 
    statutory   Total  
    and RAG Non- Total appointed  
   Statutory definitions appointed adjustments activities 
   £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Profit for the year   12,511 – (1,259) (1,259) 11,252
Actuarial gains on post employment plans  116 – – – 116
Other comprehensive income   – – – – –

Total comprehensive income for the year  12,627 – (1,259) (1,259) 11,368

1B – Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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      Adjustments

    Differences 
    between 
    statutory   Total  
    and RAG Non- Total appointed  
   Statutory definitions appointed adjustments activities 
   £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Non-current assets
Fixed assets   280,713 – (1) (1) 280,712
Intangible assets   4,336 – – – 4,336
Investments – loans to group companies  – – – – –
Investments – other   – – – – –
Financial instruments   – – – – –
Retirement benefit assets   25,163 – – – 25,163

Total non-current assets   310,212 – (1) (1) 310,211

Current assets
Inventories   711 – – – 711
Trade & other receivables   20,732 – (734) (734) 19,998
Financial instruments   – – – – –
Cash & cash equivalents   14,812 2,068 (3,810) (1,742) 13,070

Total current assets   36,255 2,068 (4,544) (2,476) 33,779

Current liabilities
Trade & other payables   26,926 – (511) (511) 26,415
Capex creditor   1,979 – – – 1,979
Borrowings   – 2,068 – 2,068 2,068
Financial instruments   – – – – –
Current tax liabilities   679 – (317) (317) 362
Provisions   765 – – – 765

Total current liabilities   30,349 2,068 (828) 1,240 31,589

Net current assets   5,906 – (3,716) (3,716) 2,190

Non-current liabilities
Trade & other payables   – – – – –
Borrowings   180,564 – – – 180,564
Financial instruments   – – – – –
Retirement benefit obligations   – – – – –
Provisions   – – – – –
Deferred income – grants & contributions  – – – – –
Preference share capital   12,384 – – – 12,384
Deferred tax   35,539 – – – 35,539

Total non-current liabilities   228,487 – – – 228,487

Net assets   87,631 – (3,717) (3,717) 83,914

Equity
Called up share capital   3,105 – – – 3,105
Retained earnings & other reserves   84,526 – (3,717) (3,717) 80,809

Total equity   87,631 – (3,717) (3,717) 83,914

Cash attributable to non-appointed activities at 31 March 2017 was £3,809,737. Cash held by the Company was 
only £1,741,944. Appointed activities are, therefore, deemed to have an overdraft of £2,067,793. 

1C – Statement of Financial Position
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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      Adjustments

    Differences 
    between 
    statutory   Total  
    and RAG Non- Total appointed  
   Statutory definitions appointed adjustments activities 
   £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Operating profit   21,212 (1,797) (1,555) (3,352) 17,860
Other income   – 1,797 – 1,797 1,797
Depreciation   9,467 – (8) (8) 9,459
Amortisation – grants & contributions   – – – – –
Changes in working capital   1,308 – 55 55 1,363
Pension contributions   (447) – – – (447)
Movement in provisions   – – – – –
Loss on sale of fixed assets   50 – – – 50

Cash generated from operations   31,590 – (1,508) (1,508) 30,082

     
Net interest paid   (5,918) 106 (21) 85 (5,833)
Tax paid   (2,956) – 175 175 (2,781)

Net cash generated from operating activities  22,716 106 (1,354) (1,248) 21,468

     
Investing activities     
Capital expenditure   (23,350) – – – (23,350)
Grants & Contributions   – – – – –
Disposal of fixed assets   75 – – – 75
Other – interest received   106 (106) – (106) –

Net cash used in investing activities   (23,169) (106) – (106) (23,275)

Net cash generated before financing activities (453) – (1,354) (1,354) (1,807)

     
Cashflows from financing activities     
Equity dividends paid   (3,600) – 800 800 (2,800)
Net loans received   2,150 – – – 2,150
Cash inflow from equity financing   – – – – –

Net cash generated from financing activities  (1,450) – 800 800 (650)

 
Decrease in net cash   (1,903) – (554) (554) (2,457)

1D – Statement of Cash Flows
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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      Interest rate risk profile

     Fixed rate Floating rate Index linked Total 
     £000 £000 £000 £000

Borrowings (excluding preference shares)   102 34,218 148,312 182,632

Preference share capital        12,384

Total borrowings        195,016

Cash        –
Short-term deposits        (13,070)

Net debt        181,946

    
Gearing        77.73%
Adjusted gearing        77.00%
Full year equivalent nominal interest cost   970 420 7,314 8,704
Full year equivalent cash interest payment   970 420 4,440 5,830

Indicative interest rates
Indicative weighted average nominal interest rate   7.77% 1.23% 4.73% 4.90%
Indicative weighted average cash interest rate   7.77% 1.23% 2.87% 3.57%

 
Weighted average years to maturity    25.00 2.82 14.00 12.78

Adjusted gearing reflects the definitions of the financial covenants associated with the Company’s index-linked 
bond and disregards preference shares, unamortised bond issuance costs and cash balances other than those 
held in ring-fenced accounts specified by the bond documentation. 

We do not use derivative financial instruments to hedge exposure to credit and interest rate risks arising in the 
normal course of business and do not have any exposure to currency risk, since all activities are conducted in 
the UK and all borrowings are denominated in pound sterling. We have therefore not included Ofwat’s Financial 
Derivatives table in this Annual Report.

1E – Net Debt Analysis at 31 March
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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     Wholesale
 

  Retail

   Water Water Wholesale  Non- 
   resources network+ total Household household Total 
   £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Revenue – price control     52,863 5,711 801 59,375
Revenue – non price control    744 153 1 898
Operating expenditure   (4,281) (21,928) (26,209) (6,125) (571) (32,905)
Depreciation – tangible fixed assets  (579) (8,511) (9,090) (38) (2) (9,130)
Amortisation – intangible fixed assets  – (195) (195) (126) (7) (328)
Other operating income   – (54) (54) 4 – (50)

Operating profit before recharges    18,059 (421) 222 17,860
Recharges from other segments  – – – (171) (10) (181)
Recharges to other segments  11 170 181 – – 181

Operating profit     18,240 (592) 212 17,860

The basis of cost allocations used in this segmental income statement is described in note 1 on page 104. ‘Water 
network+’ activities include raw water transport and storage, water treatment and treated water distribution in 
accordance with definitions in the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines (RAGs).

Operating profit for wholesale activities was £1.517 million higher than was assumed in the PR14 Final 
Determination primarily due to lower operating costs. Operating costs were £3.806 million lower than PR14 Final 
Determination principally due to all infrastructure renewals activity being treated as capital expenditure  
and depreciated over an estimated useful economic life of 100 years. Lower inflation than was assumed in the 
PR14 Final Determination which reduced both revenue and operating expenditure.

Household retail activities made an operating loss of £592k due to under recovery of allowed revenue and higher 
costs, as noted on page 88. 

Non-household retail activities made an operating profit of £212k, representing a margin of 1.99%. Revenue was £35k 
more than forecast in the PR14 Final Determination and operating costs were £85k higher, as noted on page 88.

2A – Segmental Income Statement
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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      Water  
      resources Network+ Total 
      £000 £000 £000

Operating expenditure
Power      1,322 3,538 4,860
Income treated as negative expenditure    – (219) (219)
Service charges/discharge consents     847 – 847
Bulk supply/bulk discharge     – – –
Other operating expenditure     1,746 15,146 16,892
Local authority rates      366 2,330 2,696

Total operating expenditure excluding third party services   4,281 20,795 25,076
 
Third party services      – 1,133 1,133

Total operating expenditure     4,281 21,928 26,209

 
Capital expenditure
Maintaining the long-term capability of the assets – infrastructure  – 5,420 5,420
Maintaining the long-term capability of the assets – non-infrastructure  704 13,177 13,881
Other capital expenditure – infrastructure    – 2,110 2,110
Other capital expenditure – non-infrastructure    – 1,703 1,703

Total gross capital expenditure excluding third party services   704 22,410 23,114
Third party services      – – –

Total gross capital expenditure     704 22,410 23,114

Grants and contributions     – 1,797 1,797

Totex      4,985 42,541 47,526

 
Cash expenditure
Pension deficit recovery payments     93 451 544
Other cash items      – – –

Totex including cash items     5,078 42,992 48,070

2B – Wholesale Totex Analysis
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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       Non- 
      Household household Total 
      £000 £000 £000

Operating expenditure
Customer services      2,826 159 2,985
Debt management      941 14 955
Doubtful debts      334 66 400
Meter reading      219 21 240
Services to developers      – – –
Other operating expenditure     1,805 303 2,108

Total operating expenditure excluding third party services   6,125 563 6,688

Third party services operating expenditure    – 8 8

Total operating expenditure     6,125 571 6,696

Depreciation – tangible fixed assets      38 2 40 
Amortisation – intangible fixed assets     126 7 133

Total operating costs      6,289 580 6,869

Debt written-off      326 65 391

Operating costs for household retail activities were £868k higher than the PR14 Final Determination principally 
due to the absence of an inflation allowance in the retail costs allowed in the PR14 Final Determination and higher 
resourcing deployed to address disappointing performance against the Service Incentive Mechanism. 

Operating costs for non-household retail activities were £85k higher than assumed, again principally due to the 
absence of an inflation allowance in the PR14 Final Determination. 

2C – Operating Cost Analysis: Retail
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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     Wholesale   Retail

    Water Water  Non- 
    resources network+ Household household Total
    £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost    
At 1 April 2016    25,576 428,264 244 14 454,098
Disposals    (21) (7,350) (9) (1) (7,381)
Additions    665 21,898 – – 22,563
Assets adopted at nil cost   – – – – –

At 31 March 2017    26,220 442,812 235 13 469,280

Depreciation    
At 1 April 2016    6,912 179,639 135 8 186,694
Disposals    (21) (7,225) (9) (1) (7,256)
Charge for the year    579 8,511 38 2 9,130

At 31 March 2017    7,470 180,925 164 9 188,568

Net book amount at 31 March 2017   18,750 261,887 71 4 280,712

Net book amount at 1 April 2016   18,664 248,625 109 6 267,404

Depreciation charge for the year
Principal services    579 8,511 38 2 9,130
Third party services    – – – – –

Total    579 8,511 38 2 9,130

2D – Historic Cost Analysis of Fixed Assets: Wholesale & Retail
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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      Capitalised 
     Fully and 
     recognised amortised  Fully 
     in income  against netted off 
     statement depreciation capex Total 
     £000 £000 £000 £000

Grants and contributions 
Connection charges (s45)    1,038 – – 1,038
Infrastructure charge receipts (s146)    569 – – 569
Requisitioned mains (s43, s55 & s56)    190 – – 190
Diversions (s185)     – – – –
Other contributions     – – – –

Total     1,797 – – 1,797

Value of adopted assets      –  –

Balance sheet
Brought forward        –
Capitalised in year        –
Amortisation (in income statement)       –

Carried forward        –

Land sales
Proceeds from disposals of protected land      –

2E – Analysis of Capital Contributions and Land Sales: Wholesale
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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        Average 
         household 
    Wholesale    retail 
    charges  Retail Total Number of revenue per 
    revenue  revenue revenue customers customer 
    £000 £000 £000 000s £

Unmeasured water    24,323 2,276 26,599 128.630 17.69
Measured water    18,240 3,435 21,675 134.985 25.45

Total    42,563 5,711 48,274 263.615 21.66

The household retail revenue allowance for 12 months ended 31 March 2017 was £5.812 million. This is £0.120 
million less than the PR14 Final Determination allowed revenue because our actual number of customers was 
4,770 less than forecast in our business plan.

We recovered £5.711 million and therefore under recovered our allowed revenue by £0.101 million (1.7%). The 
household retail price control makes provision for a reconciliation to be undertaken at the end of the five year 
period, which will take the aggregate over-/under-recovery over the whole period and adjust allowed revenue 
for the next price control period beginning 1 April 2020.

2F – Household: Revenues by Customer Type
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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        Average 
        non- 
        household 
    Wholesale     retail 
    charges  Retail Total  revenue per 
    revenue  revenue revenue Number of connection 
    £000 £000 £000 connections £

Non-default tariffs
Total non-default tariffs    – – – – –
   
Default tariffs   
Northern area unmeasured   82 22 104 910 24
Northern area standard user metered   2,964 256 3,220 5,080 50
Northern area mid user metered   462 30 492 27 1,111
Northern area high user metered   219 8 227 2 4,000
Southern area unmeasured   52 16 68 868 18
Southern area standard user metered   4,795 389 5,184 7,981 49
Southern area mid user metered   1,009 54 1,063 46 1,174
Southern area high user metered   177 7 184 2 3,500
Special agreement 1 metered   533 19 552 1 19,000
Special agreement 2 metered   7 0 7 1 0

Total default tariffs    10,300 801 11,101 14,918 54

   

Total    10,300 801 11,101 14,918 54

The number of connections reported in the table above is equal to the number of customers served. The average 
retail revenue per customer is therefore £54. 

The non-household retail revenue allowance is calculated based on an allowed average retail cost and allowed 
net margin for each customer type listed in the table above. Charges to each customer type, and therefore 
the resulting revenue generated, were calculated to allow for recovery of allowed revenue based on forecast 
customer numbers and a forecast of the associated volume of water to be used.

Allowed retail revenue figures are affected not only by the retail charge but also changes in the underlying 
wholesale charges, as the net margin is applied to both retail costs and wholesale revenue. As a result of outturn 
customer numbers and water used being different from forecast when charges were set we have in total 
recovered £0.028 million (3.6%) more than allowed for under the price control, which is the aggregate of under-
recovery for some customer types and over-recovery on others. 

2G – Non-household: Revenues by Customer Type
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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       Non- 
      Household household Total 
      £000 £000 £000

Wholesale charge 
Unmeasured      24,323 133 24,456
Measured      18,240 10,167 28,407
Third party revenue      – – –

Total      42,563 10,300 52,863

   
Retail revenue
Unmeasured      2,276 38 2,314
Measured      3,435 763 4,198
Third party revenue      – – –

Total      5,711 801 6,512

   
Third party revenue – non-price control
Bulk supplies        37
Other third party revenue       125

Principal services – non-price control
Other appointed revenue       736

Total appointed revenue       60,273

        Total 
        £000

Wholesale revenue governed by price control      52,863

Grants & contributions        1,797

Total revenue governed by wholesale price control     54,660

Amount assumed in wholesale determination      54,544

Difference        116

There is no adjustment to wholesale revenue for in-period outcome delivery incentives as none apply to the 
Company, and there is no adjustment to wholesale revenue for the Wholesale Revenue Forecasting Incentive 
Mechanism as such an adjustment does not apply in 2016/17. 

Wholesale revenue for the year was £0.116 million (0.2%), higher than the control set under the PR14 Final 
Determination of the wholesale price control. The number of measured customers was lower than forecast when 
the PR14 Final Determination was set. The reduction in revenue expected from measured customers was offset by 
higher than forecast revenue from developers paying grants and contributions. The remaining difference between 
total revenue governed by the wholesale price control and the amount assumed in the wholesale determination 
is due to actual consumption and customer numbers varying from the forecasts used when charges for the year 
were set. 

Ofwat’s Wholesale revenue forecasting incentive mechanism requires that any over-/under-recovery of revenue 
in one year results in a reduction/increase in charges in a subsequent year. The small over-recovery in 2016/17 will, 
all else held equal, lead to a small reduction in charges from April 2018.

2I – Revenue Analysis & Wholesale Control Reconciliation
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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        Notional reward  Total AMP6 
       Notional reward or penalty Total AMP6 reward or penalty 
    2015-16 2016-17   or penalty earned at reward or penalty 31 March 2020 
    performance  performance 2016-17 earned at 31 March 2017 31 March 2020 forecast 
Performance commitment   Units level – actual level – actual target met? 31 March 2017 £m absolute value forecast £m absolute value

A1:  Security of supply index (SoSI) dry year average   score 100 100 Yes Target met 0 Target met 0

A2:  Security of supply index (SoSI) critical period   score 100 100 Yes NA NA NA NA

A3:  Supply interruptions >3 hours   hours/property/year 0.105 0.073 Yes Reward 0.254 Target met 0

A4:   Condition and reliability of the mains network –  
number of burst pipes a year   nr 212 234 Yes Target met 0 Target met 0

A5:  Drinking Water Inspectorate’s (DWI) index        Within penalty  Within penalty 
of water quality   % 99.95 99.98 No deadband 0 deadband 0

A6:  Taste, odour and discolouration        Within penalty 
(number of contacts received)   nr 419 375 No deadband 0 Target met 0

A7:  Water softening programme   text Delivered Delivered Yes Target met 0 Target met 0

B1:  Number of customers that are in water poverty  
and receiving assistance   nr 5,686 5,809 Yes NA NA NA NA

B2:  Effectiveness of bad debt recovery (bad debt  
expressed as a percentage of turnover)   % 0.75 0.67 Yes NA NA NA NA

B3:  Customer perception of value for money   % 9.0 6.3 Yes NA NA NA NA

C1:  The number of times on average the Company      
has to impose restrictions on the use of water   nr 0 0 Yes NA NA NA NA

C2:  Percentage of properties that are connected  
to more than one treatment works (resilience measure)  % 36 36 Yes Target met 0 Target met 0

D1:  Customer satisfaction (level of satisfaction in response  
to the tracker survey (overall quality score))   % 91.5 92.3 Yes NA NA NA NA

D2:  Service incentive mechanism (SIM)   score 80.8 79.6 No NA NA NA NA

D3:  Total number of complaints per 1,000 properties   nr 10.0 11.3 No NA NA NA NA 

E1:  Level of leakage measured in megalitres per day        Within penalty 
(including customer supply pipe leakage)   nr 24.17 24.34 No deadband 0 Target met 0

E2:  Per capita consumption (PCC), measured in litres  
per head per day (l/h/d)   nr 160.9 159.73 Yes Target met 0 Target met 0

E3:  The number of children and adults engaged  
in environmental education activities   nr 13,314 10,703 Yes NA NA NA NA

E4:  Greenhouse gas emissions per million litres  
of water supplied   nr 470 420 Yes NA NA NA NA

E5:  Number of pollution incidents per 100km (category  
3 or worse, as reported by the Environment Agency)   nr 0.6 0.3 No NA NA NA NA

3A – Outcome Performance
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017

Information on our performance is included in our Performance Report (pages 10 to 19) and in the Operating 
and Financial Review (pages 20 to 23). We have met our target level of performance for the year on 14 out of 
20 commitments. Three of the remaining six targets were within the agreed ‘deadband’ for natural variation 
beyond management control. One other related to the contamination of a water course by treated water 
following a burst main, which had only minor environmental impact according to the Environmental Agency. 
The remaining two shortfalls were for the Service Incentive Mechanism and the number of complaints, for which 
remedial actions are already in place. We remain committed to at least meet or exceed our commitments by the 
end of the five year period. Performance on some commitments is linked to a financial reward or penalty which 
will be reflected in prices from 2020. The financial impact shown in this table has been calculated based on the 
incentive rates agreed with Ofwat in the business planning process. Our performance on the Service Incentive 
Mechanism is also linked to a financial reward or penalty but the magnitude is unknown because it will be based 
on our performance relative to other companies in the sector.
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        Notional reward  Total AMP6 
       Notional reward or penalty Total AMP6 reward or penalty 
    2015-16 2016-17   or penalty earned at reward or penalty 31 March 2020 
    performance  performance 2016-17 earned at 31 March 2017 31 March 2020 forecast 
Performance commitment   Units level – actual level – actual target met? 31 March 2017 £m absolute value forecast £m absolute value

A1:  Security of supply index (SoSI) dry year average   score 100 100 Yes Target met 0 Target met 0

A2:  Security of supply index (SoSI) critical period   score 100 100 Yes NA NA NA NA

A3:  Supply interruptions >3 hours   hours/property/year 0.105 0.073 Yes Reward 0.254 Target met 0

A4:   Condition and reliability of the mains network –  
number of burst pipes a year   nr 212 234 Yes Target met 0 Target met 0

A5:  Drinking Water Inspectorate’s (DWI) index        Within penalty  Within penalty 
of water quality   % 99.95 99.98 No deadband 0 deadband 0

A6:  Taste, odour and discolouration        Within penalty 
(number of contacts received)   nr 419 375 No deadband 0 Target met 0

A7:  Water softening programme   text Delivered Delivered Yes Target met 0 Target met 0

B1:  Number of customers that are in water poverty  
and receiving assistance   nr 5,686 5,809 Yes NA NA NA NA

B2:  Effectiveness of bad debt recovery (bad debt  
expressed as a percentage of turnover)   % 0.75 0.67 Yes NA NA NA NA

B3:  Customer perception of value for money   % 9.0 6.3 Yes NA NA NA NA

C1:  The number of times on average the Company      
has to impose restrictions on the use of water   nr 0 0 Yes NA NA NA NA

C2:  Percentage of properties that are connected  
to more than one treatment works (resilience measure)  % 36 36 Yes Target met 0 Target met 0

D1:  Customer satisfaction (level of satisfaction in response  
to the tracker survey (overall quality score))   % 91.5 92.3 Yes NA NA NA NA

D2:  Service incentive mechanism (SIM)   score 80.8 79.6 No NA NA NA NA

D3:  Total number of complaints per 1,000 properties   nr 10.0 11.3 No NA NA NA NA 

E1:  Level of leakage measured in megalitres per day        Within penalty 
(including customer supply pipe leakage)   nr 24.17 24.34 No deadband 0 Target met 0

E2:  Per capita consumption (PCC), measured in litres  
per head per day (l/h/d)   nr 160.9 159.73 Yes Target met 0 Target met 0

E3:  The number of children and adults engaged  
in environmental education activities   nr 13,314 10,703 Yes NA NA NA NA

E4:  Greenhouse gas emissions per million litres  
of water supplied   nr 470 420 Yes NA NA NA NA

E5:  Number of pollution incidents per 100km (category  
3 or worse, as reported by the Environment Agency)   nr 0.6 0.3 No NA NA NA NA

Definitions
‘Earned’ means a financial reward or penalty arising from performance during the year which will only crystallise 
post-2020. It is not reflected in reported financial performance for the year. 

‘NA’ means no financial reward or penalty is due or, in the case of SIM, is not capable of being estimated  
at this stage.
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        Score

Qualitative performance
1st survey score        4.26
2nd survey score        4.06
3rd survey score        4.19
4th survey score        4.17

Qualitative SIM score (out of 75)       59.44

Quantitative performance
Quantitative composite score       96.39

Quantitative SIM score (out of 25)       20.18

Total annual SIM score        79.6

3D – Service Incentive Mechanism (SIM)

The Abstraction Incentive Mechanism (AIM) was established and is monitored by Ofwat. The objective of the AIM 
is to provide an incentive to reduce abstraction from sources that are proven, or there is some evidence that they 
are having, an impact on the environment at certain times.

We are required to report to Ofwat on the sites and conditions when we have applied the AIM. We do not think 
any of our sites are currently suitable for the AIM because:

• there is limited ability to choose between sources in our area, either due to limited connectivity, or in areas 
where there is connectivity, the sites have similar impacts on the environment

• where choice is available the additional cost of using alternative sources makes it economically unviable based 
on our business plan.

We have three main areas where water is sourced:

• unconfined chalk which impacts the chalk streams in the North of our area
• Leatherhead groundwater sources with connectivity to the River Mole
• Bough Beech reservoir which takes water from the River Eden.

There is connectivity between the unconfined chalk sources in the north of our supply area, but there is limited 
difference in the environmental impact of choosing one source over another as they all impact the chalk streams 
in the area, primarily the River Wandle. Leatherhead and Bough Beech can be used to supply water to the 
northern area but due to the cost of doing so this is used only in times of emergency or where groundwater in the 
chalk is stressed.

3C – Abstraction Incentive Mechanism
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      Current year

      Unmeasured Measured All

Number of void households      3,047 4,433 7,480

Per capita consumption (excluding supply pipe leakage) (l/h/d)  181.02 136.85 159.73

Wholesale volume (MI/d)
Bulk supply export        0.102
Bulk supply import        –
Distribution input        163.70

4A – Non-Financial Information
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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       Current Cumulative 
       year 2015-17
       £000 £000

Actual totex       48,070 91,193

  
Items excluded from the menu
Third party costs       1,133 2,459
Pension deficit recovery payments      544 1,084
Other ‘Rule book’ adjustments      – –
Total items excluded from the menu      1,677 3,543

Adjusted actual totex      
Adjusted actual totex       46,393 87,650
Adjusted actual totex base year prices     42,836 81,746

Allowed totex
Allowed totex based on final menu choice base year prices    45,349 86,463

Actual totex (at base year prices) was £2,513k (5.5%) lower than the PR14 Final Determination allowed totex 
for the year and £4,717k (5.5%) lower than the PR14 Final Determination allowed totex for the first two years of 
the current regulatory period. This was primarily attributable to the continuing impact of re-phasing of capital 
investment to later in the five year period to enable projects to be scoped and designed using the latest available 
information to achieve the performance commitments made to customers. 

4B – Wholesale Totex Analysis: Comparison to Allowed Totex 
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017

        £000

RCV determined for FD at 31 March 2017      234,069
RCV element of cumulative totex over/underspend so far in the price control period   (1,594)
Adjustment for ODI rewards or penalties      –

Projected ‘shadow’ RCV        232,475

The ‘shadow’ RCV above has been calculated in accordance with guidance issued by Ofwat based on the 
assumption that the lower level of wholesale totex incurred to date will persist through to 2020, when an 
adjustment to the RCV determined in the PR14 Final Determination would be made. As the expenditure has been 
lower than assumed in the PR14 Final Determination primarily due to re-phasing of capital investment to later in 
the five year period, equivalent upward adjustments are, in practice, expected to offset the current reduction of 
the reconciliation in 2020.

4C – Impact of AMP Performance to date on RCV 
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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 Water resources  Raw water distribution 

       Treated 
  Abstraction  Raw water Raw water Raw water Water water 
  licences abstraction transport storage treatment distribution Total 
  £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Operating expenditure
Power  – 1,322 526 – 1,326 1,686 4,860
Income treated as   – – – – (219) – (219) 
negative expenditure  
Abstraction charges  847 – – – – – 847
Bulk supply  – – – – – – –
Other operating expenditure – 1,746 264 – 6,775 8,107 16,892
Local authority and cumulo rates – 366 65 – 1,054 1,211 2,696

Total operating expenditure  
excluding third party services  847 3,434 855 – 8,936 11,004 25,076

Third party services  – – – – – 1,133 1,133

Total operating expenditure 847 3,434 855 – 8,936 12,137 26,209

       
Capital expenditure       
Maintaining the long-term  
capability of the assets –  
infrastructure  – – – – – 5,420 5,420
Maintaining the long-term  
capability of the assets –  
non-infrastructure  – 704 – – 11,674 1,503 13,881
Other capital expenditure –     
infrastructure  – – – – – 2,110 2,110
Other capital expenditure –   
non-infrastructure  – – – – 18 1,685 1,703

Total gross capital expenditure  
excluding third party services – 704 – – 11,692 10,718 23,114

Third party services  – – – – – – –

Total gross capital expenditure – 704 – – 11,692 10,718 23,114

Grants and contributions  – – – – – (1,797) (1,797)

Totex  847 4,138 855 – 20,628 21,058 47,526

Cash expenditure
Pension deficit recovery payments – 93 19 – 195 237 544
Other cash items  – – – – – – –

Totex including cash items 847 4,231 874 – 20,823 21,295 48,070

Unit cost information – operating expenditure (MI)
Licenced volume available 105,384  
Volume abstracted   62,059 
Volume transported    60,013 
Average volume stored     – 
Distribution input from water treatment    59,752  
Distribution input treated water      59,752 

Unit cost (£/MI)  8.04 55.34 14.25 – 149.55 203.12

Population (000s)        687.645
Unit cost (£/pop)  1.23 4.99 1.24 – 13.00 17.65

4D – Wholesale Totex Analysis
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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4F – Operating Cost Analysis: Household Retail
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017

      Household  Household 
      unmeasured measured Total 
      £000 £000 £000

Operating expenditure   
Customer services      873 1,953 2,826
Debt management      459 482 941
Doubtful debts      163 171 334
Meter reading      – 219 219
Other operating expenditure     881 924 1,805

Total operating expenditure excluding third party services   2,376 3,749 6,125
Third party services operating expenditure    – – –

Total operating expenditure      2,376 3,749 6,125

Depreciation – tangible fixed assets     18 20 38
Amortisation – intangible fixed assets     62 64 126

Total operating costs      2,456 3,833 6,289

   
Other operating expenditure – breakdown   
Demand-side water efficiency – gross expenditure      105
Expenditure funded by wholesale       –

Demand-side water efficiency – net retail expenditure     105

Customer-side leak repairs – gross expenditure      118
Expenditure funded by wholesale       –

Customer-side leak repairs – net retail expenditure     118
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        £000

Revenue        53,607
Operating expenditure        (26,209)
Capital maintenance charges       (15,836)
Other operating income        (54)

Current cost operating profit       11,508

 
Other income        2,631
Interest income        85
Interest expense        (9,214)
Other interest expense        –

Current cost profit before tax and fair value movements     5,010

 
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial instruments      –

Current cost profit before tax       5,010

Current cost operating profit and profit before tax have both been calculated in accordance with Ofwat guidelines 
based on historic costs (as reflected in the Company’s statutory and regulatory accounts) with the sole exception 
of capital maintenance charges. 

Capital maintenance charges have been based on:

• Current cost depreciation on above ground assets under the former UKGAAP (as reflected in prior years’ 
regulatory accounts), rolled forward for additions, disposals and inflation during the year. The underlying asset 
values used to generate this current cost depreciation charge are those from the Modern Equivalent Asset 
Valuation exercise undertaken for the 2009 Price Review (PR09)

• The infrastructure renewals charge for 2014/15 inflated to 2016/17 prices, as a proxy for depreciation of 
underground assets.

This basis of calculation differs fundamentally from that used to generate the depreciation charge for all assets 
under FRS 101, as reflected in the Company’s statutory and regulatory accounts.

There are no working capital adjustments, which have featured in previous Current Cost Accounting (CCA) 
Regulatory Accounts, included in this Wholesale Current Cost Financial Performance table.

4G –Wholesale Current Cost Financial Performance
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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       Units Metric

Net debt       £m 181.946

Regulated equity       £m 52.123

Regulated gearing       % 77.73
Post tax return on regulated equity      % 20.15
RoRE (return on regulated equity)      % 4.38
Dividend yield       % 5.37

Retail profit margin – Household      % -1.20
Retail profit margin – Non-household      % 1.99

Credit rating       n/a BBB+
Return on RCV       % 8.42
Dividend cover       times 4.02

Funds from operations (FFO)      £m 20.105

Interest cover (cash)       times 4.14
Adjusted interest cover (cash)      times 1.67

FFO/Debt       dec 0.11

Effective tax rate       % 11.52

Free cash flow (RCF)       £m 17.305

RCF/capex       dec 0.74

  
Revenue (actual)       £m 59.375
EBITDA (actual)       £m 26.470

  
Proportion of borrowings which are fixed rate     % 6.40
Proportion of borrowings which are floating rate     % 17.55
Proportion of borrowings which are index linked     % 76.05

Proportion of borrowings due within 1 year or less     % 1.06
Proportion of borrowings due in more than 1 year but no more than 2 years   % –
Proportion of borrowings due in more than 2 years but no more than 5 years  % 16.49
Proportion of borrowings due in more than 5 years but no more than 20 years  % 82.45
Proportion of borrowings due in more than 20 years    % –

4H – Financial Metrics
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2017
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Commentary on Financial Metrics

As noted in the commentary accompanying the revenue tables (see pages 91 to 93), actual revenue in 2016/17 was:

• £0.116 million (0.2%) higher than the amount assumed in the wholesale price control;
• £0.101 million (1.7%) lower than the allowed revenue in the household retail price control; and
• £0.028 million (3.6%) higher than the allowed revenue in the non-household retail price control.

The principal variance was attributable to higher than anticipated demand for network connections to support  
a surge in new property development.

As noted in the commentary accompanying the wholesale totex analysis on page 98, actual totex for the year 
was £2,513k lower (at 2012/13 prices) than allowed in the wholesale price control, principally due to re-phasing 
of capital expenditure into later years of the five year period. As noted in the commentary accompanying the 
operating cost analysis for retail activities on page 88, retail operating costs for the year were £953k higher than 
assumed in the retail price controls (of which £60k related to depreciation and amortisation). Overall expenditure 
was therefore £1,620k lower than assumed in the PR14 Final Determination.

Return on regulatory equity (RoRE) has been estimated on a cumulative basis (for 2015/16 and 2016/17) at 4.38% 
based on updated guidance provided by Ofwat. The calculation is shown below:

Base case RoRE in PR14 Final Determination      5.80%
Plus: Company share of totex underspend      –
Less:  Company share of overspend on retail costs      (0.79)%
Less:  Impact on RCV run-off of totex outperformance     –
Plus:  Impact of net ODI reward earned (excl. SIM)      0.36%
Less:  Difference in real terms between actual and allowed interest costs    (0.99)%

Estimated RoRE for 2015/16 and 2016/17 combined     4.38%

This estimated actual return on regulated equity needs to be interpreted with care for a number of reasons, 
including:

• The net ODI reward for the year takes no account of the impact of performance against the Service Incentive  
Mechanism (SIM), because the magnitude is not capable of estimation without full visibility of other companies’ 
performance (which will determine the impact for the Company)

• The difference on interest costs is based entirely on a notional capital structure and bears little relationship  
to the Company’s actual capital structure

• It excludes the impact of other factors affecting actual returns, including one-off items (such as a significant 
land sale in 2015/16) and enduring items, such as the accounting treatment of capital maintenance charges for 
the Company’s underground pipe network.

The overall impact of no allowances for inflation on Retail cost allowances and under-funding of debt costs at the 
last Price Review is, however, clear.

Post tax returns on regulatory equity have, in contrast to the RoRE estimate, been affected by both accounting 
policies and the impact of low inflation (on the indexation of the Company’s principal long-term debt instrument). 
The accounting treatment of infrastructure renewals expenditure under FRS101 continues to have a substantial 
effect upon accounting based measures. All planned infrastructure asset renewal expenditure has been capitalised 
(in accordance with FRS101) and depreciated over an estimated useful economic life of 100 years. Any residual 
book value of pipes being replaced has been written-off on commissioning of new assets.

Dividend payments have been kept broadly in line with the estimated return on regulatory equity reflected in the 
PR14 Final Determination and incorporated into the Company’s updated dividend policy statement (which can be 
found on page 33).
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Notes to the Regulatory Accounts

1 Accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted for these regulatory accounts are the same as these set out on pages 65 to 69 
except where a different treatment is required in order to comply with Regulatory Accounting Guidelines (RAGs) 
published by the Water Services Regulatory Authority. 

Cost allocation to individual price controls
The allocation of costs between operating costs, capital expenditure and capital maintenance is based on RAG 2, 
RAG 3, RAG 4, and normal accounting practice. Items of a capital nature costing less than £250 are written-off to 
operating expenditure. This practice has not changed from previous years. 

Leakage control costs, including those incurred through third parties and by the Company’s own employees, are 
treated as operating expenditure. 

All costs are extracted directly from the Company’s accounting systems, with appropriate activity codes already 
assigned. Allocations for indirect costs between wholesale and retail, within wholesale between the sub-service 
categories of water resources, raw water distribution, water treatment, and treated water distribution, and within 
retail between household and non-household activities, are undertaken using appropriate activity drivers as 
required by Regulatory Accounting Guidelines and in accordance with the Company’s ‘Accounting Separation 
Methodology Statement’, as published on the Company’s website.

2 Explanation of differences between statutory and RAG definitions

       Profit on Total 
     Capital STOR Asset differences 
     Contributions Revenue Sales as per 
Note     (a) (b) (c) Table 1A

Revenue     (1,797) (219) – (2,016)
Operating costs     – 219 50 269
Other operating income     – – (50) (50)

Operating profit     (1,797) – – (1,797)
Other income     1,797 – – 1,797

Profit before tax     – – – –

a) Grants and contributions treated as turnover under FRS 101, but as Other Income to comply with clarification provided by Ofwat.
b) Income from National Grid’s Short Term Operating Regime (STOR) for use of appointed business standby generators to assist with 

peak electricity demand – treated as turnover under FRS101 but as negative operating expenditure under RAG 4.06.
c) Profit and loss arising on the disposal of fixed assets reallocated from operating costs to other operating income to comply with the 

Regulatory Accounting Guidelines.

3 Transactions with associated companies
        Annual
        turnover of  
        associated 
      Value Terms of company 
  Description  £000 Supply £000

Allmat (East Surrey) Ltd  Building materials  5 Other market testing 3,555 
Sutton and East Surrey Water Services Ltd Leak repairs  107 Competitive tendering 6,757 
Sutton and East Surrey Water Services Ltd Building improvements 42 Competitive tendering 6,757 
Advanced Minerals Ltd  Disposal of waste  42 Other market testing 2,743

In addition to the above, the Company charged Allmat (East Surrey) Ltd £46,500 (2016: £41,300) for the rental  
of premises.

A dividend of £3,600,000 (2016: £3,600,000) was paid through SESW Holding Company Ltd to East Surrey 
Holdings Ltd.

A preference dividend of £965,998 (2016: £965,998) was paid through SESW Holding Company Ltd to  
East Surrey Holdings Ltd.

To the best of the directors’ knowledge, all appropriate transactions with associated companies have been 
disclosed in accordance with Condition F of the Company’s Instrument of Appointment and Regulatory 
Accounting Guidelines 5.06.
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Certificate of the Directors to the Water Services  
Regulation Authority

Certificate of adequacy under Licence Condition F6a

The directors certify that in their opinion:
• the Company will have available to it sufficient financial resources and facilities to enable it to carry out, for at 

least the next 12 months, the Regulated Activities (including the investment programme necessary to fulfil the 
Appointee’s obligations under the Appointment)

• the Company will, for at least the next 12 months, have available to it management resources and methods of 
planning and internal control which are sufficient to enable it to carry out those functions

• so far as they are aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware
• they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a Board of Directors in order to make 

themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of the 
information

• all contracts entered into with an Associated Company include all necessary provisions and requirements 
concerning the standard of services to be supplied by the Appointee.

In providing this certificate, the directors have taken into account:
• acceptance of the 2014 Final Determination by the Board
• a budget and capital expenditure programme for 2016/17 approved by the Board
• the committed borrowing and overdraft facilities available to the Company until 2020, of which  

£23.9 million is unutilised at 31 March 2017
• cash balances of £13.1 million at 31 March 2017
• a stable and experienced senior management team, with wide knowledge of the water industry,  

and a capable and motivated workforce
• formal risk management and governance arrangements, monitored by the Audit Committee  

and Board.

Risk and compliance statement

The directors confirm that the Company, in their opinion:
• has a full understanding of, and is meeting, its statutory licence and regulatory obligations and has taken steps 

to understand and meet the expectations of its customers
• has satisfied itself that it has sufficient processes and internal systems of control to fully meet its obligations
• has appropriate systems and processes in place to allow it to identify, manage, mitigate and review its risks. 

In preparing this statement, the directors confirm that the Company is aware of the obligations in legislation and in 
its licence with which it must comply. In particular, the directors confirm that:
• the Company has sufficient rights and assets available to enable a special administrator to run  

the business
• trade with associates is at arm’s length
• the Company publishes a statement explaining the links between directors’ pay and standards of performance
• the Company maintains an investment grade credit rating.

The risk management, monitoring and control systems and processes upon which the directors rely in making 
this statement are described in the Strategic Report on pages 24 to 25 and the Corporate Governance Report on 
pages 39 to 40.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on their behalf on 6 July 2017:
 
Jeremy Pelczer Anthony Ferrar Murray Legg
Chairman Managing Director Chairman of the Audit Committee 

SES Water  Annual Report 2017105
O

verview
S

trateg
ic R

ep
o

rt
G

overnance
Financial Statem

ents
P

erfo
rm

ance R
ep

o
rt



Independent Auditor’s Report to the Water Services  
Regulation Authority (the WSRA) and Directors  
of Sutton and East Surrey Water plc 

Opinion on the Annual Performance Report
In our opinion, Sutton and East Surrey Water plc’s Regulatory Accounting Statements within the Annual 
Performance Report have been properly prepared in accordance with Condition F, the Regulatory Accounting 
Guidelines issued by the WSRA (RAG 1.07, RAG 2.06, RAG 3.09, RAG 4.06 and RAG 5.06) and the accounting 
policies (including the Company’s published accounting separation methodology statement), as defined in RAG 
3.09, appendix 3. 

Emphasis of matter – basis of preparation
Without modifying our opinion on the Regulatory Accounting Statements within the Annual Performance Report, 
we draw attention to the fact that the Annual Performance Report has been prepared in accordance with 
Condition F, the Regulatory Accounting Guidelines, the accounting policies (including the Company’s published 
accounting separation methodology statement, as defined in RAG 3.09, appendix 3) set out in the statement 
of accounting policies and under the historical cost convention. The nature, form and content of the Regulatory 
Accounting Statements are determined by the WSRA. It is not appropriate for us to assess whether the nature of 
the information being reported upon is suitable or appropriate for the WSRA’s purposes. Accordingly we make  
no such assessment.

The Annual Performance Report is separate from the statutory financial statements of the Company and has not 
been prepared under the basis of International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union 
(‘IFRSs’). Financial information other than that prepared on the basis of IFRSs does not necessarily represent a 
true and fair view of the financial performance or financial position of a company as shown in statutory financial 
statements prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006. 

The Regulatory Accounting Statements on pages 80 to 93 have been drawn up in accordance with Regulatory 
Accounting Guidelines with a number of departures from IFRSs. A summary of the effect of these departures from 
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in the Company’s statutory financial statements is included in tables 
1A to 1E.

What we have audited
The tables within Sutton and East Surrey Water plc’s Annual Performance Report that we have audited (‘the 
Regulatory Accounting Statements’) comprise:

• The regulatory financial reporting tables comprising the income statement (table 1A), the statement of 
comprehensive income (table 1B), the statement of financial position (table 1C), the statement of cash flows 
(table 1D) and the net debt analysis (table 1E) and the related notes

• The regulatory price review and other segmental reporting tables comprising the segmental income  
statement (table 2A), the totex analysis for wholesale water and wastewater (table 2B), the operating cost 
analysis for retail (table 2C), the historical cost analysis of fixed assets for wholesale and retail (table 2D),  
the analysis of capital contributions and land sales for wholesale (table 2E), the household water revenues by 
customer type (table 2F), the non-household water revenues by customer type (table 2G) and the revenue 
analysis by customer type (table 2I) and the related notes.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation comprises Condition F, the 
Regulatory Accounting Guidelines issued by the WSRA and the accounting policies (including the Company’s 
published accounting separation methodology statement, as defined in RAG 3.09, appendix 3) set out in the 
notes to the Annual Performance Report.

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for 
example in respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions 
and considered future events.

We have not audited the outcome performance table (tables 3A to 3D) and the additional regulatory information 
in tables 4A to 4I.

This report is made, on terms that have been agreed, solely to the Company and the WSRA in order to meet 
the requirements of Condition F of the Instrument of Appointment granted by the Secretary of State for the 
Environment to the Company as a water undertaker under the Water Industry Act 1991 (‘Condition F’). Our audit 
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company and the WSRA those matters that we have 
agreed to state to them in our report, in order (a) to assist the Company to meet its obligation under Condition F 
to procure such a report and (b) to facilitate the carrying out by the WSRA of its regulatory functions, and for no 
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 
than the Company and the WSRA, for our audit work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed.
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Our assessment of risks of material misstatement 
Bad debt provision
Subjective estimate: The water industry has a unique debtor profile mainly due to its customer base and the 
service provided. In order to assess the recoverability of these debts a detailed analysis of the debtor aging is 
required as well as a complex calculation. This is considered a key audit risk because an error in just one stage 
of this calculation, either through an inappropriate judgement taken or human error, could result in a material 
misstatement to the level of provision required.

Our procedures included: 
• Control reperformance: With the assistance of KPMG IT specialists, assess the controls present in the billing 

system that underpin the provisions calculation.
• Our sector experience: Analysing economic and industry factors that might affect the recoverability of 

outstanding debtors and assessing whether these have been considered by the directors in setting the 
provision rates. 

• Historical comparisons: Compare the movement in debtors between the aged buckets between 2016 and 2017 
to determine whether a higher proportion of debt is becoming older, thus resulting in the need for a higher 
provision.

• Expectation vs outcome: Based on historical cash flow trends, we estimated the cash collection rate for 2017 
to include as part of setting an expectation of recoverable debt, which was then compared to the debt not 
provided for at the year-end. 

• Historical comparison: Critically assess the provision rates set in the accounting policy by challenging the 
directors regarding variances against prior year.

• Assessing transparency: Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures made in relation to the Company’s 
provisioning policy applied and the level of provisions recorded.

 
Classification of expenditure
Accounting treatment: Classification of costs between operating and capital is a key audit risk for the 2017 
audit as the allocation affects both the Company’s profit and balance sheet. The detailed accounting policies in 
place are reviewed regularly by the directors however their implementation requires significant judgement to 
determine whether the costs meet the relevant criteria in those policies; an incorrect judgement at the beginning 
of one project could result in a material misstatement.

Our procedures included: 
• Testing application: Select a sample of capital additions to agree to third party documentation, timesheets or 

capital recharges order to assess their classification on the balance sheet.
• Historical comparisons: Perform a comparison year on year of both operating and capital expenditure in order 

to identify unusual trends in each and challenge the directors with regards to these, as expenditure levels are 
expected to be consistent given the nature of the industry. We also compared expenditure to the 2017 budget 
to corroborate the type of expenditure being undertaken in 2017 as these are planned five years in advance as 
part of the regulatory asset management period (AMP) submitted to the regulator. 

• Assessing transparency: Assessing the adequacy of the disclosures made in relation to the Company’s policy 
of capitalisation or expensing of costs and the judgements involved.

Our application of materiality
Materiality for the financial statements as a whole was set at £0.6 million (2015: £1.0 million). This has been 
determined with reference to a benchmark of the Company’s gross revenue, of which it represents 1.0%  
(2016: 1.6%).

We reported to the Audit Committee any corrected or uncorrected misstatements exceeding £32,000 (2016: 
£50,000), in addition to other identified misstatements that warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

Respective responsibilities of the WSRA, the directors and auditor
As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities on page 105, the directors are responsible 
for the preparation of the Annual Performance Report in accordance with Condition F, the Regulatory 
Accounting Guidelines issued by the WSRA and the Company’s accounting policies (including the Company’s 
published accounting separation methodology statement, as defined in RAG 3.09, appendix 3). 

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the Regulatory Accounting Statements within the Annual 
Performance Report in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (‘ISAs (UK & 
Ireland)’), except as stated in the section on ‘What an audit of the Annual Performance Report involves’ below,  
and having regard to the guidance contained in ICAEW Technical Release Tech 02/16 AAF ‘Reporting to 
Regulators on Regulatory Accounts’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. 
Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
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What an audit of the Annual Performance Report involves
An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the Regulatory Accounting 
Statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the Regulatory Accounting Statements within the  
Annual Performance Report are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes 
an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the Company’s circumstances and have 
been consistently applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made 
by the directors; and the overall presentation of the Annual Performance Report. In addition, we read all the 
financial and non-financial information in the Regulatory Accounts to identify material inconsistencies with the 
audited tables within the Annual Performance Report and to identify any information that is apparently materially 
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the 
audit. If we become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies  
we consider the implications for our report.

We have not assessed whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company 
where these are laid down by Condition F. Where Condition F does not give specific guidance on the accounting 
policies to be followed, our audit includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies adopted in respect of 
the transactions and balances required to be included in the Annual Performance Report are consistent with those 
used in the preparation of the statutory financial statements of the Company. Furthermore, as the nature, form 
and content of Annual Performance Report is determined by the WSRA, we did not evaluate the overall adequacy 
of the presentation of the information, which would have been required if we were to express an audit opinion 
under International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland).

The Company has presented the allocation of operating costs and assets in accordance with the accounting 
policy for price control segments set out in note 1 and its accounting separation methodology statement 
published on the Company’s website on 14 July 2017. We are not required to assess whether the methods of cost 
allocation set out in the Methodology Statement are appropriate to the circumstances of the Company or whether 
they meet the requirements of the WSRA, which would have been required if we were to express an audit opinion 
under International Standards on Auditing (UK & Ireland).

Opinion on other matters prescribed by Condition F
Under the terms of our contract we have assumed responsibility to provide those additional opinions required by 
Condition F in relation to the accounting records. In our opinion:

• Proper accounting records have been kept by the appointee as required by paragraph 3 of Condition F
• The Regulatory Accounting Statements are in agreement with the accounting records and returns retained for 

the purpose of preparing the Annual Performance Report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where under International Standards on Auditing 
(UK and Ireland), we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, information in the Regulatory Accounts is:

• Materially inconsistent with the information in the audited Regulatory Accounting Statements
• Apparently materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, our knowledge of the Company 

acquired in the course of performing our audit
• Otherwise misleading. 

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have identified any inconsistencies between our knowledge 
acquired during the audit and the directors’ statement that they consider the Regulatory Accounts is fair, 
balanced and understandable and whether the Annual Performance Report appropriately discloses those matters 
that we communicated to the Audit Committee which we consider should be disclosed.

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Water Services  
Regulation Authority (the WSRA) and Directors  
of Sutton and East Surrey Water plc Continued
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Other matters
Our opinion on the Regulatory Accounting Statements within the Annual Performance Report is separate from 
our opinion on the statutory financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2017 on which  
we reported on 6 July 2017, which are prepared for a different purpose. Our audit report in relation to the 
statutory financial statements of the Company (our ‘Statutory Audit’) was made solely to the Company’s 
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our Statutory Audit 
work was undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are required to 
state to them in a statutory audit report and for no other purpose. In these circumstances, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to 
whom our Statutory Audit report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by  
our prior consent in writing.

John Luke 
(Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor 
Chartered Accountants 
15 Canada Square 
London 
E14 5GL 
6 July 2017
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